
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 4 February 2022 

 Page 1 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services 
Telephone: 07895 213735 
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 27 January 2022 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Cabinet 

will be held on Friday 4 February 2022 at 10.30 am  
135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Cabinet Members: 
Councillors  
Emily Smith (Chair)  Debby Hallett 
Bethia Thomas (Vice-Chair)  Helen Pighills 
Andy Crawford Judy Roberts 
Neil Fawcett Catherine Webber 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 

1. Apologies for absence  
  
To record apologies for absence.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 4 - 12)  
  
To adopt and sign as correct records the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 3 
December 2021, and the minutes of the informal meeting of Cabinet members held on 20 
December 2021.   

mailto:carole.nicholl@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 4 February 2022 

 Page 2 

3. Declarations of interest  
  
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and any conflicts of interest 
in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.   
 

4. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and 
to receive any announcements from the chair. 
 

5. Public participation  
  
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered 
to speak.   
 
 

CABINET DECISIONS  
 

6. Recommendations and updates from other committees  
  
To consider any recommendations to Cabinet from other committees.   
 

7. Climate action plan  
(Pages 13 - 35)  
  
To consider the head of policy and programmes’ report.   

 

8. Climate action fund  
(Pages 36 - 49)  
  
To consider the head of policy and programmes’ report.   

 

9. Section 106 funding for Kingston Bagpuize sports pavilion  
(Wards Affected: Kingston Bagpuize)  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report (to follow).   
 

10. Car park fees and charges  
(Pages 50 - 68)  
  
To consider the head of development and corporate landlord’s report.   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL  

11. Treasury management and investment strategy 2022/23  
(Pages 69 - 108)  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report.   



Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 4 February 2022 

 Page 3 

12. Capital strategy 2022/23 to 2031/32  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report (to follow).   
 

13. Revenue budget 2022/23 and capital programme 2022/23 to 
2026/27  

(Pages 109 - 144)  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report.   
 

14. Future provision of external audit services  
(Pages 145 - 151)  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report.   
 

15. Exclusion of the public, including the press  
  
To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3, Part 

1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and  
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.   
 
 

Exempt information under section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972  

  

16. Future waste services  
(Pages 152 - 165)  
  
To consider the head of housing and environment’s report.   
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Friday, 3 December 2021 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Cabinet 

 
held on Friday 3 December 2021 at 10.30 am  
at 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Emily Smith (Chair), Bethia Thomas (Vice-Chair), Debby Hallett, 
Andy Crawford, Neil Fawcett, Judy Roberts and Catherine Webber 
Officers: Steve Culliford 
 

Remote attendance: 
Councillors: Councillor Helen Pighills 
Officers:  Patrick Arran, Harry Barrington-Mountford, Pat Connell, Diane Foster, Liz 
Hayden, Simon Hewings, Jeremy Lloyd, Lucy Murfett, Tom Rice, Mark Stone, Emma 
Turner, David Wilde and Emma Wright 
 
 

53 Apologies for absence  
 
None 
 

54 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 29 October 2021 as a 
correct record and agree that the Chair signs them as such.   
 

55 Declarations of interest  
 
None 
 

56 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
The Chair reminded Cabinet that only those members present in the meeting room had 
voting rights.   
 

57 Public participation  
 

None 
 

58 Recommendations and updates from other committees  
 
Cabinet received a paper summarising the updates and recommendations from other 
committees since the last Cabinet meeting.  The Licensing Acts Committee, the Scrutiny 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Friday, 3 December 2021 

Committee, the Joint Scrutiny Committee and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
had each discussed matters requiring Cabinet’s attention.  Cabinet welcomed the update 
and agreed to consider each matter under the relevant agenda item below.   
 

59 Review of joint gambling policy  
 
Cabinet considered the head of housing and environment’s report regarding a review of the 
gambling policy.  The Gambling Act 2005 required the council to have a gambling policy and 
to review it every three years.  The draft policy had been considered by the Licensing Acts 
Committee and had been subject to public consultation.  The committee had recommended 
that Cabinet made a recommendation to Council to adopt the policy.   
 
Cabinet noted that there had been no significant policy changes as a result of the review 
and public consultation.  Cabinet supported the recommendations set out in the report and 
thanked officers and the Licensing Acts Committee for its work in reviewing the policy.     
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to: 

 
(a) adopt the proposed joint gambling policy;  
 
(b) authorise the head of housing and environment to make minor editorial changes to the 

joint gambling policy; and  
 
(c) authorise the head of housing and environment to publish the joint gambling policy in 

accordance with the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2006.   

 

60 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22  
 
Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report, which monitored the council’s treasury 
management performance in the first six months of 2021/22.  The report, written as at 30 
September 2021, showed that the income from treasury activities was under the budget 
forecast; this was largely due to the lower than expected interest rates during that period.  
However, the council’s performance had exceeded all benchmarks and there had been no 
need to borrow funds during the first six months of the financial year, nor was there any 
expectation to borrow during the remainder of the year.  The treasury activities had also 
been carried out within the prudential indicators and counterparty limits set out in the 
2021/22 treasury management strategy.  Cabinet noted a correction that in paragraph 25 of 
the report; the interest rates quoted should be amended from 10 per cent and 25 per cent to 
read 0.1 per cent and 0.25 per cent respectively.   
 
The Joint Audit and Governance Committee had considered the report on 30 November 
2021 and was content that the treasury management activities had been carried out in 
accordance with the treasury management strategy and policy.  Cabinet concurred and 
thanked officers and the committee for their work in managing the council’s treasury 
management performance.   
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to: 
 
(a) note the treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22; and  
 

Page 5



 

Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Friday, 3 December 2021 

(b) note that Cabinet is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance 
with the treasury management strategy and policy.   

 

61 Council tax base 2022/23  
 
Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report on the need to set the council tax for 
2022/23.  This was required to calculate the amount of taxable resources to allow Council to 
set its council tax in February 2022.  Oxfordshire County Council, Thames Valley Police and 
all parish councils within the district would also be informed of the tax base relevant to them.   
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to: 
 
(a) approve the report of the head of finance for the calculation of the council’s tax base 

and the calculation of the tax base for each parish area for 2022/23;  
 
(b) agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) 

(England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by Vale of White Horse District 
Council as its council tax base for the year 2022/23 is 55,362.8; and  

 
(c) agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) 

(England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by Vale of White Horse District 
Council as the council tax base for the year 2022/23 for each parish be the amount 
shown against the name of that parish in Appendix A of the report of the head of 
finance to Cabinet on 3 December 2021.   

 

62 War pensions and war widow(er)'s pension disregard top up in 
housing benefit  
 
Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report, seeking approval for the council to 
continue to disregard war pensions and war widow(er)’s pensions in calculating housing 
benefit entitlement.   
 
Cabinet noted that it was being asked to re-affirm the council’s previous policy without 
change.  Cabinet endorsed the recommendations.   
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to re-affirm its decision to approve the disregard of War 
Pensions and War Widow(er)’s pensions: 
 
(i) in full as income above the statutory £10.00 per week disregard in the calculation of 

Housing Benefit entitlement; and  
 
(ii) in full as income in relation to the means tested assessment of Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme discount.   
 

63 Local Plan Part 1 Review  
 
Cabinet considered the report of the head of policy and programmes.  To comply with 
regulations, the council was required to review Local Plan Part 1 by 14 December 2021, 
which was five years from its adoption.  The review was not an opportunity to revise or 
replace the plan, but to ensure consistency with the current National Planning Policy 
Framework.   
 

Page 6



 

Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Friday, 3 December 2021 

An appendix to the report assessed the plan against current guidance and found three 
policies that needed updating.  The updates did not change the overall homes supply for the 
Vale.   
 
Cabinet supported the recommendations in the report.  The review of Local Plan Part 1 
would continue to provide for sustainable development in the Vale.  Cabinet thanked officers 
for their work on the review.   
 
Cabinet commented on the need for two-way co-operation with neighbouring councils.  For 
example, the Vale’s Local Plan provided for housing to assist Oxford with its unmet housing 
need.  However, if Oxford City Council found sites for housing or employment within its 
boundary, it would be expected to use such sites to reduce the unmet housing need that 
been had placed on neighbouring councils.  Local plans should co-locate jobs and homes.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) approve for publication the Regulation 10A review of Local Plan Part 1 policies; and  
  
(b) authorise the head of policy and programmes, in consultation with the Cabinet 

member for corporate services and transformation, to make any minor amendments, if 
required, to the Local Plan Part 1 Review, prior to publication.   

 

64 Joint statement of community involvement  
 
Cabinet considered the head of policy and programmes’ report.  This proposed the adoption 
of a joint statement of community involvement as part of work on a joint local plan with 
South Oxfordshire District Council.  The statement set out how the council would engage 
when preparing planning policy documents, including neighbourhood planning, and the 
support the council offered to neighbourhood planning groups.  The statement also set out 
how the council would consult on planning applications, and included information on the 
pre-application advice, planning appeals and planning enforcement.   
 
The statement had been through a public consultation, the feedback from which was 
positive.  Some changes had been made to the document, as set out in appendix 1 to the 
report.  The Cabinet member reported that there had been no radical change since the 
Vale’s statement for its own local plan, but the new joint statement had more emphasis on 
digital consultation.   
 
Joint Scrutiny Committee had given its support to the statement, including the consultation 
arrangements.  Some strengthening of the language used, and some additional signposting 
were suggestions made by the committee; these suggestions would be taken on board by 
officers before publication.  Officers were also developing a system to reply to each 
consultee response.   
 
Cabinet also supported the joint statement, and the changes made resulting from the 
consultation and Joint Scrutiny Committee’s response.  The council was doing the best it 
could to maximise influence within the national limits set by government.   
 
The public and the Joint Scrutiny Committee were thanked for their responses.  Officers and 
the Cabinet member were thanked for their work on the new statement.   
 
 
 

Page 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Friday, 3 December 2021 

RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) adopt the statement of community involvement subject to the amendments set out in 

the head of policy and programme’s report and appendix 1 to Cabinet on 3 December 
2021; and  

 
(b) authorise the head of policy and programmes, in consultation with the Cabinet 

member for corporate services and transformation, to make the changes set out in the 
report and appendix 1 and any other minor changes, typographical corrections or non-
material amendments to the statement of community involvement prior to publication.   

 

65 Planning enforcement statement  
 
Cabinet considered the head of planning’s report, which sought approval of an updated 
planning enforcement statement.  During the past year, officers had conducted a review of 
the planning enforcement service and had revised the planning enforcement statement.  
The statement included improvements to service provision, resulting in a more efficient use 
of resources.  For example, all new cases would undergo a triage assessment to decide 
what action was necessary.   
 
This council was one of the top performers in planning enforcement, but the Cabinet 
member recognised that there was always room for improvement.  However, the public 
should be reminded of the limits placed on the council.  The planning enforcement service 
was not a policing function, the objective was to find proportionate remedies to 
unacceptable planning harm.  The planning enforcement statement set this out clearly, 
stating what the council could and could not do.  All parish councils would be provided with 
a copy of the statement.  The council’s website would also be updated also.   
 
Cabinet welcomed the planning enforcement statement.  The review and the statement 
would bring further improvements to the service and it would reduce the backlog of 
enforcement cases.  The effectiveness of the revised statement would be kept under 
review.   
 
Cabinet thanked officers for reviewing the service and preparing the revised statement, and 
asked that the communications team, through its head of service, was consulted on the 
draft planning enforcement statement before it was published.   
 
RESOLVED: to   
 
(a) note the feedback from Scrutiny Committee;  
 
(b) approve the new enforcement statement and approach to managing planning 

enforcement; and  
 
(c) authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the South Oxfordshire District 

Council Cabinet member for planning, the Vale of White Horse District Council Cabinet 
member for community engagement, and the deputy chief executive – transformation 
and operations, to make any minor changes, formatting, typographical corrections or 
non-material amendments to the joint planning enforcement statement.   

 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Friday, 3 December 2021 

66 Customer transformation strategy  
 
Cabinet considered the head of corporate services’ report, which proposed a customer 
transformation strategy.  This complimented the council’s technology strategy but went 
further, to introduce a technology and digital strategy to support high quality and efficient 
service delivery.   
 
The intention was to make it easier for the customer to interact with the council.  To address 
this the strategy set out six core principles:  

 Re-imagined front doors – service engagement points that were easy to use, 
designed around residents and businesses and their needs, not the council’s 
organisational structure  

 “Once and done” or “right first time” – the right outcome achieved without repeat 
referrals and the need for the customer to chase, increasing the customer’s trust in 
the council   

 Safeguarding – meet statutory obligations whilst never compromising the safety of 
the customer  

 Efficient and environmentally positive – deliver services in the most cost-effective 
way for the councils, whilst helping to tackle the climate emergency  

 Transparency – ensure that customers understood how the council delivers services  

 Accountability – take ownership of service fulfilment and ensure complaints and 
follow-up on commitments were dealt with quickly and properly  

 
Cabinet recognised that adopting these principles and applying them to the way services 
were delivered would require significant change but would help residents.  Therefore, 
Cabinet approved the customer transformation strategy and its roadmap to ensure these 
principles were met.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
  
(a) approve the customer transformation strategy and proposed roadmap for delivery;  
 
(b) appoint the Cabinet member for corporate services and transformation as the lead 

Cabinet member, and the deputy chief executive – transformation and operations as 
the executive sponsor, and to delegate further decisions on the initiation of the 
programme to the deputy chief executive – transformation and operations in 
discussion with the Cabinet member for corporate services and transformation.   

 

67 Housing and homelessness IT solution  
 
Cabinet considered the head of corporate services’ report on the need to procure a new IT 
solution for the housing and homelessness service.  The intention was to upgrade current 
systems to run on a cloud-based platform.  Estimated costs of the procurement were 
detailed in an exempt appendix, which Cabinet noted.  Some cost savings were expected.   
 
Cabinet supported the proposal, noting that it aligned with the recently adopted technology 
strategy and customer transformation strategy.  Cabinet noted that the management of 
mobile home rent would become part of the new system.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



 

Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Friday, 3 December 2021 

RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) approve the budget based on proposed costs required for the housing and 

homelessness IT solution project (the breakdown of costs is shown in Annex A to the 
head of corporate services’ report to Cabinet on 3 December 2021);  

 
(b) agree the procurement route by which to procure an IT solution for the housing and 

homelessness service using the Government GCloud 12 Framework Agreement;  
 
(c) authorise the head of corporate services, in consultation with the relevant Cabinet 

member, to award the contract and to enter into the contract and any ancillary 
documents; and  

 
(d) note the transfer of the mobile homes site rents into the housing IT system for future 

management of those customer accounts.   
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.30 am 

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Monday, 20 December 2021 

Minutes 

of an informal meeting of   

Cabinet members 

 
held on Monday 20 December 2021 at 10.30 am  
This was a virtual, online meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Remote attendance: 
Councillors: Emily Smith (Chair), Bethia Thomas (Vice-Chair), Debby Hallett, 
Andy Crawford, Neil Fawcett, Helen Pighills, Judy Roberts and Catherine Webber 
Officers: Patrick Arran, Harry Barrington-Mountford, Steve Culliford, Andrew Down, 
Simon Hewings, Jeremy Lloyd, Suzanne Malcolm and Mark Stone 
 

 
68 Apologies for absence  
 
None 
 

69 Declarations of interest  
 
None 
 

70 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
The Chair reported that this was an informal meeting of Cabinet members, held remotely, as 
there were no decisions to take, only reports to note.   
 

71 Public participation  
 
None 
 

72 Budget monitoring 2021/22  
 
Cabinet members received the head of finance’s report, which looked at the council’s 
revenue and capital budget position as at 30 September 2021.   
 
The Cabinet member for finance highlighted the revenue and capital spend during the first 
six months of the 2021/22 financial year.  Based on expenditure in those six months, there 
was a forecasted year end revenue underspend of £2.7 million, the details of which were set 
out in Appendix 1 to the report, and the carry forwards request were set out in Appendix 2.  
The report also showed that there had been £3.2 million spent from the £7.4 million capital 
programme.   
 
RESOLVED: to note the head of finance’s budget monitoring report.   
 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council - Cabinet Minutes - Monday, 20 December 2021 

73 Budget 2022/23  
 

Cabinet members received the head of finance’s report.  This informed of progress made in 
preparing the revenue budget for 2022/23 and the capital programme for 2022/23 to 
2026/27.  The report also set out the funding issues that would need to be considered when 
Cabinet made its budget proposals to Council in February 2022.   
 
The Cabinet member for finance reminded councillors that the budget set in 2021/22 
required the use of reserves, which would be unsustainable over the five-year medium term 
financial plan period.  This had resulted from council tax being low and the council’s inability 
to increase it sufficiently.  Also, the council had not benefitted under the government’s 
business rates retention scheme.  Although the council had benefitted from the new homes 
bonus scheme, government income from this was expected to be less generous in future.  
The government’s settlement had been published; however, it was a one-year only 
settlement, with future years’ funding unknown.  Also, the 1.254 per cent increase in the 
council’s National Insurance liability had not been funded separately.  Together, these 
issues made it more difficult to plan ahead and to balance the medium term financial plan 
over the five year period.   
 
In recent months, officers had reviewed the base budget requirement to reduce the net 
expenditure budget for 2022/23, whilst maintaining service levels.  The review had resulted 
in the base budget for 2022/23 being reduced.  This meant that the medium term financial 
plan could be balanced for four of the five years.  At this stage there was no need for 
service cuts in 2022/23.  However, Cabinet had not yet made any growth or further savings 
proposals, which would affect the budget position.  Cabinet would consider the budget again 
at its meeting on 4 February 2022, when it would recommend the budget to Council for 
adoption.   
 
Cabinet members welcomed the report but were disappointed that the council had only 
been given a one-year government settlement and that this did not include the council’s 
increase in National Insurance liability.  Members welcomed the revenue base budget 
review, which had found significant savings, and thanked all officers for their work on this.  It 
was recognised that there could be additional financial pressures on the council over the 
next few weeks as it responded to the changes in the Covid-19 pandemic.  The council 
would have to tackle these demands as they arose.  Members also hoped to see the 
strategic property review and the procurement strategy bringing financial gains for the 
council in the future.   
 
The chief executive placed on record his thanks to Cabinet members for their work and 
understanding on the budget pressures, and in particular thanked the Cabinet member for 
finance for his support.   
 
RESOLVED: to note the head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 20 December 2021.   
 

 
 

The meeting closed at 10.53 am 

Page 12



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Policy and Programmes 

Author: Michelle Wells 

Telephone: 07917 088341 

E-mail: michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr. Catherine Webber 

Tel: 01235 534001 

E-mail: catherine.webber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: Cabinet 

Date: 4 February 2022 

 

 

Climate Action Plan 

Recommendation 

That Cabinet notes the development of and approves the attached Climate Action Plan 
for adoption and implementation. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To describe the development process and contents of the Climate Action Plan and to 
request that Cabinet approves the plan for adoption and implementation. 

Corporate Objectives  

2. This Plan is the key delivery vehicle for demonstrating our commitment to the 
Corporate Plan objective of Tackling the Climate Emergency and our target of 
becoming a carbon neutral council by 2030, with a 75 per cent emissions reduction by 
2025.  

3. Our Corporate Plan states that we will implement a Climate Emergency programme, 
focussed on what the council has control over, working towards our targets for our own 
buildings, vehicles, leisure and arts centres. 

Background 

1. The aim of the Plan is to set out actions and outputs to reach our desired outcome and 
target of being carbon neutral in our own operations whilst also communicating and 
engaging with our communities on the Climate Emergency. Improvements to our 
service provision and engagement with our communities will also have an impact on 
reducing district wide emissions. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7

mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catherine.webber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2. It should be recognised that this Climate Action Plan is one piece of a much larger 
picture, consisting of national, regional and other local initiatives and plans. It is also 
often highlighted that there are many co-benefits of climate action, these can include, 
health and well-being, cleaner air, improved work-life balance, warmer and more 
energy efficient homes, new employment opportunities and reduced flooding. 

3. The Climate Action Plan will be owned by, and delivered across, all council services. In 
preparing the plan, individual meetings were held with Heads of Service to develop and 
agree the actions. We also carried out a review of local and national best practice from 
other local authorities and publications from Friends of the Earth.  

4. In order to demonstrate the council’s commitment to openness and accountability 
progress on the actions and outputs in the plan will be reported quarterly in line with the 
corporate performance management framework and presented to CEAC. The council’s 
greenhouse gas emissions will also be reported and published annually.  

5. The plan has been designed to be a rolling one to allow for changing circumstances in 
an emergency situation. Therefore, the Climate Action Plan is a live document, where 
quarterly progress reporting may facilitate the reprioritisation or refocusing of actions by 
Cabinet where necessary. 

6. CEAC members have been engaged during the development of the Plan, with early 
drafts being shared and have contributed individual feedback. CEAC members also 
participated in a drop-in session on 8 December 2021 to discuss the Climate Action 
Plan and the approach to its development. It has also been reviewed at the CEAC 
meeting on 10 January 2022. 

7. It should also be noted that, The Future Oxfordshire Partnership (FOP) is currently 
exploring a delivery plan for the Pathways to a Zero Carbon Oxfordshire report which 
will support our work to reduce district wide emissions. Many actions to tackle district 
wide emissions are best approached at a county level to achieve economies of scale 
and maximise the opportunities for communication. Officers and Members through the 
Environment Advisory Group (EAG) will continue to work through the FOP in tackling 
district wide emissions at scale, in tandem with the implementation of this Plan.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

8. This Climate Action Plan sets out a detailed programme of work for reducing the 
council’s carbon emissions across all service teams. 

Financial Implications 

9. The Climate Action Plan includes an introduction by the Head of Finance which sets 
the scene in terms of council financing and how climate is a priority balanced with other 
factors. Partnership working and external funding will be needed to deliver all actions in 
the Plan. Any projects undertaken as a result of this plan will go through the formal 
process in the Corporate Delivery Framework to ensure budgetary requirements are 
assessed at each level. 

 

Legal Implications 

10. Individual actions will have legal implications. These will be considered as projects are 
brought forward through the council’s Corporate Delivery Framework. 

Page 14



Risks 

11. There will be risks associated with individual actions and these will be considered as 
projects are brought forward through the council’s Corporate Delivery Framework. 

Conclusion 

12. This report presents the council’s Climate Action Plan and recommends it for approval, 
adoption and implementation. 

Appendix 

 Draft Climate Action Plan 

Page 15



Climate 
Action Plan 
for Vale of White Horse 
District Council

2022-2024

District Council

P
age 16



Foreword
We are really proud to present our Climate Action Plan for 2022-2024.  Tackling the climate emergency is a priority for us and this Plan sets out how we will achieve our target of becoming carbon 
neutral by 2030, with a 75 per cent reduction in emissions by 2025.  Actions in the Plan focus on how carbon emissions will be reduced from our services and ways of working by embedding climate 
considerations throughout, how we will provide our staff with training and skills to integrate carbon reduction in their work, how we will manage our buildings and land by using sustainable best practices, 
and how important it is to work with our partners and communities to tackle the climate emergency across our district to strengthen our impact.  

Our Climate Action Plan is a specific commitment in our Corporate Plan 2020-24. During the engagement on our Corporate Plan residents told us that tackling the Climate Emergency was really 
important to them which is why our Corporate Plan prioritises climate action through the theme of tackling the climate emergency, and embeds sustainability throughout the other themes.  Not only 
will the Climate Action Plan improve our council operations and services for residents, it will also contribute to the urgent global climate change agenda, which we were so recently reminded of at 
COP26 in Glasgow, as well as the UK’s net zero targets,.  We also look forward to working in partnership across the county to address our wider district wide emissions, further contributing to UK 
and international targets.

While a lot of climate action is taking place at the global and national scale, we must also recognise that during the development of this plan, we experienced, and are still living through, the Covid-19 
pandemic.  The pandemic posed many challenges and impacted the livelihoods of many.  Changes as a result of the pandemic have also had positive outcomes for the environment including reduced 
travel, shopping locally, and enjoying our surrounding nature, all of which contribute to lowering carbon emissions.

Over the past years we have seen a lot of climate action in our communities.  This has included setting up repair cafes and refill stations, planting trees and community gardens.  We are grateful for all 
the work our communities are doing and we will continue to support this work and hope to further build these relationships.  

We are lucky to live in a district with green and open spaces and we want to continue to provide a place for our communities to thrive.  While we live in a beautiful environment, we are experiencing 
extreme weather conditions, including flooding, heavy rainfall and hot summers, affecting some residents more than others.  Ensuring our policies and plans have climate action at their core will help to 
address and hopefully improve these situations.

Cllr Catherine Webber
Cabinet Member for Climate 

Emergency and Environment

Cllr. David Grant
Chair of Climate Emergency Advisory 

Committee (CEAC)

Cllr Emily Smith
Leader of Vale of White Horse 

District Council

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 1

 

P
age 17

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/corporate-plan/
http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


Welcome from Simon Hewings, Head of Finance, 
Vale of White Horse District Council
This Climate Action Plan comes at an interesting time for us – with council budgets more constrained than ever, especially in the midst of the 
Covid-19 pandemic, addressing the climate emergency will be a challenge.  As a council we continue to focus on providing core services for 
our residents as well as the wellbeing and resilience of our communities, our economic prosperity, and now taking climate action.  

Financial implications are at the core of our decision making, and whilst this will always be a priority for us, climate considerations also need to 
be included to ensure we reach our carbon neutral targets.  All our report writing templates will include a climate implications section to ensure 
we have considered the environmental impact of our work.  

This Plan has been written in collaboration across the council to ensure that the actions are honest, feasible and realistic, while also 
pushing us to make changes and improvements to our services.  I have reviewed the actions and believe that through the skills and 
experience of our staff, working in partnership, lobbying government on this issue, and seeking external funding, we will be able to make 
an impact locally on this global issue.  

We will continue to be open and accountable in all areas of work, this will also apply to how we monitor the progress of our Climate 
Action Plan and being upfront about any challenges we face. The Plan will be monitored closely by officers and councillors to ensure we 
are on track to meet our carbon neutral targets.   

Introduction
The purpose of this Climate Action Plan is to outline how the Vale of White Horse District Council will meet its target of becoming a 
carbon neutral council by 2030, with a 75 per cent reduction in carbon emissions by 2025.  This plan focuses on the council’s own 
emissions to ensure our operations and service provision are carbon neutral by our target date, leading by example before focusing on 
our district target to be carbon neutral by 2045, with a 75 per cent reduction in carbon emissions by 2030.    

This Plan presents a set of actions that will help us achieve our target of carbon neutrality through direct initiatives 
using our statutory powers, strategic policymaking, or by enabling behaviours and working with others.   
Our vision is for climate action to be embedded throughout all our ways of working and services, to support  
our communities to do the same, and to work in partnership to make a greater impact on our target.

This Plan first provides policy context to set the scene for climate action globally, nationally and locally, including 
our climate actions so far, followed by an outline of our strategic approach to climate action, our reporting 
methods and then our action plan.

Carbon neutral, 
or ‘net zero carbon’, 

means there is a balance 
between the carbon 

emissions released into the 
atmosphere and the amount 

of carbon emissions 
removed from the 

atmosphere.

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 2

P
age 18

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


Policy Context
There are a range of global, national, regional and local policies setting guidance and targets for taking climate action.

Internationally, the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) is the United Nations entity responsible for 
responding to climate change, and oversees the implementation of the Paris Agreement.  The Paris Agreement is a legally binding 
international treaty on climate change which aims to limit the global temperature increase in this century to 2 degrees Celsius, 
preferably to 1.5 degrees Celsius, above preindustrial levels.  It is a landmark treaty as it was adopted by 196 Parties, including the 
UK, at COP21 in Paris in 2015, bringing nations together to tackle climate change.  At COP26 in 2021, the Glasgow Climate Pact 
urged for more urgent action and financing to meet the goals of the Paris Agreements.  Along with this agreement, the UN adopted 
the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) in 2015 which are a global urgent call to action to achieve a better and more sustainable 
future for all by 2030.  Climate change is embedded throughout the goals, and is specifically addressed in goal 13, take urgent action 
to combat climate change and its impacts.

Nationally, the Climate Change Act 2008, updated in 2019, commits the UK to a 100 per cent reduction in carbon emissions, or net-
zero, by 2050.  The Act also resulted in the formation of the Committee on Climate Change (CCC) which is an advisory committee to 
the government on climate. In 2021 the Government published its Net Zero Strategy: Build Back Greener which outlines how the UK 
will manage its carbon budgets and sets out the UK’s vision for a decarbonised economy by 2050.  The Environment Act 2021 sets 
legislation to protect and enhance our environment, including policies around waste and recycling, air quality and water resources.  

Regionally, the Pathways to zero carbon Oxfordshire (Pazco) report was published in 2021 to address how Oxfordshire can achieve net-
zero emissions by 2050.   There are also policy documents on specific sectors including the Oxfordshire Energy Strategy, which outlines 
how the county will be at the forefront of energy innovation to foster clean growth to reduce countywide emissions by 50 per cent by 2030 
(compared to 2008 levels) and set a pathway to achieve zero carbon growth by 2050, and the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 which outlines how 
new homes and infrastructure will be developed across the county while helping to tackle climate change.  As a council, we have also 
signed up to One Planet Oxfordshire, a co-created vision and action plan on the future of a more sustainable Oxfordshire.

Locally, as a council we declared a climate emergency in February 2019.  As a result of these declarations, we set our targets to: 

•  Be carbon neutral within our own operations by 2030, with an aim for a 75 per cent reduction in carbon emissions in 
our own operations by 2025

•  Be a carbon neutral district by 2045, with an aim for a 75 per cent reduction in carbon emissions in the district by 2030

Our Climate Emergency Advisory Committee (CEAC) was formed in October 2019 to advise on matters relating to the climate and 
ecological crises, and to recommend actions, policies and practices to reduce damage to the environment to Cabinet.

Climate action was also identified as a priority in our Corporate Plan 2020-2024, with one of the six themes within the Plan being 
tackling the climate emergency. Work to address the climate emergency is also integrated throughout other themes of the Corporate 
Plan. Publishing this Climate Action Plan is one of the projects within the Plan. The Climate Action Plan runs in line with the dates of the 
Corporate Plan and contributes to our strategic vision and operations as a council.

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 3

P
age 19

https://unfccc.int
https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement/the-paris-agreement
https://sdgs.un.org/goals
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/27/contents
https://www.theccc.org.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1033990/net-zero-strategy-beis.pdf
https://bills.parliament.uk/bills/2593
https://www.eci.ox.ac.uk/research/energy/pathways-to-a-zero-carbon-oxfordshire-report.html
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/energystrategy
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/action-on-climate-and-nature/climate-emergency-advisory-committee/
http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


Our Journey So Far
While this is our first Climate Action Plan, we have already implemented a number of projects and policies that address the climate 
emergency, including: 

The publication of our 
tree policy for planting 
trees on council land, 
supporting the increase 
of tree planting across 
our districts 

Incorporating carbon 
neutral and sustainable 
features throughout our 
design guide 

Create a Climate Action Fund 
to accelerate local action

The 2021 town and 
parish forum focused 
on ‘climate action – how 
can we take action 
together’ with the aim 
to hear from town and 
parish councils on how 
they would like to see 
the climate emergency 
addressed and what 
climate action they are 
taking locally

Staff contracts have been 
updated to support working 
from home from a climate 
and covid safe perspective

We have partnered 
with Oxfordshire 
Greentech to support 
local businesses 
to reduce carbon 
emissions 

We are implementing 
flood alleviation 
schemes to combat 
risks arising from 
climate change

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 4

P
age 20

https://www.southandvale.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/South-Oxfordshire-and-Vale-of-White-Horse-Policy-for-Planting-Trees-on-Council-Owned-Land-1.pdf
https://www.southandvale.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/South-Oxfordshire-and-Vale-of-White-Horse-Policy-for-Planting-Trees-on-Council-Owned-Land-1.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/urban-design/building-and-development-design-our-design-guide/
https://www.svbs.co.uk/oxfordshire-greentech-partnership/
https://www.svbs.co.uk/oxfordshire-greentech-partnership/
http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


Measuring and Reporting
To measure our progress in achieving our carbon neutral targets, we divided the actions in this Plan into strategic, direct and enabling actions: 

These three categories provide us with the methodology to review our reduction in carbon emissions over the next three years.  The Plan also includes the specific reporting measures we will be monitoring 
for progress of each action, including the reporting type of the measure, whether they will be reported on through narrative, narrative with quantitative elements, or quantitative updates. Progress on actions 
will be monitored quarterly in line with the Council’s Corporate Performance Management Framework, and will be reviewed at each CEEAC meeting and reported to Cabinet.  Reviewing progress on the 
actions quarterly will allow us to keep track of the short- and long-term implementation, progress and outcomes of each action.  Annually, the council’s greenhouse gas emissions report will be reviewed to 
see the reduction in our overall carbon emissions, monitoring our progress to reach our carbon neutral target.

It is important to note that this Plan is based on national policies and strategies at the time of writing. We hope that those policies and strategies will change over the course of this Plan to include higher, more 
ambitious standards and therefore some of our actions may be superseded.  

The Plan
The below table presents the actions the council will take to reduce its carbon emissions 2022-24.  The plan has been divided into seven themes to categorise the actions. These themes are:  

Theme Goal

Our ways of working To make climate action inherent in all the council’s work by designing and updating our policies, strategies and 
governance with the climate emergency at their core

Our service delivery To plan and deliver services to our residents in ways that reduce carbon emissions and prepare our district for 
future ways of living

Our people To create a culture of climate action amongst staff and councillors in the workplace

Our land To approach our land management with sustainable and climate-friendly best practices 

Our buildings To decarbonise our buildings and their operations to ensure they are fit for the future

Our communities To guide and support the district’s businesses, voluntary sector and communities to take action on the climate 
emergency 

Our partners To work in partnership to reduce carbon emissions across the districts and support county-wide initiatives, 
making a greater impact together

Action 
category

Explanation Measuring method 

Strategic

Strategic actions are those which change our approach to work and the provision of our services to reach our carbon 
neutral targets, and these changes will result in reductions in carbon emissions over time.  These actions include updates 
to policy and strategy documents to better address the climate emergency, embedding climate considerations in decision 
making, and providing training to staff to create behaviour change in our ways of working.  

While it will be difficult to measure the specific reductions 
in carbon emissions from each strategic action, overall 
reductions in the council’s carbon emissions will be seen 
over time in our annual carbon emission baseline report as 
a result of taking these actions.

Direct
The results of these actions will produce a quantifiable reduction in carbon emissions from implementing a specific project 
or making a direct change to a service.  For example, we will be able to measure the reduction in our carbon emissions 
from swapping to electric vehicles, or from implementing a new waste management contract. 

Emissions from direct actions will be calculated using the 
glidepath tool, where we will be able to specifically measure 
the change in emissions over time.

Enabling
Enabling actions are those where we are encouraging and supporting behaviour change across our district by sharing 
information, advice and guidance.  These actions will contribute to an overall reduction in carbon emissions across the 
council and district.

We will see the impact of our enabling actions through an 
overall reduction in carbon emissions in our annual carbon 
emissions baseline report.

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 5

P
age 21

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


Vale of White Horse District Council Greenhouse Gas Emissions 2019/20

Total Greenhouse
Gas Emissions

Waste Collection

35.1%

Leisure

51.0%

Other Council Properties

5.3%

Service Contracts

3.7%

Staff and Cllr Mileage

1.5%

Council Offices

3.4%

Strategic Approach
This plan focuses on how we will reduce carbon emissions from our own operations to 
make us a carbon neutral council.  Our approach to this work is guided by our data and five 
principles, outlined below.

Our Data
Looking at our council carbon emission data from our baseline year 2019/20, around half 
of our emissions come from our four leisure centres, while over one third of our carbon 
emissions come from our waste collection services.  It is vital that we tackle our leisure and 
waste emissions to make the biggest impact on our carbon neutral target, which is reflected 
in specific actions in this Plan. Other emitters include staff and councillor mileage, our 
offices and properties, and other service contracts, which are also addressed in actions in 
this plan. 

In addition to the quantitative data, we have used qualitative data to develop this plan, 
including feedback from the Corporate Plan consultation with residents in August 2020, 
where the climate emergency featured heavily, and from discussions on taking climate 
action at the Town and Parish Forums held in May 2021.  

Our Principles
This Plan is guided by five principles, which we will embed in our approach to climate action as an organisation and were used to develop the actions in this plan.  We will use these principles as a 
benchmark for future plans and policies we develop and will also use them to inform current projects.  The five principles are:

Source: Vale of White Horse District Council Greenhouse Gas emissions report 2019/2020

Political commitment to climate 
action

Political will locally and regionally to drive reductions in carbon emissions is critical in the absence of a statutory duty on local authorities to take climate action.  
This commitment is evident at Vale of White Horse through the dedicated position of a cabinet member for climate emergency and environment. This position has 
a responsibility to ensure that this commitment is embedded across all actions and plans and that climate implications in decisions are considered and examined.
Driving forward this commitment to climate action will be vital going forward to make progress on our carbon neutral targets.

Putting climate action at the 
heart of our decision making

Having climate considerations at the core of our decision making, policies and ways of working is vital so that we create an organisational culture that lasts not 
just during the lifetime of this Plan but beyond.

Working in partnership across 
the districts and county

Climate Action needs everybody. We acknowledge that we cannot do this alone and there is collective strength in working in partnership to make a greater 
impact regionally, by pooling our resources and influence together.

Commitment to inclusive 
engagement 

Addressing the climate emergency is a continual process and we need to ensure that our ongoing climate actions and communications meet the different needs 
of our communities and environment and are accessible and engaging for all. 

Influencing and providing advice Our engagement opportunities and activities are two-fold: influencing our government to lobby for national changes required to help us achieve our targets and 
providing advice to our communities, including our residents and businesses, to support their climate action journeys.

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 6

P
age 22

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our ways of working

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Update the Corporate Delivery Framework to include 
considerations for climate impact and carbon emissions WOW1 Narrative

Report on the climate impact and carbon emission 
considerations included in the Corporate Delivery Framework 
providing examples

strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Implement internal governance to progress and monitor 
the Climate Action Plan WOW2 Narrative

Update on the internal governance including its structure and 
approach to progressing and monitoring the Climate Action 
Plan

strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Publish an internal toolkit with guidance for staff on 
how to assess the climate implications of projects and 
proposals

WOW3 Narrative
Update on the content of the toolkit and examples of projects 
and proposal that have used learning from the toolkit for the 
climate implications section of reports

strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Develop and implement measures for monitoring 
procurement contracts based on carbon emissions and 
climate action

WOW4 Narrative
Update on monitoring of procurement contracts based on 
carbon emissions and climate action, providing examples of 
relevant contracts

strategic Head of Finance
Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Update the contract evaluation quality scoring 
procedure to include carbon reduction criteria WOW5 Narrative

Report on how the contract evaluation quality scoring criteria 
has been updated to include carbon reduction criteria, 
providing examples of relevant awarded contracts

direct Head of Finance
Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Deliver staff training on the Procurement Strategy which 
includes understanding of carbon reduction objectives 
and criterion

WOW6
Narrative with 
quantitative  
elements 

Percentage of staff who completed the procurement 
training quarterly / report on how the training has impacted 
procurement contracts, providing relevant examples

strategic Head of Finance
Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Conduct a review of all report writing templates, adding 
a climate implications section where missing WOW7

Narrative with 
quantitative  
elements 

Percentage of report writing templates that include a climate 
implications section / narrative on the updates to report 
writing templates

strategic Head of Finance Leader of the Council

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 7

P
age 23

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our ways of working

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Divest direct investments from environmentally harmful 
activities where possible, whilst protecting the security of 
tax-payer funds

WOW8 Narrative Narrative update on the introduction of the investment 
strategy and subsequent decision-making around investing strategic Head of Finance

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Incorporate a policy statement on environment/social/
governance factors in the financial implications section 
of reports 

WOW9 Narrative Update on the statement included in council templates under 
financial implications strategic Head of Finance

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Engage with the council's investment portfolio to ask 
for and review their carbon reduction plans as part of 
decision making for the treasury management strategy

WOW10
Narrative with 
quantitative  
elements 

Number of investment portfolios reviewed for their carbon 
reduction plans / narrative on any changes in investments 
based on investment portfolio carbon reduction plans / 
percentage of council portfolio in Paris Agreement aligned 
companies

strategic Head of Finance
Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Review internal audit processes and where appropriate 
include risk considerations for the climate emergency WOW11 Narrative Report on how the internal audit processes have been 

updated to include carbon emission considerations strategic Head of Finance
Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Refine criteria for community infrastructure levy (CIL) 
funding to maximise opportunities for including carbon 
reduction measures in projects and supporting climate 
action projects 

WOW12
Narrative with 
quantitative  
elements 

Narrative update on CIL spend to support the delivery of 
local infrastructure 
 
Quantitative elements - Total CIL spend and spend break 
down"

strategic
Head of Policy and 
Programmes / Head 
of Finance

Cabinet Member 
Development and 
Infrastructure

Promote community infrastructure levy (CIL) criteria 
to all relevant staff to ensure they maximise carbon 
emission reductions in all CIL projects

WOW13
Narrative with 
quantitative  
elements 

Percentage of CIL projects that include carbon emission 
reduction considerations/ relevant project proposals, 
providing examples

strategic
Head of Policy and 
Programmes / Head 
of Finance

Cabinet Member 
Development and 
Infrastructure

Include more ambitious climate criteria in the conditions 
of our affordable housing grant funding WOW14 Narrative

Updates on changes to the climate criteria of the affordable 
housing grant funding and how this has impacted new 
affordable housing developments, providing examples

strategic
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
Development and 
Infrastructure

Include policies in the Joint Local Plan that will help 
deliver zero carbon development and encourage more 
sustainable choices

WOW15 Narrative Narrative update on sustainable and net zero planning 
policies being developed and included in the emerging JLP strategic Head of Policy and 

Programmes

Cabinet Member 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 8

P
age 24

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our ways of working

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Produce an options paper for setting up a carbon 
offsetting scheme for developers as part of the new 
Joint Local Plan

WOW16 Narrative Report on options paper development and suggested ways 
forward direct Head of Planning

Cabinet Member 
Development and 
Infrastructure

Produce an options paper for pool electric vehicles for 
use by council staff to reduce emissions from business 
mileage, implementing if approved 

WOW17 Narrative
Update on the development of options paper for piloting pool 
electric vehicles, including on the carbon emission savings 
and decision making progress

direct Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Develop and implement an internal communications plan 
to keep staff updated on climate action work, including 
useful advice and guidance on how to incorporate 
climate action into projects and programmes

WOW18
Narrative with 
quantitative  
elements 

Data on the number of internal communications campaigns 
on climate action work and a narrative update on the type of 
information shared and any feedback from staff on the use of 
the information

enabling Head of Corporate 
Services  

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Move to a digital by default approach for virtual 
meetings where possible given the current conditions 
around decision making in Local Government 

WOW19 Quantitative Percentage of virtual meetings taken place, benchmark to 
include CEAC, Scrutiny, Cabinet and Council meetings direct Head of Finance Leader of the Council

Improve our use of existing technology to move to 
digital by default working WOW20

Narrative with 
quantitative  
elements 

Update on the use of technology for meetings; data on 
percentage of MFD printing direct Head of Corporate 

Services 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Develop and implement an anti-idling policy for staff and 
contractors on council business, to ensure engines are 
turned off when appropriate

WOW21 Narrative Update on the development of the policy and examples of 
anti-idling implementation from staff and contractors direct

Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member for 
Climate Emergency 
and Environment

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 9

P
age 25

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our service delivery

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

a) Prepare new waste management approach to align 
with provisions of the Environment Bill SD1 Narrative

Narrative report to outline steps to influence 
partners and our actions to reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                      
                         

direct Head of Housing and 
Environment

Cabinet Member 
Climate Emergency 
and Environment

b) Specify new waste management contract with route 
optimisation, collection frequency and vehicle size to 
minimise carbon emissions

SD2 Narrative direct Head of Housing and 
Environment

Cabinet Member 
Climate Emergency 
and Environment

c) Trial electric refuse vehicles and other relevant 
vehicle options, to identify the most suitable vehicles for 
reducing carbon emissions whilst maintaining service 
delivery 

SD3 Narrative direct Head of Housing and 
Environment

Cabinet Member 
Climate Emergency 
and Environment

d) Replace end of life waste collection vehicles with 
electric fleet where range available allows SD4 Narrative direct

Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
Climate Emergency 
and Environment

Explore opportunities for a new waste depot including 
research into renewable energy supplies SD5 Narrative Update on proposals for a new waste depot, including 

potential carbon reduction figures direct Head of Housing and 
Environment

Cabinet Member 
Climate Emergency 
and Environment

Develop a business case and implement a delivery plan 
for council vehicles to be zero emission by 2025, where 
available on the market

SD6
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Data on potential carbon reduction savings from switching 
vehicles to zero emission; narrative report on business case 
development and delivery plan for doing so, including market 
options for EVs

direct Head of Housing and 
Environment

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 10

P
age 26

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our service delivery

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Install electric vehicle (EV) charge points in council 
depot and other locations as necessary to meet needs of 
council fleet 

SD7
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Data on the number of EV charge points installed for use 
by council fleet; narrative update on the location of the EV 
charge points and how they meet the needs of the council 
fleet

direct
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Feedback on planning applications to include 
signposting to information sources to improve the 
energy efficiency of proposals 

SD8 Quantitative Data on the percentage of applications that include sign 
posting to energy efficiency advice enabling Head of Planning

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Update the council planning and development 
webpages to signpost to advice on energy efficiency 
considerations for inclusion in planning applications

SD9
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Update on the energy efficiency information provided on the 
council webpages; data on the number of clicks on the links enabling Head of Planning

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Work with our town and parish councils who are 
developing projects that reduce carbon emissions 
locally by providing advice on planning permissions 
needed for their projects to be a success

SD10
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Report on support provided to town and parish councils on 
their carbon reduction projects; data on number of carbon 
emissions reduction projects submitted by town and parish 
councils

enabling Head of Planning
Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Support the implementation of the air quality action plan 
across the district SD11

Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Narrative containing updates/changes to AQ monitoring 
techniques, an update on work with partners to monitor AQ 
and details of published AQ measures

strategic Head of Housing and 
Environment

Cabinet Member 
Climate Emergency 
and Environment

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 11

P
age 27

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our people

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Provide all-staff and councillor training on the council's 
climate action plan and carbon literacy P1

Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Data on percentage of staff that have taken the climate 
action plan training; narrative on how staff have integrated 
the training into their work, using case studies 

strategic Head of Corporate 
Services  

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Provide enhanced specialist training on latest carbon 
reduction or climate action approaches to relevant staff 
and councillors

P2
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Data on percentage of specialist training delivered to staff; 
narrative on how staff identify the training they need and how 
they have used the training in their work 

strategic

Head of Corporate 
Services  / Head 
of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Ensure there is relevant skill and capacity to support 
grant application writing and bidding for climate related 
funds, maximising the opportunities to include carbon 
emissions reductions and energy efficiency in all 
projects

P3
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Dedicated bid writing resource secured; 
Data on the number of applications to grants and funds 
that relate to climate action and carbon emission reduction; 
narrative report on grant writing skills and training that has 
taken place to maximise opportunities on bid writing

strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Implement a green travel plan for all staff and 
councillors, including a digital by default approach 
where possible to reduce travel

P4
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Data on staff mileage once this plan is implemented and 
narrative report on the changes to staff travel as a result of 
the plan

direct Head of Corporate 
Services  

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Set up green champions network for interested staff to 
support climate work P5 Narrative

Report on outcomes of green champion network meetings, 
including case studies of green champions to highlight key 
areas of work and impact of the champions

strategic Head of Corporate 
Services  

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Incorporate climate action opportunities within council 
volunteering scheme for staff P6

Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Data on the number of climate action opportunities within 
council volunteering scheme and data on the number of take 
up of these opportunities; case studies from staff on how 
they have engaged with this opportunity

strategic Head of Corporate 
Services 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 12

P
age 28

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our land

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Following the grounds maintenance operational review, 
update grounds maintenance operations to enhance 
biodiversity and tree cover including considering the 
need for mowing, opportunities to allow for wilding, and 
reducing the use of pesticides and herbicides where 
possible

L1 Narrative
Report sharing the updates to the grounds maintenance 
operations that address the climate emergency and how they 
support biodiversity 

direct
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Identify sites for new tree planting and wilding 
opportunities on our land or through partnership 
opportunities on privately owned land to support natural 
carbon capture

L2 Narrative Report on identification of sites for new tree planting 
opportunities, including plans to plant trees on these sites direct

Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Prepare a business case and, if approved, implement a 
local renewable energy project, such as a solar farm, to 
address unavoidable council emissions

L3
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Data on the amount of renewable energy produced and 
emissions offset; narrative update on the progression 
of plans for this project and how the renewable energy 
produced neutralises council emissions

direct
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Deliver the Park and Charge scheme, installing EV 
charge points in our car parks, in partnership with 
Oxfordshire County Council 

L4
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Data on the number of EV charge points installed in council 
car parks; narrative update on the partnership approach for 
delivering this project

direct 
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Develop an options paper for installing public EV 
charging points on additional council premises, 
including funding sources available

L5
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Update on the business case development for installing 
public EV charging points; data on energy use of the points, 
including how much charge they provide to EVs 

direct
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 13

P
age 29

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our buildings

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

a) Complete energy efficiency and site decarbonisation 
assessments for all leisure centres B1

Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Data on the energy efficiency of all leisure centres; narrative 
report on site decarbonisation assessments, with projections 
for how the sites will be decarbonised 

direct Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

b) Following site assessments of leisure centres, 
prepare for external funding opportunities, including 
soft market testing

B1
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Narrative update as to current initiatives to increase external 
funding for Council activities, with details of additional 
resources committed to support these activities 
 
Specific elements which should be included - proportion of 
spend on leisure/community facilities vs amount funded by 
Council; externally funded Capital schemes; total external 
funding received figure"

direct Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

a) Complete energy efficiency and site decarbonisation 
assessments for all non-leisure operational properties B2

Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Data on the energy efficiency of all non-leisure centres; 
narrative report on site decarbonisation assessments, with 
projections for how the sites will be decarbonised 

direct Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 14

P
age 30

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our buildings

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

b) Prepare for external funding opportunities for non-
leisure properties, particularly properties with an end-
of-use heating plant, including carrying out soft market 
testing

B2
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Narrative update as to current initiatives to increase external 
funding for Council activities, with details of additional 
resources committed to support these activities 
 
Specific elements which should be included - proportion of 
spend on leisure/community facilities vs amount funded by 
Council; externally funded Capital schemes; total external 
funding received figure"

direct Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Include carbon and energy reduction targets in 
management plans for the monitoring of site operations 
including all leisure centres to enforce and encourage 
low carbon operational behaviour in council assets

B3
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements 

Report on the changes to the carbon and energy reduction 
targets in the criteria for monitoring operations and report on 
the changes to operational procedures to meet carbon and 
energy reduction targets; data on carbon emissions from 
operations

direct
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Develop a policy to agree an energy efficiency standard 
for new asset acquisitions and council owned builds B4 Narrative

Update on the development of the energy efficiency 
standards policy for new asset acquisitions and builds, 
including case studies of how this has been implemented

direct
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
for Finance and 
Corporate Assets

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 15

P
age 31

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our communities

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Implement an external communications plan which 
shares updates on the climate action work undertaken 
by the council, and advice and guidance to residents, 
businesses and the voluntary and community sector on 
reducing carbon emissions. To include:

C1 Narrative 

Narrative update on comms and engagement activities 
which interface with communities, schools and other local 

organisations
enabling

Head of Corporate 
Services 

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

(a) Advice and guidance on circular economy principles 
and how to implement them, especially for businesses 
and the voluntary and community sector

C1 Narrative Head of Corporate 
Services 

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

(b) Advice and guidance on energy efficiency of 
operations, including consideration for delivery 
options and the energy efficiency of buildings used by 
businesses and the voluntary and community sector 

C1 Narrative Head of Corporate 
Services 

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

(c) Share climate friendly lifestyle changes, including 
ways to make homes more energy efficient C1 Narrative Head of Corporate 

Services 

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

(d) Promote climate funding opportunities for 
businesses, voluntary and community sectors, and 
residents

C1 Narrative Head of Corporate 
Services 

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

(e) Promote community sharing and reuse to reduce 
waste and unnecessary consumption C1 Narrative Head of Corporate 

Services 

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

(f) Promote relevant housing energy efficiency schemes, 
including grants, to residents, landlords and housing 
associations

C1 Narrative Head of Corporate 
Services 

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 16

P
age 32

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our communities

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Include in Community Employment Plans considerations 
for addressing the councils climate neutral targets 
through commitments such as green skills training, 
sourcing through a local and sustainable supply chain, 
supporting local social enterprises and charities and 
accessing local employment

C2
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Update on the conditions of Community Employment Plans 
that address the climate emergency and how they are 
being implemented by developers; data on the number of 
Community Employment Plans implemented with conditions 
that address the climate emergency

strategic
Head of 
Development and 
Corporate Landlord

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Support communities with their neighbourhood 
planning by providing up-to-date advice and guidance 
on climate measures and actions, encouraging climate 
considerations to be at the core of neighbourhood plans

C3
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Data on the number of neighbourhood plans developed; 
Narrative update on the types of climate actions incorporated 
into neighbourhood plans

enabling Head of Policy and 
Programmes 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation 

Support taxi drivers in switching to electric vehicles, 
including reviewing options to incentivise the switch 
through fees and charges

C4
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Data on the number of taxi drivers driving electric vehicles 
and narrative update on the support to taxi drivers for doing 
so

enabling Head of Housing and 
Environment

Cabinet Member 
Healthy Communities

Organise quarterly climate focused network meetings for 
town and parish councils, and voluntary and community 
organisations, linking with existing networks

C5
Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Data on number of meetings held; narrative update on the 
agendas, outcomes and actions from the meetings enabling Head of Corporate 

Services  

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 17

P
age 33

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our partners

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

Build relationships with town and parish councils to 
support and encourage their climate action initiatives OP1 Narrative Update on how the council has worked with town and parish 

councils on climate action initiatives, including case studies strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes 

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Identify areas in our community that are most vulnerable 
to the effects of climate change to ensure they are 
properly supported and protected to promote wider 
community wellbeing

OP2 Narrative

Update on the identification of areas most vulnerable to the 
effects of climate change and how the council has supported 
them to adapt to these changes, including through initiatives 
such as Better Housing Better Health

strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Work with Oxfordshire County Council to support active 
and sustainable travel infrastructure initiatives OP3

Narrative with 
quantitative 
elements

Narrative update on progress toward completion of map, 
once map completed, this should transition to an annual 
review of the accuracy of map                                                                     

direct Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Work with the Oxfordshire Future Partnership on a 
county-wide approach to reducing carbon emissions, 
building on the strategic vision and Pathways to Zero 
Carbon Oxfordshire

OP4 Narrative

Update on progress on Oxfordshire Future Partnerhip's 
county-wide approach to reducing carbon emissions, 
including examples of projects and programmes that 
address the strategic vision and Pathways to Zero Carbon 
Oxfordshire

strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
for Strategic 
Partnerships and 
Place

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 18

P
age 34

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


The Plan    Our partners

Actions CAP ID Reporting 
Type Reporting Measure

Strategic 
/ direct / 
enabling

Officer Lead Vale Cabinet 
Lead

With our partners, support the development of a 
coordinated retrofit programme for Oxfordshire through 
our role in the Environmental Advisory Group of 
Oxfordshire Future Partnership

OP5 Narrative Narrative report on work influencing work, comms activity 
and direct engagement with residents. direct Head of Policy and 

Programmes

Cabinet Member 
Strategic 
Partnerships and 
Place

Support Registered Social Landlords in applying for 
retrofit funding, such as Social Housing Decarbonisation 
Funding 

OP6 Narrative Narrative update on engagement with Registered Social 
Landlords on retrofit funding direct Head of Housing and 

Environment
Cabinet Member 
Healthy Communities

Use our membership of Oxfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership (OxLEP) to ensure rapid growth of the green 
economy 

OP7 Narrative
Update on the council's influence in OxLEP to ensure rapid 
growth of the green economy, including examples of projects 
and programmes that address this work

strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
for Strategic 
Partnerships and 
Place

Support and influence the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
ensuring climate considerations are integrated 
throughout the plan

OP8 Narrative Narrative report on work to support the Oxfordshire Plan strategic Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
for Strategic 
Partnerships and 
Place

Utilise the opportunity of the Oxford to Cambridge Arc  
to advance corporate objectives around the Climate 
Emergency

OP9 Narrative Narrative update on the work of the Oxford-Cambridge arc 
and our influencing activity strategic Head of Policy and 

Programmes

Cabinet Member 
for Strategic 
Partnerships and 
Place

Support the Thames Valley Rivers network to meet their 
aims and use this group to facilitate and influence work 
cross party and cross boundary to end pollution in the 
river and promote the sustainable use and enjoyment of 
the River Thames

OP10 Narrative
Update on work with the Thames Valley Rivers network, 
including case studies of projects and programmes that have 
been implemented to meet the aims of the network

enabling Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
Climate Emergency 
and Environment

Engagement across the energy sector on activity 
required to move to carbon neutral and work with them 
to tackle the challenge of grid capacity, time of day 
demand and energy infrastructure 

OP11 Narrative
Update on engagement with the energy sector and examples 
of work with them to tackle the challenge of grid capacity, 
time of day demand and energy infrastructure

direct Head of Policy and 
Programmes

Cabinet Member 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Partner with Good Food Oxfordshire to support their 
Good Food Strategy for Oxfordshire, ensuring climate 
considerations are included throughout the strategy

OP12 Narrative Update on the development of the Good Food Strategy for 
Oxfordshire, including examples of climate considerations strategic Head of Policy and 

Programmes

Cabinet Member 
Corporate Services 
and Transformation

Climate Action Plan for South Oxfordshire District Council 2022-2024                 whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction 19

P
age 35

http://whitehorsedc.gov.uk/climateaction


 

  

 

Cabinet Report 

 
  
Report of Head of Policy and Programmes 

Author: Michelle Wells  

Telephone: 07917 088341 

E-mail: michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk  

Executive member responsible: Councillor Catherine Webber  

E-mail: catherine.webber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: Cabinet 

DATE: 4 February 2022 

 

 

 

Climate Action Fund 

Recommendations 

(a)   That Cabinet review and approve the Climate Action Fund policy and guidelines  

(b)   That Cabinet endorse the launch of the Fund and the Head of Policy and 
Programmes making final award decisions, in consultation with the relevant cabinet and 
ward members  

(c)   That Cabinet members promote the fund within their communities to help ensure a 
wide reach of applicants 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To advise Cabinet on the proposed policy, guidelines and desired outcomes for Vale of 
White Horse District Council’s Climate Action Fund (CAF) and describe its position 
within the wider context of the Council’s climate emergency work. 

2. To detail the proposed decision-making process and the approval pathway for 
applications and outline the timeline for the CAF launch and subsequent stages of 
evaluation, decision making and awarding. 

Strategic Objectives  

3. The CAF invites applications for projects which will inspire and deliver action to 
address climate change through community cohesion and partnership working. The 
guidelines state that projects should contribute to the achievement of the council’s 
Corporate Plan priorities (2020-24): tackling the Climate Emergency, building healthy 
communities and working in partnership. 

4. As laid out in the Corporate Plan 2020-24, a draft Climate Action Plan (CAP) has been 
developed, which sets out actions that will help the Council achieve carbon neutrality 
through direct initiatives using our statutory powers, strategic policymaking, or by 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8

mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catherine.webber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

  

 

enabling behaviours and working with others. The CAP and CAF projects are therefore 
closely intertwined and it is intended to promote the CAF alongside the CAP launch. As 
well as closely follow projects funded by the CAF, to create case studies that can be 
used in our ongoing strategic communications plan. 

Background 

5. A climate emergency was declared by the Vale of White Horse District Council at Full 
Council on 13 February 2019. The motion outlined the intention for the Council to 
consider adopting an early carbon neutral target. At Cabinet on 6 December 2020 the 
following climate action targets were agreed: 

 For Vale of White Horse District Council to be carbon neutral within our own 
operations by 2030, with an aim for a 75 per cent reduction in carbon 
emissions in our own operations by 2025 

 For Vale of White Horse to be a carbon neutral district by 2045, with an aim 
for a 75 per cent reduction in carbon emissions in the district by 2030. 

6. At Full Council on 12 February 2020, whereby Council approved its budget for 2020/21, 
a revenue budget ‘Community Climate Initiatives’ bid was approved, for support for 
community initiatives to help tackle climate change, for the one-off sum of £50,000. 

7. During 2020/21 many officers were refocused to support the council’s Covid-19 
response. This led to a temporary pause of this work. 

Proposed Policy and Guidelines 

8. The proposed CAF policy is attached at Appendix A 

9. One of the central threads of the CAF is for it to invite applications from residents and 
groups at the beginning of their climate journey and encourage those who have not 
undertaken projects with this focus before, to do so. The intention is to provide an 
extremely accessible, inclusive fund. For example, the criteria do not require applicants 
to outline a project’s proposed carbon emission savings, in order to avoid any barriers 
to application. For more established groups, the guidelines ask they support and 
encourage potential new members.  

10. Key to this fund is the desired outcome for residents and communities to have an 
increased awareness and knowledge of the climate emergency through and after 
implementation of a project. For example, if a project application was received for the 
building of a community wildflower garden, the project should include signage in the 
local area which explains the importance of wildflowers and biodiversity to the 
environment. 

11. The fund rules and eligibility requirements are based on the template of South 
Oxfordshire District Council’s Councillor Community Grant Scheme, as a successful 
scheme which Council officers have working experience and knowledge of. Officers 
propose that this will help ensure the fund application and evaluation stages run as 
smoothly as possible. 

Page 37



 

  

 

Decision-Making Process and Approval Pathway 

12. A simple scoring matrix has been created by officers in order to fairly assess 
applications; each criterion within the application will be marked on a scale of 0 to 2, as 
to how well the application meets the criteria for the fund (0 – Not at all, 1 – 
Satisfactory, 2 – Good). As this is a new fund and application interest is unknown, a 
third point will be used and awarded for ‘very good/excellent’ if we receive a significant 
number of applications and need an extra element to help decision making. The 
proposed scoring matrix is attached at Appendix B. 

13. The Community Enablement team will check eligibility of the applications and if eligible, 
Insight and Policy officers will prepare a short summary of the application, including key 
information from the application, concerns and recommended scoring to the Insight and 
Policy Manager and Head of Policy and Programmes. The Head of Policy and 
Programmes will then make award decisions in consultation with the relevant cabinet 
members for Climate and Community Enablement, Cllr. Catherine Webber and Cllr. 
Bethia Thomas.  

14. A timeline for the CAF launch and subsequent stages of evaluation, decision-making 
and awarding is attached at Appendix C. Officers propose the scheme to open in 
March 2022. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

15. This fund addresses the climate emergency by seeking to fund projects which actively 
tackle climate change and/or enhance biodiversity across the Vale. The fund will 
support the Council to achieve their climate emergency targets and aspirations set out 
in the Corporate Plan 2020-24 

Financial Implications 

16. At Full Council on 12 February 2020, whereby Council approved its budget for 2020/21, 
a revenue budget ‘Community Climate Initiatives’ bid was approved, for support for 
community initiatives to help tackle climate change, for the one-off sum of £50,000. 

17. As confirmed at Council 12 February 2020, this is a one-off fund and it will be open for 
one round, closing six weeks later. Any CAF budget not awarded will return to the 
council’s general reserves. 

Legal Implications 

18. None 

Risks 

19. None 

Other Implications 

20. None 

Page 38



 

  

 

Conclusion 

21. Launch of a CAF highlights to Vale residents the Council’s commitment to our climate 
emergency targets and recognises the importance of a shared responsibility to protect 
the planet. 

22. It is envisaged that the CAF will inspire and enable groups across the Vale to take 
climate action and demonstrates the Council’s resolution to building lasting 
partnerships and networks to meet the climate challenge. 

23. The approach taken by officers when scoping and creating the policy and guidelines for 
this fund, was once of accessibility and inclusivity, in order to capture a wide range of 
applications from across the Vale, regardless of where groups and residents are 
currently at on their climate action journey. 

 

Appendices 

 Climate Action Fund Policy and Guidelines – Appendix A 

 Climate Action Fund – Scoring Matrix – Appendix B 

 Timeline – Climate Action Fund – Appendix C 
 

Page 39



Climate Action Fund - 

2021/2022 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council have a budget of £50,000 to award to projects 

across the Vale which support communities to take action on climate change.  

We recognise the importance of our shared responsibility to protect the planet. Our 

Corporate and Climate Action Plans detail our aims and targets to help the District 

thrive and tackle the Climate Emergency. We want to inspire and enable our 

communities to take action and have developed this fund to enable groups across 

the Vale to do so.    

Projects could focus on areas such as: 

 The natural environment 

 Energy 

 Waste and consumption 

 Transport and travel 

You don’t have to be an expert on these areas to apply, we are just as keen to hear 

from people who are starting to think about climate change and are at the beginning 

of their journey to take action to address the climate emergency, as we are to hear 

from more established groups.   

Organisations that receive funding will invited to join a learning network which will 

provide opportunities for groups to collaborate and share experiences. 

 

Basic Rules of the Scheme: 

 Projects must take place within Vale of White Horse district for the benefit of 

Vale residents 

 The minimum grant you can apply for is £250 and the maximum is £5,000 

 You can apply for revenue costs or capital items 

 We can fund up to 100 per cent of the total cost of a project (budget 

permitting) 

 The project must complete within 12 months of the award decision 

 Any unallocated budgets at the end of the financial year will return to the 

council’s general reserves 

 The scheme will be open for one round  

 A decision will be made within approximately six weeks of the scheme closing 

 

 

Page 40



Who is eligible?  

 Town/parish councils and parish meetings 

 Town/parish councils can collaborate with local unconstituted groups and 

apply on their behalf 

 Local ‘not for profit’ organisations, this can include a company limited by 

guarantee which does not distribute any surplus it makes to its member, 

whose primary purpose is to benefit the residents of Vale of White Horse who 

can:  

o Provide with their application a copy of a recent bank statement in the 

name of the organisation applying (no more than two months old) 

o Provide on request a copy of the organisation’s detailed financial 

records e.g. income/expenditure/reserves for the most recent complete 

financial year– or projections for new organisations 

o Provide on request a copy of their governing document (like a 

constitution, set of rules, articles of association etc) that demonstrates 

they are a ‘not for profit organisation’ and the project they are applying 

for matches the organisation objectives 

o Confirm their organisation has named officers, members, or trustees on 

a management committee/board. 

To mitigate against any misuse of a grant or to the council’s reputation from this 

relaxed criterion to apply for a grant, officers will request the governance and 

financial documents mentioned above for every fifth application, and any 

organisations who have not received council funding in the last 12 months.  

 

Who is not eligible?  

 Other local authorities/public sector bodies (for example Oxfordshire County 

Council, NHS trusts). Please note: Town/parish councils and parish meetings 

are eligible to apply 

 Schools, colleges, universities 

 Groups who raise funds on behalf of or will improve/create facilities that will 

predominately benefit an ineligible organisation 

 Individuals (this includes making any payments to individuals on behalf of 

community groups) 

 Profit-based businesses (private businesses) 

 Political and lobbying groups 

 Organisations who operate a grant scheme of their own or who budget for 

giving grants/donations in their annual budget. Please note: Town/parish 

councils and parish meetings are eligible to apply 

Page 41



 Nationwide organisations (except where they have a local constitution and/or 

local bank account. We may also make exceptions if a project clearly relates 

to a local hub/branch of the organisation) 

 

What kind of work/services can we fund? 

We will fund projects which inspire and deliver action to address climate change 

through community cohesion. Organisations must ensure that they have support 

from the wider community and projects should contribute to the achievement of the 

council’s Corporate Plan priorities (2020-24): tackling the Climate Emergency, 

building healthy communities and working in partnership.  

To meet the criteria for this fund, we would like projects to effect and drive change, 

making a positive impact on the climate through: 

 Increasing awareness and knowledge of the climate emergency   

 Encouraging residents and/or groups that are at the beginning their journey to 

take action to address the climate emergency. If you are an established group 

we would like you to support and encourage potential new members  

 Building community connections and cohesion through working in partnership. 

For example, this could include doing a project in partnership with a local 

community sports team 

Appropriate projects could include, but are not limited to:  

 Organising a community clothes/toy/household items swap and/or loan 

scheme to support waste minimisation 

 Building a community wildflower garden with signage which explains the 

importance of wildflowers and biodiversity to the environment  

 Organising and hosting a community learning event on climate action 

 Replacement of existing flood lighting at local tennis court to LED lighting  

 Putting in cycle racks by the local shops/services and enhancing wayfinding in 

a local community to encourage walking and cycling as alternative modes of 

transport 

 

What we will not fund: 

 Retrospective funding for work/projects that will complete before our 

decision is made (We will consider projects that have started; however, we 

will not be able to fund any retrospective costs.)  

 Projects that do not demonstrate a clear benefit to the community in which 

they are taking place  

 Statutory activities/requirements that either the council or another public-

sector organisation is responsible for delivering, such as schools, public 

Page 42



highways, public rights of way and road safety measures. We will consider 

activities that a parish council has the powers to deliver, but not a statutory 

duty to provide  

 Litter picking activities  

 Recurring revenue costs, like salaries, rent, rates and maintenance (like 

boiler servicing). We will consider salaries for a one-off pilot projects – 

lasting no longer than 3-6 months. We will also consider room hire to hold 

regular climate action group events or meetings. 

 Costs that relate to other council services e.g. planning applications or 

building regulation fees  

 Alcoholic refreshments 

 Clothing such as uniforms. We will consider safety kit such as high-

visibility clothing  

 Projects that specifically benefit private businesses  

 Political activities, lobbying or campaigning  

 Projects that don’t align with the council’s equalities objectives and/or the 

Equality Act 2010 

Opening and closing dates 
 
The scheme will open in March and will have one round, closing six weeks later. We 
will publicise the dates on our website and through our social media platforms.  
 
 

Application and Award Process 
 

1. Organisations apply using the council’s online grants management system (‘the 
system’), accessible from our website https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-
white-horse-district-council/community-support/grants Applicants should read the 
guidance notes on our website before completing an application. 
 

2. We’ll usually make our decision within six weeks of the scheme closing date.   
 

3. Council officers will check the eligibility of the application (including the additional 
checks if required) and liaise with the applicant, if necessary, to establish 
eligibility.   

 
If eligible, officers will prepare a short summary of the application including key 
information from the application, concerns and recommended scoring to the 
relevant head of service usually within three weeks of the scheme closing. 
 

4. The relevant head of service will then make award decisions in consultation with 
the relevant cabinet member.  Their decisions are final and aren’t subject to 
appeal or call-in. 

 
 

Page 43

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/community-support/grants
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/community-support/grants


5. Once the community enablement team receive the award decision, they will save 
it on the grants system, publish the decision on the council’s website (in 
summary once the scheme closes) and either; 

 
a. send a grant offer letter to the applicant that will include our standard 

(and any special) conditions and a grant acceptance form they must 
complete and return 

b. inform the applicant that they were unsuccessful. 
 

6. The applicant must sign and return the acceptance form to the community 
enablement team, confirming they will meet all our conditions and give the 
bank details for their organisation.  
 

7. On receipt of the acceptance form the community enablement team will 
release the grant payment in line with the offer letter, following agreement 
from the relevant head of service. All payments must be made by BACs to 
an account in the name of the organisation making the grant application.  

 
Standard conditions  
 

 The organisation must spend the grant on the project listed in their application 
and within 12 months from the decision to award a grant or they will return the 
funding 

 If requested, the organisation will return a proportionate amount of the grant if 
the project costs less than expected or they receive additional funding towards 
the project. The minimum request will be £50. 

 The funding is non-transferrable unless agreed by the council in writing in 
advance of any spending. Any unspent funds will be returned to the council 
upon request. The minimum request will be £50. 

 The organisation will comply with all relevant statutes and regulations related 
to its status, objectives and delivery of its core activities 

 The organisation must have appropriate policies in place to safeguard 
children, young people and vulnerable adults, and comply with equalities, 
GDPR, COVID safety, and any other relevant legislation.  

 The organisation must consult the community enablement team before 
making significant changes to the project/work covered by the grant and 
officers will confirm with the councillor(s) that they agree to these changes 
before responding to the applicant. 

 The organisation will acknowledge the council’s support in any press, publicity 
or promotion of the project. 

 The organisation acknowledges the council accepts no responsibility or 
liability for this project or the facilities it provides now or in the future.  

 

Monitoring the grants 
 

Page 44



 The grants system will record all applications, decisions and remaining 
balances. We will publish grants awarded on the council’s website. 

 The community enablement team will monitor every grant awarded to ensure 
spending is appropriate.   

 If the awarded project has not started by the expiry date (12 months from the 
award date) and is unlikely to do so in the next three months, the organisation 
must repay the grant in full to the council. If the project has started but is not 
complete the officers, at their discretion allow a single, three-month extension 
to the grant, by which time work/spending must be completed.  

 If the project experiences delays due to COVID, organisations can request in 
writing a limited extension which will need to be approved by the Head of 
Service.  

 All grant repayments will return to the council’s general reserves.  

 Any climate action fund budget not awarded by 31 March 2023 will return to 
the council’s general reserves as carry forwards will not be allowed.   

 If repayments are necessary, the community enablement team will liaise with 
the organisation to recover the funds, keeping the relevant ward councillor 
informed.   

 

For more information about the scheme, advice on potential project or other possible 

funding sources, organisations are encouraged to contact 

climateaction@southandvale.gov.uk.  

 

Page 45



Climate Action Fund Criteria – Scoring Matrix  

Criteria Description / corporate plan link Score 

Increasing awareness and knowledge of the 
climate emergency  

The project will result in increased 
knowledge and understanding of the climate 
emergency for the community 

0 – this project will not result in any learnings 
1 – this project will result in some awareness and/or 
learnings on the climate emergency for the community 
2 – this project will result in increased awareness and/or 
knowledge on the climate emergency for the community 
3 – this project will result in significantly increased 
awareness and/or knowledge on the climate emergency 
for the community  

Encouraging residents and/or groups that 
are at the beginning of their journey to take 
action to address the climate emergency 
N.B. An established group could support and 
encourage potential new members 
 
 

Ensure the project particularly aims to 
include those groups that have historically 
been marginalized or those that have been 
hard to reach 

Established Group New Group 

0 – this project does not 
encourage new members 
and/or groups that are at 
the beginning of their 
journey to take action to 
address the climate 
emergency 
1 – this project encourages 
some new members 
and/or groups to take 
action to address the 
climate emergency 
2 – this project encourages 
many new members 
and/or groups to take 
action to address the 
climate emergency  
3 – this project encourages 
a significant number of 
new members and/or 
groups at the beginning of 
their journey to take 
action to address the 
climate emergency and 

 0 – this project does not 
attract residents and/or 
groups that are at the 
beginning of their journey to 
take action to address the 
climate emergency 
1 – this project encourages 
some residents and/or 
groups to take action to 
address the climate 
emergency 
2 – this project encourages 
many residents and/or 
groups to take action to 
address the climate 
emergency  
3 – this project encourages a 
significant number of 
residents and/or groups at 
the beginning of their 
journey to take action to 
address the climate 
emergency and provides a 

P
age 46



provides a focus on 
historically marginalised 
groups 

focus on historically 
marginalised groups 

Building community connections and 
cohesion through the development and/or 
delivery of the project to help address the 
climate emergency 

Building strong communities and connections 
with a sense of place and community identity 

0 – this project does not build community connections or 
cohesion 
1 – this project builds some community connections and 
cohesions 
2 – this project builds community connections and 
cohesion 
3 – this project is exemplary in building community 
connections and cohesion 

Embracing working in partnership through 
the development and/or delivery of the 
project to help address the climate 
emergency 

Working in partnership with other councils, 
authorities and businesses, non-profit 
organisations, community and residents’ 
groups, to achieve the aims and objectives 
effectively, efficiently and fairly 

0 – this project does not embrace working in partnership 
1 – this project embraces some working in partnership 
2 – this project embraces working in partnership 
3 – this project is exemplary in working in partnership 

Long term benefits to the community and 
climate as a result of the project outcomes   

Long term outcomes that benefit the 
community and address the climate 
emergency 

0 – no long-term benefits 
1 – some long-term benefits to the community and 
climate 
2 – good long-term benefits to the community and climate  
3 – exemplary long-term benefits to the community and 
climate 

 

The following points/funding formula is an example based on using a 3 points system, with a significant number of applications received. As this is a new 

fund and application interest is unknown, the funding formula will be considered and decided based on the volume of applications received.  

Points Funding 

0-1 / 0-3 0-25% funding 

2-4 / 4-7  25% - 50% funding 

5-7 / 8-11  50% - 75% funding 

8-10 / 12-15 75% - 100% funding 

 

P
age 47



Page 1

Vale of White Horse District Council

Climate Action Plan and Climate Action Fund Timelines Version 2

01/09/2021 11/02/2022
01/10/2021 01/11/2021 01/12/2021 01/01/2022 01/02/2022

01/09/2021 11/02/2022
01/10/2021 01/11/2021 01/12/2021 01/01/2022 01/02/2022

01/09/2021 11/02/2022
01/10/2021 01/11/2021 01/12/2021 01/01/2022 01/02/2022

24/09/2021 - 16/11/2021

Drafting and review of Plan

24/09/2021 - 16/11/2021

Drafting and review of Plan

24/11/2021 - 09/12/2021

Final draft 

24/11/2021 - 09/12/2021

Final draft 

17/12/2021 - 26/01/2022

Amendments to Plan 

17/12/2021 - 26/01/2022

Amendments to Plan 
07/02/2022 - 10/02/2022

Final amendments 

07/02/2022 - 10/02/2022

Final amendments 

10/01/2022

CEAC 
meeting 

10/01/2022

CEAC 
meeting 

07/01/2022

Cabinet 
Briefing

07/01/2022

Cabinet 
Briefing

04/01/2022

Publication of 
CEAC papers

04/01/2022

Publication of 
CEAC papers

04/02/2022

Cabinet 

04/02/2022

Cabinet 

10/12/2021

Submission of 
documents 

to SMT

10/12/2021

Submission of 
documents 

to SMT

15/12/2021

SMT

15/12/2021

SMT

08/09/2021 - 05/11/2021

Consultation and engagement 
with Heads of Service 

 

08/09/2021 - 05/11/2021

Consultation and engagement 
with Heads of Service 

 

11/02/2022

Plan 
implemented 
and promoted

11/02/2022

Plan 
implemented 
and promoted

08/12/2021

CEEAC/Cabinet 
Lead 

Member informal 
drop in session 

08/12/2021

CEEAC/Cabinet 
Lead 

Member informal 
drop in session 

17/11/2021 - 23/11/2021

Member engagement
 (Cabinet Lead 

+ two nominated)
Virtual circulation to CEEAC

17/11/2021 - 23/11/2021

Member engagement
 (Cabinet Lead 

+ two nominated)
Virtual circulation to CEEAC

19/10/2021 - 01/12/2021

Plan design stage

19/10/2021 - 01/12/2021

Plan design stage

27/01/2022

Publication of 
Cabinet papers

27/01/2022

Publication of 
Cabinet papers

C
L

IM
A

T
E

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

P
age 48



Page 2

Vale of White Horse District Council

Climate Action Plan and Climate Action Fund Timelines Version 2

01/09/2021 04/02/2022
01/10/202101/10/2021 01/11/202101/11/2021 01/12/202101/12/2021 01/01/202201/01/2022 01/02/202201/02/2022

07/02/2022 20/05/2022
01/03/202201/03/2022 01/04/202201/04/2022 01/05/202201/05/2022

04/01/2022

Publication of 
CEAC papers

04/01/2022

Publication of 
CEAC papers

27/01/2022

Publication of 
Cabinet papers

27/01/2022

Publication of 
Cabinet papers

10/01/2022

CEAC 
meeting 

10/01/2022

CEAC 
meeting 

10/12/2021

Submission of 
documents 

to SMT

10/12/2021

Submission of 
documents 

to SMT

09/09/2021 - 26/11/2021

Drafting of Fund policy, guidance and criteria

09/09/2021 - 26/11/2021

Drafting of Fund policy, guidance and criteria

07/01/2022

Cabinet 
Briefing

07/01/2022

Cabinet 
Briefing

15/12/2021

SMT

15/12/2021

SMT
29/11/2021 - 03/12/2021

Cabinet Leads 
Member engagement

29/11/2021 - 03/12/2021

Cabinet Leads 
Member engagement

04/02/2022

Cabinet 

04/02/2022

Cabinet 

06/12/2021 - 09/12/2021

Final draft 

06/12/2021 - 09/12/2021

Final draft 

17/12/2021 - 26/01/2022

Amendments to Plan 

17/12/2021 - 26/01/2022

Amendments to Plan 

07/02/2022 - 11/02/2022

Final amendments 
to Fund documents

 

07/02/2022 - 11/02/2022

Final amendments 
to Fund documents

 

07/02/2022 - 25/02/2022

Application build/test 

07/02/2022 - 25/02/2022

Application build/test 

28/02/2022 - 08/04/2022

Launch and opening of Fund (close 08/04/2022)

28/02/2022 - 08/04/2022

Launch and opening of Fund (close 08/04/2022)

11/04/2022 - 29/04/2022

Evaluation of applications

11/04/2022 - 29/04/2022

Evaluation of applications

02/05/2022 - 13/05/2022

Decision making 
and approval

02/05/2022 - 13/05/2022

Decision making 
and approval

16/05/2022 - 20/05/2022

Awarding of funds

16/05/2022 - 20/05/2022

Awarding of funds

C
L

IM
A

T
E

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

U
N

D

P
age 49



 

 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Development and Corporate Landlord 

Author: John Backley 

Telephone: 01235 422667 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422667 

E-mail : john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: all 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Andrew Crawford 

Tel: 01235 772134 

E-mail : andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date:  4 February 2022 

 

 

Car park fees and charges for 2022/23 

Recommendations 

(a) approve changes to the car parking fees in line with the proposals set out in 
paragraph 15 to 27 of this report  

In addition, if cabinet does agree to amend the fees and charges that require a 
change in the car parking order, to: 

(b) authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic to prepare and publish a draft order 
under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 

and 

(c) authorise the Head of Development and Corporate Landlord to oversee necessary 
communications and consultations and report back to Cabinet 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. This report provides information to help cabinet decide whether it chooses to amend 
the car park fees and charges in the Vale of White Horse District Council’s three 
market towns of Abingdon, Faringdon and Wantage. 

2. Reviewing the car park fees and charges each year is in line with paragraph B (5) of 
the council’s car park pricing policy which is attached as appendix 1. 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 50

Agenda Item 10

mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 

Corporate Objectives  

3. The provision and pricing of car parking supports the Vale Council’s Corporate Plan 
2020/24 and strategic objective three (building healthy communities) by encouraging 
the switch to more active sustainable travel options, improving air quality and supports 
objective four (building stable finances) by maximising income available to the council. 

Background 

4. The Vale Council’s current fees and charges are shown in appendix 2 to this report and 
comparison with other neighbouring car parks is shown in appendix 3.  The price of 
parking permits is in appendix 4.   

5. At the meeting on 7 August 2020, cabinet agreed to maintain the free parking period of 
up to two hours, increase all car parking fees for stays of over two hours by 40p and to 
increase the cost of permits by ten per cent.  These came into effect on 1 December 
2020. Following formal consultation, on 5 February 2021, cabinet agreed to increase 
the cost of residents’ parking permits by ten per cent over the following three years 
(existing holders only). 

6. The parking policy is attached as appendix 1.  The policy was amended in July 2011 to 
reflect the fact that the introduction of the free two hours meant that the income from 
the service would not meet the expenditure.  There is currently no requirement to set 
fees at a level so that the income meets the expenditure.   

7. However, the proposals seek to reduce the net expenditure over the five-year Medium 
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) period so that overall the total income meets the 
expenditure, and the account operates a cost neutral position by the end of the MTFP.  
A further assumption is that Cabinet will wish to continue to provide car parking 
facilities in our market towns for the benefit of our residents and to help secure the 
viability of our central commercial areas based on current and projected demand for 
each car park.  A balance therefore needs to be struck between taking reasonable 
steps to reduce carbon emissions with the need to ensure the sustainability of our 
market towns.  

8. Officers are in the process of amending the current car park orders to bring them in line 
with Civil Parking Enforcement legislation. This involves minor changing to wording 
(Penalty charge notice - PCN rather than Excess charge notice - ECN) and changes to 
the levels of car parking fines issued. This legislation requires any surplus income to be 
reinvested in the car park / highways improvements. 

9. Reviewing the income and expenditure over five years allows cabinet to take a 
medium-term view of how income and expenditure are likely to change and see 
whether the account is running at a loss or with a surplus. 

10. Table 1 below summarises the actual income and expenditure for the last financial year 
2020/21 and the forecast up to 2025/26 and shows that the car park ‘account’ made a 
net loss of some £447,497 in 2020/21 and the deficit is due for the foreseeable future. 
This deficit includes for a loss of income (worst case scenario) from the introduction of 
parking spaces for electric vehicles as take up is forecast to be low in the first few 
years. 

 

Page 51



 

 

Table 1 Car park income and expenditure over a five-year period 

Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Total 613,416 495,235 511,288 527,968 545,298 563,304

Depreciation 72,055 114,030 117,470 121,470 125,351 130,351

Support costs 14,056 14,604 15,174 15,766 16,380 17,019

Expenditure total 699,527 623,869 643,932 665,203 687,029 710,674

Income total (252,030) (316,964) (310,518) (310,518) (310,518) (310,518)

loss of income EV chargers 31,700 31,700 31,700 31,700

Net (income)/expenditure 447,497 306,905 365,114 386,385 408,211 431,856  

To note this account includes for the depreciation and support costs of car parks only.  

Car park usage 

11. Usage surveys of the car parks were undertaken on a working weekday in September 
in 2020 and 2021 and are available as background papers.  Officers have reviewed the 
data gathered and compared the surveys to try and identify any changes in the pattern 
of usage.  This has been complicated by both the Covid pandemic and the partial 
closure of the Charter Car Park in March 2021.  A short interpretation of the results 
from each car park is attached as Appendix 5.   

12. The results show that the majority of the Vale car parks are operating at below 60 per 
cent capacity for the majority of the time on the days.  The exceptions are the town 
centre car parks such as Civic, Cattlemarket, West St Helen in Abingdon and Portway 
in Wantage.   

13. The majority of car park users stayed for a short duration in 2020.  While this trend has 
continued in 2021 the surveys show a general increase in usage and the majority of 
users staying under two hours.  There was noticeable increase in usage in the 2020 
survey of car parks close to public open spaces such as Hales Meadows and Abbey 
Close, Abingdon. 

Proposals 

14. The car park policy requires a review of the fees and charges each year.  Officers have 
provided forecasts for the council to consider in light of the account running at a current 
loss.  These proposals are set out below (net of VAT). 

A. Reduce free parking from two hours to one hour and introduce a charge of £1.50 for 
up to two hours  

15. Rather than have parking for free for up to two hours, this option only allows free 
parking for up to one hour and parking for up to two hours would cost £1.50.  Officers 
consider that the majority of current users who stay for two hours at no charge would 
take advantage of the free one hour and the increase in income would be limited. 
Nevertheless, officers estimate an increase in income of £178,000 per annum based 
on 25 per cent of current free sales paying £1.50 for up to two hours, plus a £10,000 
increase in ECN income totalling £188,000 per year.  This would still produce a deficit 
of £177,114 in 2022/23. 

Page 52



 

 

16. The change from a free two hours to one hour no charge would not be implemented in 
Southampton St. car park, Faringdon due to the potential displacement of vehicles to 
the large supermarket car park if the free two hour parking was reduced. 

17. This increase in income is based on current parking habits and the actual income is 
dependent on whether a quarter of those people who currently take a free two-hour 
ticket would pay £1.50 to park for up to two hours.  Parking for free for up to one hour 
brings the fee in line with free parking in South Oxfordshire. 

B. Increase all current fees by 40p 

18. Officers estimate that separate from any change to the free two hours, if other fees (up 
to 3, 4, 6 hours and over) are increased by 40p (for example for up to three hours 
increase from £1.90 to £2.30) income would increase by an estimated £30,000 per 
year based on current usage. 

C. Parking permits  

19. Cabinet agreed in August 2020 for the phased removal of the discount on residential 
permits to bring them in line with parking permits phased over four years and 
commencing no later than the 1 December 2020. Cabinet also agreed to stop selling 
new residential permits from the 1 October 2020. In February 2021 following 
consultation Cabinet agreed to increase the cost of residential parking permits by ten 
per cent over the next three years (2022, 2023 and 2024).  Cabinet also agreed for 
other parking permits to increase by ten per cent. 

20. Officers have received comments from existing permit holders that they no longer 
require a parking permit for each day as post Covid working patterns are more flexible.  
Post Covid, some users are more likely to be working from home and coming into town 
centre offices less regularly.   

21. Officers consider that the reduced cost offered by a parking permit is advantageous 
and attractive to users and no further change to the cost of permits is recommended.   

22. However, traditionally, the permit allows for parking in the specified car park, plus any 
other equivalent or cheaper car park in the same town.  Therefore purchasing a permit 
for Mill Street car park, Wantage would also allow parking in Limborough Road car 
park.  Similarly permits for Charter car park, Abingdon also allow parking at Rye Farm 
and Hales Meadow car parks.   

23. Saba manage and issue the permits on behalf of the council.  They aim to optimise use 
of the car parks with a balance of permit holders and casual users.  In order to 
maximise the sale of permits and encourage sales to potentially more residents 
working from home, Saba request for permits to be assigned specifically to a car park.  
The usage data can then be used to see what spaces are available and maximise 
sales for each car park as a mix of permits and casual fees.  

24.  Officers suggest that all permits are made non-transferable to any other carparks and 
therefore only valid for the specific car park for which they are issued.   

 

 

Page 53



 

 

D. Other considerations – no change 

25. The current levels of ECNs are being amended as a statutory requirement as part of 
the change to enforcement under civil parking legislation and subject to a separate 
report. 

26. Officers recommend that all other aspects of the fees and charges such as the free 
parking for disabled and motorbikes remain the same.  In addition, it is recommended 
that free parking on a Sunday is maintained (apart from Abbey Close, Hales Meadow 
and Rye Farm car parks which already charge on a Sunday). 

27. All of the proposals are summarised in the table below (stand alone or in certain 
combinations) in order of additional income with the greatest first. 

Proposal Description Additional 
Income 
pa 

Estimated 
deficit 
against 
expenditure 

Change to car 
park order (full 
consultation) or 
schedule  

 No change to current fees  Continued 
deficit of 
over 
£365,114 
per year 

Schedule 

A Reduce free parking from two 
hours to one hour and introduce 
a charge of £1.50 for up to two 
hours (except Southampton St 
car park, Faringdon) 

 

£188,000 £177,114 Schedule with 
communications 
campaign 

B Increase all current fees by 40p 

 

£30,000 £335,114 Schedule 

C Permits made non-transferable 
between car parks 

N/A N/A Schedule 

 

Monitoring the impact of the removal of free parking period 

28. Officers propose that a number of indicators are monitored to measure the financial 
and usage impact of the change to the car park fees.  We already have data for the 
number of free ticket parking, so we can establish a base line for the number of users 
staying for up to two hours (from the number of free tickets taken) for a set period. We 
will then compare the number of users paying for up to two hours when the reduction to 
one hour is introduced.  For budget monitoring purposes we already keep close track of 
income from ECNs, fees paid at the machine and by phone and the income from 
permits.  Officers receive monthly reports showing the income from ECNs, fees and 
permits compared to same month previous year.   

Page 54



 

 

Economic development implications 

29. Appendix 3 compares car park fees and charges to neighbouring local authorities and 
shows that a fee of £1.50 for up to two hours is very competitive.  However, there are 
private operators that provide free parking in Vale, such as at Sainsbury’s in Wantage 
(for up to two hours), Waitrose in Abingdon and Faringdon (also for up to two hours).  

30. Businesses in Vale market towns have struggled in recent years with the growth of 
nearby shopping centres in Oxford and Didcot, and the rise of online shopping.  
Although the cost of short stay parking proposed is not significant, when compared to 
some other neighbouring car parks, many businesses are likely to hold concerns that 
shorter periods of free parking will discourage local people from making visits to town 
centres, particularly those that require visits to multiple businesses. Reductions in the 
duration of the free period could also be detrimental to town centre businesses that 
require longer visit times, such as cafes, gyms, hairdressers, and restaurants.  

31. Over the last five years, respective Vale based Chambers of Commerce, Town Teams, 
business groups and individual businesses have continually asserted concerns over 
parking within Vale. Concerns range from a lack of available spaces to illegal parking, 
to a lack of affordable long-term spaces for employees.  

32. High Street businesses remain in a challenging position following the impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Google Mobility data for Oxfordshire indicates trips to retail and 
recreation sites in the County were down by 19 per cent in the period from 9 December 
to 20 January 2021 (when measured against baseline evidence from February 2020).  

33. Any actions that could negatively affect footfall to Vale’s town centre retail locations is 
likely to cause concern within the business community, particularly as they seek 
support from the community to recover from the pandemic trading challenges.  

34. Within the “Proposed changes to off-street parking in Vale of White Horse” consultation 
report of March 2021, respondents’ concerns were noted of the decline in footfall to 
Vale high streets, and comparisons were made to the availability of free parking in 
nearby areas such as Witney. Many respondents linked parking charges with town 
centre footfall. 

35. It is important to note there is a lack of robust evidence for the local area that can be 
used to link car parking charges to footfall in isolation of other factors. Car parking 
charges should be considered as one of a complex number of components that 
influence town centre vitality, including: availability of car parking spaces, safety, traffic 
flow, signage, facilities, proximity to out of town retail sites, and overall business mix 
and business activity within the area. 

Financial Implications 

36. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position.  For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2021 showed that the council is due to receive £2.6 million less in revenue funding than 
it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from reserves including 
unallocated New Homes Bonus). 

Page 55



 

 

37. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26.  As there 
remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the announcement 
of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term financial 
consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could increase 
further.  Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the need to eliminate 
this funding gap in future years. 

38. Any changes to the fees will involve a cost to update the software in the car park 
machines, to amend the tariff boards and publishing notices in the car parks amounting 
to up to £6,000. These costs can be met from existing budgets. Officers recommend 
that we take the opportunity to replace the tariff boards at the machines which would 
cost an estimated £20,000 and require a growth bid to be agreed. 

39. If agreed, officers estimate the additional income generated from options A and B 
(reduced free hour and increase in fees by 40p) as £218,000 per year which will be 
reflected in the 2022/23 budget. 

Legal Implications 

40. The purpose of having car park orders under Section 32 of the 1984 Road Traffic 
Regulation Act (RTRA) is for ‘relieving or preventing congestion of traffic’.  The council 
has no legal powers to set parking charges at a higher level than that needed to 
achieve this.  The council meets this requirement by having off-street car parks which 
are accessible and well used which means that people do not park on the highway 
which may cause traffic to be held up. 

41. The legislation allows for tariff changes and minor changes to the charging period to be 
made by a simple process by way of a Variation Order.  This applies to all options A, B 
and C.  This requires a notice in the car park that the tariff change relates to and in the 
local newspaper.  We must allow 21 days before the new fees come into effect.  

42. If cabinet agree to implement any alternative options (such as parking on a Sunday) 
this will require the making of a new order.  Doing this would be in accord with the 
general duty upon the council under section 122(1) of the 1984 Road Traffic Regulation 
Act (RTRA), to ensure the provision of suitable and adequate off-street parking facilities 
and “secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of traffic”. 

43. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 grants the power to the council to make an 
order.  The 1984 Act, together with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (LATO), sets out the procedure we must follow.  
The Vale is required to publish the proposed order in the car park and in the local 
press.  The Vale must also consult with the county council (who must consent to the 
order) and other appropriate organisations including the Police.  Cabinet must consider 
all representations received before making the order. 

44. If required, Cabinet will need to authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic to prepare 
and publish a draft order under the RTRA and to agree for the Head of Development 
and Corporate Landlord to carry out the necessary consultations in accordance with 
the requirements of the Act and the LATO and to report back to cabinet on the 
responses received after the end of the consultation period which is normally 28 days.  
Officers would aim to bring a report to cabinet in June 2022 to consider any objections 
and representations and decide whether or not to change the order in light of these. 

Page 56



 

 

45. If cabinet agree changes by June 2022, these can be done to be implemented at the 
latest by 1 August 2022. 

Equality and diversity 

46. The car parks continue to offer up to five per cent of the total number of spaces as 
extra wide spaces for disabled drivers in line with national standards, but this may be 
more or less depending on location and demand.  There is no charge to park when 
displaying a valid blue badge in any space. 

47. The equality officer requests any decisions to be mindful that by increasing the charges 
by too much we are not disadvantaging people with protected characteristics. 

Risks 

48. Officers have included a financial risk factor in their calculations for estimating the 
income from car park users paying to park rather than park for free.  The main risk is 
that people will choose to shop elsewhere and that the increase in income will be less 
than estimated.  This will thereby impact on the businesses in the town if the number of 
visitors to the towns reduces and these are to be monitored as described above. 

49. Currently levels 3 and above of Charter car park in Abingdon are closed to the public.  
The loss of income from the Charter car park is built into the estimations for changes in 
income. 

50. The Health and Safety Officer requests consideration for the level of risk and cost of 
the risk control for car parking displacement. Car users selecting to park on nearby 
streets, on roads and paths to avoid charges and the potential safety implications to 
pedestrians and others e.g., congestion, emergency vehicle access, proximity to 
schools, medical centres etc. 

51.  Oxfordshire County Council started enforcing on street parking on 1 November 2021 
(civil parking enforcement CPE), therefore the increased risk of road users parking in 
the street will be mitigated by efficient on street enforcement.  In other locations where 
CPE has been introduced, councils have seen increase usage as drivers are displaced 
from illegal parking into council car parks. 

52. There is continued uncertainty about the pandemic and the possibility of future 
lockdowns which could further effect income and the long-term recovery of the high 
streets. 

Communications 

53. Officers advise that the legislation allows for minor changes to the tariffs only via a 
Notice of Variation in a local newspaper and in the car parks.  The legal advice is that a 
change in free parking time may be considered as more than a simple tariff change and 
is very popular with users as shown in the usage surveys.  The proposed change 
would undoubtably be met with strong resistance and many objections and 
representations as well as adverse publicity, particularly if it was interpreted that the 
council had implemented a change via a Notice of Variation so as not to provide an 
opportunity for residents and car park users to understand why the changes are being 
implemented and comment.   

Page 57



 

 

54. A full and careful communications campaign would be an alternative way of helping to 
mitigate the risks of reputation damage and legal challenge. 

55. Officers consider that the reputation risks will exist whether we do or do not carry out a 
full public consultation, it is officer opinion that a full public consultation would not be in 
the public interest and a carefully planned communications campaign is preferable. 

56. Alternatively, the changes can be made to include a full consultation process.  This can 
be done at the same time as the car park orders are amended to reflect the new Civil 
Parking Enforcement legislation.  Cabinet would need to agree for a draft order to be 
made having considered any representations at the cabinet meeting in June.  Changes 
can then be implemented by 1 August 2022.   

57. If the changes are agreed that do not require a full consultation, they will be advertised 
in local newspapers and in all the car parks.  Unless there are any delays to the 
implementation, officers can arrange the changes to the fees to be made from 1 April 
2022.   

Climate implications 

58. Vale has agreed a target to work towards a 75 per cent reduction in district wide carbon 
emissions by 2030.   

59.  One way of doing this is by encouraging the take up of electric vehicles (EVs).  
Officers are working with Oxfordshire County Council to install a number of EV 
charging points across South and Vale.  Once confirmed, officers will report EV charger 
usage annually as part of the review of car park fees and charges report to consider 
any change to improve EV take up. 

Other implications 

60. If changes to the free parking arrangements are agreed, the impact can be monitored 
from car park usage figures compared to previous years. 

61. The current signage which advertises ‘Town centre Council car parks 2 hours free’ on 
the edges of towns will require a minor amendment to show ‘1 hour free’ 

Conclusion 

62. The car park account shows a deficit over the next five years and officers recommend 
changes to fees to reduce this deficit.  Officers propose ways for this to be achieved 
and request the cabinet to support these changes. 

 

 

Background Papers 

 Car park usage surveys from September 2020 and 2021. 

Page 58



 

 

Appendix 1 
Vale car park pricing policy 

 

The Vale Council’s existing parking pricing policy was last reviewed in 2011 when policy B 
(1) was removed.  This was to reflect the fact that the introduction of the free two hours 
meant that the income from the service would not meet the expenditure.  The other 
policies are: 

B (2) Differential pricing may apply between areas in the Vale, including between car 
parks in the same town 

B (3) Pricing may be used to regulate and influence usage to achieve a balance 
between sustainability and environmental objectives, and town centre vitality and 
viability; hence, short- term and long-term public parking should be differentially priced 
and located to encourage edge of town parking for commuters, thus freeing town 
centre parking for shoppers and visitors 

B (4) Parking will be provided free of charge for disabled badge holders 

B (5) Parking fees and charges will be reviewed annually.

Page 59



 

 

Appendix 2    Current parking fees  Vale of White Horse District Council 2021 
 

Location/ 
Postcode/Costcode/Connect 

Code 

Number 
of Bays 

Disabled 
Bays 

MotorCycle 
Bays 

2 
Hours 

3 
Hours 

4 
Hours 

6 Hours Over 
6 

Hours 

24 
Hours 

Max 
Stay 

No 
Return 

Operational Allow 
Carry 

Over ? 

Comments 

Days Times 

Abbey Close - OX143JE      

75 4 No 
Free 1.90 3.80 4.70 5.70     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

No 
Chargeable on 

Sundays & Bank 
Holidays 

 Audlett Drive - OX14 3ND C 

95 3 No 
Free 1.90 3.80 4.70 5.70     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

Yes 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Cattlemarket - OX14 3JE      

66 3 Yes 
Free 1.90 3.80 4.70 5.70     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

No 
Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Civic - OX14 3JH                 

59 6 No 
Free 1.90 3.80 4.70 5.70     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

Yes 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Hales Meadow - OX14 3NN   
19 + 2 

motorhomes 
+ 1 coach 

2 No 
Free 1.90 3.50 4.20 4.70     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

Yes 

Chargeable on 
Sundays & Bank 

Holidays 

 

 Rye Farm - OX14 3NN       

115 6 No 
Free 1.90 3.50 4.20 4.70     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

Yes 

Chargeable on 
Sundays & Bank 

Holidays 

 

 Rye Farm Extension - OX14 
3NN   13 0 No 

Free 1.90 3.50 4.20 4.70 
  

  2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

Yes 
Chargeable on 

Sundays & Bank 
Holidays 

 

 West St Helen Street - OX14 
5BU   101 6 Yes 

Free 1.90 3.80 4.70 5.70     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

No 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Charter Level 1 - 2 - OX14 
3LZ  

57 

13+ 13 
Drs 

bays     
Level 2 

No 

Free 1.90 3.80 4.70 5.70     2 Hrs 

Sat Only 
08:00 - 
18:00 

No 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Charter Level 3 & 4 - OX14 
3LZ  84   No 

Free 1.90         3Hrs 2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

Yes 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Charter Level 5 - 9 OX14 3LZ  
1410 274   No 

Free 1.90 3.80 4.70 5.70     2 Hrs 
Mon - 

Sun 
08:00 - 
18:00 Yes 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  

 

 

P
age 60



 

 

B/Holidays 
Gloucester Street - SN7 7HY  
CP21 9317 CP14               
1411 

47 2 No 
Free 1.40 2.80 3.00 3.20     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

No 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Southampton Street - SN7 
7AZ  CP21 9317 CP15      
1412 

55 4 Yes 
Free 1.50         

3 
Hrs 2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

No 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Limborough Road - OX12 
9AJ  CP21 9317 CP16              
1413 

34   No 
Free 1.70 3.30 3.70 4.20     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

Yes 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Mill Street - OX12 9AJ       
CP21 9317 CP16              1414 32 2 No 

Free 1.70 3.30 3.70 4.20     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

Yes 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 Portway - OX12 9BU          
CP21 9317 CP18              1415 114 7 Yes 

Free 1.70 3.70 4.70 5.70     2 Hrs 

Mon - 
Sun 

08:00 - 
18:00 

No 

Free on Sundays 
Charge on  
B/Holidays 

 

 

                 
 

 

 

                 
 

 
 

P
age 61



 

 

Appendix 3 Comparison of car park fees and charges, September 2021 
 

Place Average 
Charging 
periods 

up to 1 
hour 

up to 2 
hours 

up to 3 
hours 

up to 4 
hours 

up to 5 
hours 

up to 6 
hours 

Up to 7 
hours 

up to 8 
hours 

up to 10 
hours 

up to 12 
hours 

ECN 

South 
Oxfordshire 
District Council 

9am to 5pm 

 
Free 1.00 to 

1.20 
1.30 
to1.80 

 2.20 to 
2.40  

  1.90 to 
5.00 

  Max £70 

Train Station, 
Henley 
(APCOA on 
behalf of First 
Great 
Western) 
(discounts 
apply if pay by 
‘phone) 

All day   2.00 3.00  4.00  6.00   Max £80 

Dry Leas 
(Henley rugby 
club) 

 

9am-5pm Mon 
to Friday 

         3.20 unknown 

Mill Meadows 
(Henley Town 
Council) Mon-
Fri Free after 
7:00pm 
Sat and Sun 
and BHs 

  
 

1.80 

 
 

3.50 

  
 

7.00 

Over 4 
hrs 

9.00 

Over 6hrs     

 
Max £70 

Wycombe DC 
(High 
Wycombe) 
Easton Street 

7am – 8pm 
Mon – Sat  
Sundays £1.00 
all day 

1.00 2.00 2.50 3.00 3.50 4.00 Over 
6hr£9.00 

   Max £70 

Wycombe DC 
(High 
Wycombe) 
Baker St 

Car Park 
Closed 

           

Wycombe DC 
(Marlow) Riley 
Road 

7am - 7pm Mon 
– Sat 
( Sunday  30 
mins – 50p, 
4hrs – 1.00, 6 
hrs 10.00 ) 

80p ( up to 
30 mins – 
50p ) 

1.60 2.50 3.00  10.00    6.50 Max £70 

Woking 
Borough 
Council 

6am - 7pm Mon 
– Sat 
(also charges 

1.50  3.0 4.50 6.00  7.00 11.00   £12 up to  
24hr 

Max £70 

P
age 62



 

 

(Victoria Way, 
Brewery Road 
& Heathside 
Crescent) 

Sunday at 
reduced rate, 1 
hr 1.50, 2 hrs 
2.80, 2 – 13 hrs 
3.00) 

Aylesbury Vale 
DC 
(Friarscroft – 
outer long 
stay) 

6.30am - 
20.30pm Mon – 
Sat  ( Sundays 
and bank 
holidays £1.50 
) 

         3.00 up to 
24 hrs 
(1.00 
overnight) 

Max £70 

Banbury 
(Market Pl, 
ultra short 
stay) 

8am - 6pm Mon 
–sat  ( Sundays 
& B/H 1hr – 
1.00, over 1 hr 
1.50 ) 

£1.50 
(£1.00 up 
to 30 mins) 

         Max 
£100.00 

West 
Oxfordshire 
DC (Marriotts 
Walk multi-
storey, Witney) 

8am - 6pm Mon 
-Sat 

Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Free  Max £70 

West 
Oxfordshire 
DC (Woodford 
Way) 

8am - 6pm Mon 
-Sat 

Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Free  Max £70 

Cherwell DC 
(Claremont) 

8am - 6pm Mon 
-Sat 

 

1.00 
Sundays 
1.00 

2.00 or 
Sunday 
1.50 over 
1hr 

2.80        Max 
£100 

Cherwell DC 
(Cattle Market) 

8am - 6pm Mon 
-Sat 

1.00 
 Sunday 
1.00 

2.00 or 
Sunday 
1.50 over 
1hr 

2.80            
3.50 

    4.50  Max 
£100 

OCC 
(Redbridge 
Park & Ride) 

24 hours free 1to 11 hr 
£2.00 

11-24 
hrs£4.00 

24-48hrs 
£8.00 

48-72hrs 
£12.00 

28days 
£30.00 

    Max 
£100 

OCC (Oxpens) 6am -5pm Mon-
Sun 
5pm-6am Mon-
Sun £3.50 

3.00 

 
4.00 

 
5.00 

 
7.00 

 
9.00 11.00 

 
6-12 hrs 
18.00 

  12-24 
hrs25.00 

Max 
£100 

OCC 
(Worcester 
Street) 

8am -8pm Mon-
Fri 
8am -8pm Sat-
Sun 
8pm-8am £4.00 

4.00 
4.50 

6.00 
7.30 

9.00 
10.00 

11.50 
12.50 

 18.00 
20.00 

 28.00 
30.00 

35.00 
35.00 

 Max 
£100 

P
age 63



 

 

Oxford 
Westgate  

Mon to Sun 
6am to 5pm 

3.00 4.00 5.00 7.00 9.00 11.00    18.00 Max 
£100 

Oxford 
Westgate 

Mon to Sun 
5pm to 6am 

3.00         3.50 Max 
£100 

Reading Broad 
Street Mall 
 

Mon- Sun 24 
hrs 

1.60 4.10 6.10 8.10 10.10 12.20    14.20 (up 
to 24 hrs) 

Max £70 

Swindon, 
Whalebridge 
multi-storey 
 

Mon to Sun 
6.30am to 
11pm 

1.20 2.40 3.60 4.80  7.60    8.80 9up 
to 24 hrs 

Max £70 

 

 

P
age 64



 

 

Appendix 4                   Parking permit charges December 2020 
 

Car Park Monday - 
Friday 
Permits 

     Monday to 
Saturday/Sunday 

      Residents - existing/retained 
permits only - No New Permits To 
Be Issued (agreed cabinet 2020) 

 

 Annual 3 
month 

1 
month 

AM/PM Annual 3 
month 

1 
month 

AM/PM Market 
Trader 

Annual 6 
months 

 Note  

Abbey Close £715 £213 £72   £857 £256 £86     £429 £215 

 

permits will 
receive a 10 % 
increase in value 
for years 
2022,2023,2024.  

proof of 
residency will 
continue to be 
required ( no 
more than 3 
months old – 
utility bill/bank 

statement/mobile 
phone 

bill/council tax 
bill etc )  and 
scanned into 
permit case 

upon renewal 

Audlett Drive £715 £213 £72   £857 £256 £86     £429 £215 

 
Cattlemarket £715** £213** £72**   £857** £256** £86**     £429 £215 

 
Hales Meadow £572 £173 £57   £684 £209 £67   £85 £386 £194 

 
Rye Farm £572 £173 £57   £684 £209 £67     £386 £194 

 
West St Helen Street £715 £213 £72   £857 £256 £86     £429 £215 

 
Charter £715 £213 £72 £358 £857 £256 £86 £429   £429 £215 

 
                        

 
Portway         £501** £150** £51**     £178   

 
Mill Street         £501 £150 £51     £232 £123 

 
Limborough Road         £501 £150 £51   £74 £232 £123 

 
                        

 
Gloucester Street         £356 £108 £36   £40 £178   

 

               School Permits 
              Portway Free 

             Gloucester 
Street/Southampton 
Street Free  

             
               General Permit 
Prices 

              Skips £25.00 + vat per space (min 2 spaces required as per T & C’s) 
        Wheelie Bin £204 + vat per space 

      
  

     Replacement Permits £12.00 (as per T ’s) 
            Permit Refunds  £10.00 (administration fee - deducted from refund balance before refund completed) 

       

 

              

P
age 65



 

 

Cosener House 
Permits £6.38 (Book of 50 = £319) 

     
               Notes 

              ** 
 
 
 
 
 

regular permits can be issued in these car parks when current resident permits levels fall below agreed permit levels for these car park - see waiting list for details. 
 
 
 

 
 

P
age 66



 

 

 
Appendix 5  Comparison of Vale car park usage between September 2020 and 
September 2021 

 
63. Abbey Meadows car park, Abingdon 

Peak usage changed slightly between the two years form the middle of the morning to 
early morning and lunchtime. The car park was not more than 50 per cent in both 
years. 

Duration of the stay has remained similar between the two years with around 60 per 
cent of users staying under two hours, the number of users staying for between one 
and two hours has increased from 31 per cent in 2020 to 45 per cent in 2021. 

64. Audlett Drive car park, Abingdon 

Usage is spread evenly throughout the day in both years.  Maximum occupancy only 
30 per cent.  Around 55 per cent of users staying under two hours.  The duration of 
those staying between one and two hours has also increased from 15 per cent to 25 
per cent between the two surveys. 

65. Cattle Market car park, Abingdon 

In 2021 car park operating up to 70 per cent capacity, during the previous year it was 
only at 50 per cent.  As for the duration 60 per cent of users stayed in the car park 
under for two hours in 2020 which remained the same in 2021. 

66. Civic car park, Abingdon 

The usage of this car park in both years was high with it operating at above 90 per cent 
full for the majority of the day both years. As for the duration of stay around 60 per cent 
of users stay in the car park under two hours in both surveys and the number of 
vehicles staying between one and two hours had reduced to 42 in 2021. 

67. Hales Meadows car park, Abingdon 

In both years usage is spread evenly throughout the day although usage was higher in 
2020 than in 2021. The car park operated at around 80 per cent capacity in 2020 which 
dropped in 2021 to around 50 per cent.  In 2020 around 55 per cent of the vehicles 
parked stayed for up to two hours this had increased to 80 per cent in 2021.  

68. Rye Farm car park, Abingdon 

This car park operated at between 30 per cent and 40 per cent occupation in the 2020 
survey but in 2021 this increased to between 40 per cent and 60 per cent.  

50 per cent of users stayed less than two hours in 2020 which remain around the same 
in 2021.   

69. West St Helens Street car park, Abingdon 

It both years this car park was operating at an average of around 70 per cent full which 
increased at times in the 2021 survey to above 90 per cent.  Duration of stay was just 

Page 67



 

 

over 40 per cent of parked vehicles making use of the free two-hour parking in 2020 
which has increased to around 47 per cent of vehicles in 2021. 

70. Gloucester Street car park, Faringdon 

Both surveys show this is an under used car park during the day.  The only time that it 
achieved more than 30 per cent occupancy was at 3pm when the parents are picking 
their children up from school.   

71. Southampton Street, Faringdon 

During the 2020 survey the car park was not more than 50 per cent full.  This increased 
to 60 per cent mid-morning in the 2021 survey but again the car park was below 50 per 
cent capacity most of the time.   

72. Limborough Road car park, Wantage 

Both years show that this car park has low levels of usage never more than 40 per cent 
full. 

73. Mill Street car park, Wantage 

In both years’ surveys this car park operates at around 50 per cent occupancy level 
throughout the day.  

74. Portway car park, Wantage 

This car park operated at between 60 per cent and 80 per cent occupancy throughout 
the day in 2021 which is a slight increase on the results for 2020.  During the 2021 
survey the majority (45 per cent of the users) stayed less than an hour with another 20 
per cent staying between one and two hours.  

Page 68



1 

Treasury Management and Investment 

Strategy 2022/23  

Recommendations 
 
That Joint Audit and Governance Committee approves each of the following key 
elements of this report, and recommends these to Cabinet: 

1. To approve the treasury management strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A 
to 
this report; 

2. To approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25 as set 
out in, appendix A. 

3. To approve the annual investment strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A, and 
the lending criteria detailed in table 6.  

That Cabinet considers any comments from committee and recommends Council to 
approve report. 

 
Purpose of report 
 
1. This report presents the council’s Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) for 

2022/23. This sets out how the council’s treasury service will support financing of 
capital investment decisions, and how treasury management operates day to day. It 
sets out the limitations on treasury management activity informed by the prudential 
indicators, within which the council’s treasury function must operate.  

Report to: 

 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

Cabinet 

Council 

Report of Head of Finance  

Author: Donna Ross 

Telephone:  07917 088335 

E-mail: donna.ross@southandvale.gov.uk 

Cabinet member responsible:  Councillor Andrew Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

Email:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: JOINT AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE on               25 January 2022 
 CABINET on                     04 February 2022 
 COUNCIL on                     16 February 2022 

Page 69

Agenda Item 11

mailto:donna.ross@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2 

2. The strategy is included as appendix A to the report. This report includes the three 
elements required by legislation as follows: 
 

 The prudential and Treasury indicators required by the CIPFA Prudential 
Code 2017 for Capital Finance in Local Authorities and CIPFA TM code of 
Practice 2017; 

 

 The annual investment strategy. This sets out the council’s criteria for 
selecting counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss on its 
investments. 

 

 A statutory duty to approve a minimum revenue provision policy statement, 
(appendix A, paragraphs 15-18). 

 
It is a requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 that 
this report is approved by full Council on an annual basis. 

 
Strategic objectives 
 
3. Managing the finances of the authority in accordance with the treasury 

management strategy will help to ensure that resources are available to deliver its 
services and meet the council’s strategic objectives. 

 
Background 
 
4. Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and 
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 
 

5. The primary function of the treasury management service is to manage cashflow 
and ensure cash is available when needed.  Surplus monies are deposited with low-
risk counterparties and financial instruments with adequate liquidity to fund 
expenditure commitments.   

 
6. The funding of the council’s capital expenditure is also a function of treasury 

management. The capital programme provides a guide to the funding needs of the 
council and informs long-term cash flow plans to ensure that the council can meet its 
capital spending obligations. All expenditure of a capital nature is managed through 
the council’s capital programme and is not covered by this report.  

 
7. The treasury management and annual investment strategy set out the council’s 

policies for managing investments and confirms the council gives priority to the 
security and liquidity of those investments. It also includes the prudential indicators 
for the next three years; these demonstrate that the council’s capital investment 
plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 
 

8. The council’s treasury management strategy 2022/23 is attached in 
appendix A. Whilst every attempt has been made to minimise the technical content 
of this report, it is, by its very nature and the need for compliance with associated 
guidance, technical in parts. A glossary of terms in appendix G should aid members 
understanding of some technical terms used in the report. 

 

Page 70



3 

Recommended changes to the treasury management strategy 
 
9. Council approved the 2021/22 treasury management strategy on 10 February 2021. 

The proposed strategy for 2022/23 includes the changes detailed below, which 
cabinet is asked to recommend to council. 
 

Counterparty limits 
 
10. On 31 March 2020 the then Interim Head of Finance waived financial procedure rule 

53 and allowed the councils to over-ride their counter party limits for money market 
funds.  This was to allow the councils to deal with the receipt of unprecedented 
levels of government grant funding to fund the business grant schemes 
administered by the councils on behalf of the government.   

 
11. Delegation 2.7 of the council constitutions allows the Head of Finance, in 

consultation with the cabinet member for finance, to raise counterparty limits by 
£3,000,000 within a financial year.   

 
12. Due to the increase in peak levels of daily cash flow, the increased limits have been 

required throughout 2020/21 and 2021/22. Since it is anticipated that they will 
continue to be required during 2022/23, the increased limits have been incorporated 
into the counterparty limits table and regarded as permanent. 

 
13. The changes to the permanent limits include: 

 

 an increase to the counterparty limits for AAA rated CNAV Money market 
Funds to £30 million, 

 an increase from £10 million to £13 million to the counterparty limits for 
deposits under one year with banks and building societies that meet the 
council’s minimum Fitch F1/A- credit rating criteria, 

 an increase to the counterparty limits for unrated building societies with assets 
over £1 billion to £6 million. 

 
14. The counterparty limits table has been reformatted and updated and includes the 

following additional changes: 
 

 Increased limit for Short Dated/Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds from £3m to £10 
million, 

 Removal of a reference to a specific counterparty in the Pooled Property 
Funds and Diversified Income Fund categories. 

 Increase in the limit for Pooled Property Funds from £7 million to £10 million, 

 Inclusion of Sovereign Bonds, Covered Bonds and Multilateral Development 
Bank Bonds with the existing limits for Corporate Bonds 

 An increase to the maximum portfolio percentage to 100 per cent for local 
authority deposits. 

 A reduction in the maturity limit for local authority deposits from 25 to five 
years. 

 
15. The minimum Fitch Sovereign rating for counterparties outside the UK has been 

amended to AA-, in line with the current Fitch Sovereign rating for the UK.  This is to 
enable deposits to be placed with foreign financial institutions with higher, or 
equivalent credit ratings to UK banks on the approved counterparty list. 

Page 71



4 

 
16. The Variable Interest Rate Exposure Prudential Indicator Limit has been increased 

to £100m to reflect the increased level of cash balances and to allow greater use of 
funds with variable rate returns. 

 
Financial implications and risk assessment 
 
17. This report and all associated policies and strategies set out clearly the parameters 

the council must work within. It is important that the council follows the approved 
treasury management strategy which is designed to help protect the council’s 
finances by managing its risk exposure. 
 

18. Link Treasury Services has provided a counterparty methodology, but given the 
council’s balances, we have expanded on this methodology to include additional 
building societies to ensure a diversified portfolio. 
  

19. Base rate is currently 0.25 per cent.  The Bank of England increased the rate from 
0.10 per cent to 0.25 per cent on 16 December 2021 to help control the rise in 
inflation, which had risen above 5 per cent and reached its highest level in a decade. 
 

20. Link Asset Services latest base rate forecast anticipates that the next bank base 
rate rise will be during the first quarter of the 2022/23 financial year.  Table 1 below 
gives an estimate of the investment income achievable for the council next five 
years. 

 

 
21. The 2022/23 budget setting report and medium-term financial plan will take into 

account the latest projections of anticipated investment income.  
 

Climate and ecological impact implications 
 
22. There are no climate or ecological implications arising from this report.  As a 

responsible investor, the Council is committed to considering environmental, social, 
and governance (ESG) issues, and has a particular interest in taking action against 
climate change and pursuing activities that have a positive social impact.  
 

23. As opportunities to support the climate ambitions of the Council arise, they will be 
considered.   However, the treasury management function is controlled by statute 
and by professional guidelines and the first priorities of treasury must remain 
security, liquidity, and yield.   
 

Legal implications 
 
24. There are no significant legal implications as a result of the recommendations in this 

report. Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in 
the Public Services, the DLUHC Local Government Investment Guidance provides 

Table 1: Medium term investment income forecast 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Forecast as at December 2021 389 539 703 637 637 

Page 72



5 

assurance that the council’s investments are, and will continue to be, within its legal 
powers. 

 
25. The council must approve any amendment to the treasury management strategy 

and annual investment strategy in accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 
(the Act), the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public 
Services and the DLUHC Local Government Investment Guidance under Section 
15(1) (a) Local Government Act 2003 and CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance. 

 
Conclusion 
 
26. This report introduces the treasury management strategy and the annual investment 

strategy for 2022/23 which are appended to this report, together with the prudential 
indicators for approval to council. These documents provide the parameters within 
which the council’s treasury management function will operate. 

 
 
Background papers 

 

 CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 

 CIPFA Prudential Code 2017 

 CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Guidance Notes 2018 

 CIPFA statement 17.10.18 on borrowing in advance of need and investments in 
commercial properties 

 CIPFA Bulletin 02 Treasury and Capital Management Update October 2018 

 Statutory Guidance on Local Government Investments (3rd Edition)  
Statutory Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision  

 
 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 
Appendix B Economic Background 
Appendix C Risk and performance benchmarking 
Appendix D Explanation of Prudential and Treasury Indicators 
Appendix E TMP1 extract 
Appendix F Extension to the responsibilities of the S151 officer 
Appendix G Glossary of terms 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 73



6 

Appendix A 

Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 
 
Introduction 
 
1. The primary function of the treasury management service is to ensure the council’s 

cash flow is adequately managed, with cash being available when it is needed.  
Surplus monies are invested in low-risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity 
initially before considering investment return. The second main function of the 
treasury management service is the funding of the council’s capital plans.   

 
2. Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury 

function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising 
usually from capital expenditure), and are separate from the day-to-day treasury 
management activities. 

 
3. CIPFA defines treasury management as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

 
4. Revised reporting was required for the 2019/20 reporting cycle due to revisions of 

the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) (formerly the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG)) Investment 
Guidance, and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance, the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and the CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code.  The primary reporting changes included the 
introduction of a capital strategy, to provide a longer-term focus to the capital plans, 
and greater reporting requirements surrounding any commercial activity undertaken 
under the Localism Act 2011.  The capital strategy is reported separately. 

5. CIPFA released new editions of the Treasury Management Code and Prudential 
Code on 20 December 2021. Due to the timing of the code revisions and committee 
reporting timeframes, changes to reporting requirements, which may be deferred 
until 2023/24, have not been included in this report. 

  
Treasury Management Reporting 

6. The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three 
main treasury reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates 
and actuals.   

a) Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first, 
and most important report is forward looking and covers: 

 the capital plans, (including prudential indicators); 

 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy, (how residual capital 
expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

 the treasury management strategy, (how the investments and borrowings 
are managed), including treasury indicators; and  

Page 74



7 

 an investment strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

b) A mid-year treasury management report – This is primarily a progress report and 
will update members on the mid-year treasury performance, amending prudential 
indicators as necessary, and whether any policies require revision. 

c) An annual treasury report – This report reviews performance for the previous 
financial year and provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury 
indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within the 
strategy. 

 
Scrutiny 

7. The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council. This role is undertaken by the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23 

8. The strategy for 2022/23 covers the areas below: 

 the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; 

 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 the current treasury position; 

 treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 

 prospects for interest rates; 

 the borrowing strategy; 

 policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

 debt rescheduling; 

 the investment strategy; 

 creditworthiness policy; and 

 the policy on use of external service providers. 

 

9. These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, (the 
Act) the CIPFA Prudential Code, DLUHC MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code and DLUHC Investment Guidance. 

 
Councillor and Officer Training 
 

10. The CIPFA Code requires the Head of Finance to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny. The 
training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed.  

 

Capital Prudential Indicators 
 

11. The Council’s capital expenditure plans (as detailed in the council’s capital 
programme) are a key driver of treasury management activity. The output of the 
capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential indicators, which are 
designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

 
Treasury Management Consultants 

Page 75



8 

 
12. The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions as its external treasury 

management advisors. 
 

13. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
always remains with the organisation and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon the services of external service providers. All decisions will be 
undertaken with regards to all available information, including, but not solely, 
treasury advisory services. 

 
14. It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 

management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills, knowledge and 
resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 
methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and 
documented and subjected to regular review.  

 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 2022/23 
 

15. The council’s current capital programme will primarily be financed from internal 
resources. If borrowing is undertaken, then the council will be required by statute to 
set aside funds in the annual revenue budget to amortise the principal element of 
any borrowing – this is the MRP. There will also be a requirement to set aside 
revenue budget for the interest payments on any borrowing raised. Loans will 
generally be taken over the life of the assets being financed and amortised 
accordingly. 

 
16. The council is required by regulation to approve an annual MRP policy before the 

start of the year to which it relates. Any in-year changes must also be submitted to 
the council for approval. 

 
17. A variety of options are provided to councils for the calculation of MRP. The council 

has chosen the “asset life method” as being most appropriate. Using this method 
MRP will be based on the estimated life of the asset, in accordance with the 
regulations (this option must be applied for any expenditure capitalised under a 
Capitalisation Direction). Repayments included in annual PFI or finance leases are 
applied as MRP. 

 
18. Currently, the council’s MRP liability is nil. This will remain the case unless capital 

expenditure is financed by external or internal borrowing.  The Head of Finance will 
determine the most appropriate repayment method, term of borrowing and duration 
of borrowing. As a general illustration, Table 1 below gives an example of the 
annual revenue costs associated with borrowing an amount of £2.5 million over a 
50-year period, based on the current district tax base of 55,363 Band D 
equivalents 

  

Page 76



9 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prospects for Interest Rates 

19. The following table gives Link Asset Services central view on expected interest 
rate movements out to March 2025.   LIBOR and LIBID rates will cease from the 
end of 2021.  Work is progressing to replace LIBOR with a rate based on SONIA 
(Sterling Overnight Index Average).  In the meantime, forecasts provided by Link 
are based on expected average earnings by local authorities for 3 to 12 months. 

 
Table 2: Interest Rate Forecasts - Quoted by link Asset Services December 2021 

 
 

 
 
Economic Background – Provided by Link 

20. Over the last two years, the coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic 
damage to the UK and to economies around the world. After the Bank of England 
took emergency action in March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10 per cent, it left 
Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent meetings until raising it to 0.25 per cent at 
its meeting on 16 December 2021 

. 
21. As shown in the forecast table above, the forecast for Bank Rate now includes four 

increases, one in December 2021 to 0.25 per cent, then quarter 2 of 2022 to 0.50 
per cent, quarter 1 of 2023 to 0.75 per cent, quarter 1 of 2024 to 1.00 per cent and, 
finally, one in quarter 1 of 2025 to 1.25 per cent. 

Table 1: Example MRP and interest calculation 

       

Loan Amount  £2,500,000    

       

Loan Duration  50 Years    

        

PWLB Interest  1.86%    

        

2022/23 Tax Base         55,363     

       

       

   £  £ per Band D 

MRP Element  £50,000   0.90 
       

Annual Interest Cost  £46,500   0.84 

Total   £96,500   1.74 

Page 77



10 

Significant risks to the forecasts 
 

 Mutations of the virus render current vaccines ineffective, and tweaked vaccines to 
combat these mutations are delayed, or cannot be administered fast enough to 
prevent further lockdowns.  25 per cent of the population not being vaccinated is 
also a significant risk to the NHS being overwhelmed and lockdowns being the only 
remaining option. 

 

 Labour and supply shortages prove more enduring and disruptive and 
depress economic activity. 

 

 The Monetary Policy Committee acts too quickly, or too far, over the next three 
years to raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in 
inflation, to be weaker than we currently anticipate.  

 

 The Monetary Policy Committee tightens monetary policy too late to ward off 
building inflationary pressures. 

 

 The Government acts too quickly to cut expenditure to balance the national 
budget. 

 

 UK / EU trade arrangements – if there was a major impact on trade flows and 
financial services due to complications or lack of co-operation in sorting out 
significant remaining issues.  

 
 Longer term US treasury yields rise strongly and pull gilt yields up higher than 

forecast. 
 
 Major stock markets e.g., in the US, become increasingly judged as being 

over-valued and susceptible to major price corrections. Central banks become 
increasingly exposed to the “moral hazard” risks of having to buy shares and 
corporate bonds to reduce the impact of major financial market selloffs on the 
general economy. 

 

 Geopolitical risks, for example in Ukraine, Iran, North Korea, but also in 
Europe and Middle Eastern countries; on-going global power influence 
struggles between Russia/China/US. These could lead to increasing safe-
haven flows.  

 
22. The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is now to the downside, 

including risks from Covid and its variants - both domestically and their potential 
effects worldwide. 

 
Forecasts for Bank Rate 
 
23. It is not expected that Bank Rate will go up fast after the initial rate rise as the 

supply potential of the economy is not likely to have taken a major hit during the 
pandemic: it should, therefore, be able to cope well with meeting demand after 
supply shortages subside over the next year, without causing inflation to remain 
elevated in the medium-term, or to inhibit inflation from falling back towards the 
MPC’s 2 per cent target after the spike up to around 5 per cent. The forecast 
includes four increases in Bank Rate over the three-year forecast period to March 

Page 78



11 

2025, ending at 1.25 per cent. However, it is likely that these forecasts will need 
changing within a relatively short timeframe for the following reasons: - 

 

 We do not know how severe an impact Omicron could have on the economy and 
whether there will be another lockdown or similar and, if there is, whether there 
would be significant fiscal support from the Government for businesses and jobs. 

 

 There were already increasing grounds for viewing the economic recovery as 
running out of steam during the autumn and now into the winter. And then along 
came Omicron to pose a significant downside threat to economic activity.  This 
could lead into stagflation, or even into recession, which would then pose a 
dilemma for the MPC as to whether to focus on combating inflation or supporting 
economic growth through keeping interest rates low. 

 

 Will some current key supply shortages spill over into causing economic activity 
in some sectors to take a significant hit? 

 

 Rising gas and electricity prices in October and next April and increases in other 
prices caused by supply shortages and increases in taxation next April, are 
already going to deflate consumer spending power without the MPC having to 
take any action on Bank Rate to cool inflation.  

 

 On the other hand, consumers are sitting on over £160 billion of excess savings 
left over from the pandemic so when will they spend this sum, in part or in total? 

 

 It looks as if the economy coped well with the end of furlough on 30 September 
2021. It is estimated that there were around 1 million people who came off 
furlough then and there was not a huge spike up in unemployment. The other 
side of the coin is that vacancies have been hitting record levels so there is a 
continuing acute shortage of workers. This is a potential danger area if this 
shortage drives up wages which then feed through into producer prices and the 
prices of services i.e., a second-round effect that the MPC would have to act 
against if it looked like gaining significant momentum. 

 

 We also recognise there could be further nasty surprises on the Covid front 
beyond the Omicron mutation. 

 

 If the UK invokes article 16 of the Brexit deal over the dislocation in trading 
arrangements with Northern Ireland, this has the potential to end up in a no-deal 
Brexit. 
 

24. In summary, with the high level of uncertainty prevailing on several different fronts, 
we expect to have to revise our forecasts again - in line with whatever the new 
news is. 

 
25. It should also be borne in mind that Bank Rate being cut to 0.25 per cent and then 

to 0.10 per cent, were emergency measures to deal with the Covid crisis hitting the 
UK in March 2020. At any time, the MPC could decide to simply take away such 
emergency cuts on no other grounds than they are no longer warranted, and as a 
step forward in the return to normalisation. In addition, any Bank Rate under 1 per 
cent is both highly unusual and highly supportive of economic growth.  
 

Page 79



12 

Treasury Limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25 
 
26. It is a statutory duty, under Section 3 of the Act and supporting regulations for the 

council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow. The 
amount so determined is called the “Affordable Borrowing Limit”. The Authorised 
Limit is the legislative limit specified in the Act. 

 
27. The council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised 

Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital expenditure remains 
within sustainable limits and that the impact upon its future council tax is 
‘acceptable’.  The Authorised Limit is set on a rolling basis, for the forthcoming 
financial year and two successive financial years. 

 
28. The following indicators set the parameters within which we manage the overall 

capital investment and treasury management functions. There are specific treasury 
activity limits, which aim to contain the activity of the treasury function in order to 
manage risk and reduce the impact of an adverse movement in interest rates. 
However, if these are set to be too restrictive, they will impair the opportunities to 
reduce costs/improve performance.  

 
29. The limits are set out in table 3 below.  Cabinet is asked to recommend council 

to approve the limits: 
 
  

Page 80



13 

Table 3: Prudential indicators           

    2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

    Approved Estimate Estimate Estimate 

    £m £m £m £m 

Debt       

Authorised limit for external debt       

Borrowing  30 30 30 30 

Other long-term liabilities  0 0 0 0 

   35 35 35 35 

Operational boundary for external debt       

Borrowing  25 25 25 25 

Other long-term liabilities  0 0 0 0 

   30 30 30 30 

Interest rate exposures       

Maximum fixed rate borrowing  100% 100% 100% 100% 

Maximum variable rate borrowing  100% 100% 100% 100% 
        

Investments       

Interest rate exposures       

Limits on fixed interest rates  100% 100% 100% 100% 

Limits on variable interest rates  50 100 100 100 
        

Principal sums invested > 364 days       

Upper limit for principal sums invested 
>364 days  40 45 40 30 

            

 
Current position 
 
30. The maturity structure of the council’s investments at 30 November 2021 was as 

follows: 
 

Table 4: maturity structure of investments: 

  Total 

% Holding 

  

  £000's   

Call and notice accounts              13,000 9%   

Money Market Funds              17,220  12%   

Less than 6 months              41,000  28%   

6 months to 1 year              50,000  34%   

1 year +               23,000  16%   

CCLA - Property Fund                2,000  1%   

Total Investments            146,220  100%   

 
Note: £146 million does not represent uncommitted resource the council has at its 
disposal. This amount includes council tax receipts held prior to forwarding to 
Oxfordshire County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames 
Valley, business rate receipts prior to payment to the government and committed capital 

Page 81



14 

and revenue balances. Details of the council’s uncommitted balances are provided in 
the annual budget and council tax setting report. 

 
31. The council currently holds all of its investments in the form of either cash deposits 

or a managed property fund (£2 million with CCLA), the majority of which have 
been placed for fixed terms with a fixed investment return. 

 
32. The council's considerations for investment will remain security, liquidity and yield – 

in that order. Officers undertaking Treasury Management will work towards the 
optimum profile distribution. 

 

Investment performance for the year to 30 November 2021. 
 

33. The council’s budgeted investment return for 2021/22 is £0.6 million, and the actual 
interest received to date is shown as follows: 

   

Table 5: Investment interest earned by investment type   

    Interest Earned 

   Annual Actual Annual Forecast 

Investment type  Budget to date Forecast Variation 

   £000 £000 £000 £000 
        

Fixed term and call cash  471 175 449 (22) 

CCLA   87  66   95 8 

Total interest   558 241 544 (14) 

 
Borrowing Strategy 2022/23 
 
34. The annual treasury management strategy has to set out details of the council’s 

borrowing requirement, any maturing debt which will need to be re-financed, and 
the effect this will have on the treasury position over the next three years. This 
council currently has no external debt and in general, the council will borrow for one 
of two purposes; 

 

 to support cash flow in the short-term; 

 to fund capital investment over the medium to long term. 
 

35. Any borrowing undertaken will be within the scope of the boundaries given in the 
prudential indicators shown in Table 2, which allow for the council to borrow up to a 
maximum of £30 million, if such a need arose. This also allows short-term 
borrowing for the cash flow management activities of the authority. 

 
36. The existing capital programme can be financed from internal resources. Additional 

expenditure committed in the future can be financed either by use of reserves or 
internal borrowing or externally (through prudential borrowing). Any decision on 
borrowing will be taken by the Head of Finance based on the optimum cost to the 
council. 

 
37. Any borrowing for capital financing purposes will be assessed by the Head of 

Finance to be prudent, sustainable and affordable 
 

Page 82



15 

38. This strategy allows the Head of Finance to determine the most suitable repayment 
terms of any borrowing to demonstrate affordability and sustainability in the 
medium-term financial plan if required. As a general rule, the term of any borrowing 
will not be longer than the expected life of the capital asset being created. 

 
Policy on borrowing in advance of need 
 

39. The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates 
and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  

 

40. Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism.  

 
Annual investment strategy 2022/23 
 
41. The Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC – this was 

formerly the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)) 
and CIPFA have extended their definition of ‘investments’ to include both financial 
and non-financial investments.  This report deals solely with financial investments, 
(as managed by the treasury management team).  Non-financial investments, 
essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the Capital 
Strategy, (a separate report). 

 

42. The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: - 
 

 DLUHC’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) 

 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 
Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)  

 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018   
 
43. The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and 

then yield, (return). 
 

44. The primary aim of the council’s investment strategy is to maintain the security and 
liquidity of its investments; yield or return on the investment will be a secondary 
consideration, subject to prudent security and liquidity. The council will ensure: 

 

 It has sufficient liquidity in its investments to cover cash flow. For this purpose, it 
has set out parameters for determining the maximum periods for which funds 
may prudently be committed. 

 

 It maintains a policy covering the categories of investment types it will invest in, 
criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate security, and 
monitoring their security. 

 
45. The strategy aims to provide a high degree of flexibility to take appropriate lending 

decisions, with a view to producing a portfolio with an even spread of maturity 

Page 83



16 

periods. This aim is to provide a more even and predictable investment return in the 
medium term. 

 
46. The council’s Head of Finance will ensure a counterparty list (a list of named 

institutions) is maintained in compliance with the recommended credit rating criteria 
(table 6) and will revise the criteria and submit any changes to the credit rating 
criteria to council for approval as necessary. 

 
Investment types 
 
47. The types of investment that the council can use are summarised below. These are 

split under the headings of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ in accordance with the 
statutory guidance. 

 
Specified investment instruments 
 
48. These are high credit quality, sterling investments of not more than one-year 

maturity, or those where the council has the right to be repaid within 12 months if it 
wishes. These would include sterling investments with: 

 

 UK government Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMADF) 

 UK government – treasury bills and Gilts with less than one year to maturity 

 Deposits with UK local authorities 

 Pooled investment vehicles (AAA rated) 

 Deposits with banks and building societies (minimum F1/A- rated) 
 
Non-specified investment instruments 
 
49. These are any other type of investment (i.e. investments not defined as specified, 

above). Examples of non-specified investments include any sterling investments 
with: 

 

 Supranational bonds of 1 to 10 years to maturity 

 UK treasury stock (Gilts) with a maturity of 1 to 10 years 

 Unrated building societies (minimum asset value £1 billion) 

 Bank and building society cash deposits up to 5 years (minimum F1/A- rated) 

 Deposits with UK local authorities up to 5 years to maturity 

 Corporate bonds, Sovereign bonds, and covered bonds 

 Pooled property, pooled bond funds and UK pooled equity funds 

 Diversified Income Funds 

 Multi-Asset Funds 

 Ultra-Dated/Short dated bond Funds 

 Non-UCITS Retail Schemes (NURS) 
 

Approach to investing 
 
50. The council holds approximately £45 million core cash balances which are available 

to invest for more than one year. This is expected to reduce over the medium term 
as the approved capital expenditure is incurred and to fund the revenue budget 
shortfall. 

 

Page 84



17 

51. In addition, the council has funds that are available to deposit on a temporary basis. 
These sums are held pending payment over to another body, for example precept 
payments and council tax. As the balances fluctuate on a daily basis, instant access 
and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits are normally 
utilised for these funds, to ensure funds are available to meet cash flow 
commitments. 

 
52. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 

requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates. Greater returns are 
usually obtainable by investing for longer periods.  While most cash balances are 
required to manage cash flow, where funds can be invested for longer periods, 
options will be carefully assessed. 

 
53. If it is anticipated that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly consideration will be 

given to keeping new deposits short term or variable.  Conversely, if it is thought 
that Bank Rate is likely to fall within an investment time horizon, consideration will 
be given to locking in higher rates currently obtainable, for longer periods. 

 
54. Officers will continue to provide tight controls on the investments placed.  Where 

possible, opportunities to spread the investment risk over different types of 
instruments will be considered. 

 
55. Should market conditions deteriorate suddenly to the extent that the council is 

unable to place money with institutions with the necessary credit rating, it may 
make use of the UK Government deposit account (DMADF). 

 
56. The council has the authority to lend to other local authorities at market rates. 

Whilst investments with other local authorities are considered to be supported by 
central government, officers will consider the financial viability and sustainability of 
the individual local authority before including it on the councils list of approved 
counterparties. 

 
57. In 2013/14 the council invested £2 million in the Churches Charities and Local 

Authorities pooled property investment fund (CCLA). Further investment in property 
funds will be considered during 2022/23. 

 
58. During 2021 the council commissioned a review and health check of its treasury 

management activities.  The assessment, which was undertaken by Link Treasury 
Services, considered the market conditions in which the council was operating, 
compared activity with other local authorities and considered the council’s financial 
position and forecasts. 

 
59. Following an evaluation of investment options available to the council, the council’s 

advisors presented and discussed with officers their recommendations for 
continued effective and efficient management of the investment portfolio. 

 
60. The independent assessment concluded that ‘council officers had successfully 

invested on an active basis through the storm of the pandemic that swept through 
markets during 2020…The council’s return steadily declined through the period 
under review, but it did manage to outperform other Local Authorities.  This was 
driven by the councils’ approach to laddering investments through a longer-term 
time horizon.  However, as seen across the Local Authority investment landscape, 

Page 85



18 

a combination of maturing higher-yielding positions, increasingly low reinvestment 
rates and dwindling counterparty opportunities saw a sustainable decline in yields.’ 

 
61. Link Treasury Services advised that ‘the balance sheet position of the Council 

would suggest that it may have further flexibility to invest in longer-focussed 
investment options to underpin performance over the medium term’.  Following a 
review of the recommendations, it was considered that the use of Ultra Short Dated 
Bond Funds and longer dated bond funds could offer benefits for the council’s cash 
investment portfolio. 

 
62. Ultra Short Dated / Short Dated Bond Funds (USDBF / SDBFs) are fixed income 

funds with varying minimum suggested time horizons, ranging from a few weeks to 
over 12 months.  They use a range of different asset classes for underlying 
investments and offer opportunities for diversification that the council would not be 
able to achieve itself. 

 
67. USDBF/SDBF have a variable net asset value (VNAV). This means the assets are 

‘marked to market’ (re-valued to current market value) on a daily basis and the fund 
unit price adjusted accordingly. Under this calculation basis the unit price fluctuates 
and could, therefore, be higher or lower than the original investment when it is 
redeemed.  

 
68. The nature of USDBF/SDBFs vary, fund sizes range from around £50m to several 

billion pounds.  They are provided by a wide range of managers and utilise a range 
of different investment asset classes.  Consequently, the nature and volatility of 
potential returns vary widely.  In order to ensure that funds selected are appropriate 
for the council’s investment portfolio and the nature and risks of funds are fully 
understood, the council will engage Link Treasury Services to support a fund 
selection exercise.  

 
Counterparty selection 

 
69. Treasury management risk is the risk of loss of capital to the council. To minimise 

this risk, the council uses credit rating information when considering who to lend to. 
Link Asset Services provide the council with credit rating updates from all three 
ratings agencies – Standard & Poors, Fitch and Moodys. 

 
70. The council will not use the approach suggested by CIPFA of using the lowest 

rating from all three rating agencies in evaluating investment opportunity. This is 
because adopting this approach could leave the council with too few counterparties 
for the strategy to be workable. Instead, whilst the council will have regard to the 
ratings provided by all three rating agencies, Fitch ratings will be used as the basis 
for setting minimum credit criteria and deriving counterparty investment limits. 

 
71. Where counterparties fail to meet the minimum required criteria (Table 6 below) 

they will be omitted from the counterparty list. Any rating changes and rating 
watches (notification of a rating change under consideration) are provided to 
officers almost immediately after they occur, and this information is considered 
before any deal is entered into. Extreme market movements may result in a 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the council’s lending list. 

 
72. Additional requirements under the CIPFA Treasury Management Code require the 

council to supplement the credit rating data with operational market information 

Page 86



19 

such as credit default swaps (CDS), negative watches and outlooks, which are 
considered when assessing the security of counterparties. This additional 
information is used so that the council does not rely solely on the current credit 
ratings of counterparties. 

 
73. Where it is felt the council would benefit from utilising government guarantees 

provided by countries with an AAA rating, the council may lend to institutions 
covered by such guarantees. Any decision to lend in this way will be subject to 
consultation with the agreement of the cabinet member responsible for finance. 

 
Country and sector considerations 
 
74. The council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties outside the 

UK from countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch Ratings. 
This change from the previous AAA rating is in line with the current Fitch Sovereign 
rating for the UK.  This is to enable deposits to be placed with foreign financial 
institutions with higher, or equivalent credit ratings to UK banks on the approved 
counterparty list. 

 
Counterparty limits 
 
75. In the normal course of the council’s cash flow operations, it is expected that both 

specified and non-specified investments will be used for the control of liquidity.  
Guidance states that specified investments are those requiring “minimal procedural 
formalities”. The placing of cash on deposit with banks and building societies 
‘awarded high credit ratings by a credit rating agency’, the use of Money Market 
Funds (MMFs) and investments with the UK Government and local authorities 
qualify as falling under this category and form a normal part of day-to-day treasury 
management activity.  

 
76. All specified investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to a 

maximum of 1 year, meeting the ‘high’ credit rating criteria where applicable. 
 
77. Non-specified investment products are those which take on greater risk. They are 

subject to greater scrutiny and include all longer-term instruments (greater than one 
year from inception to repayment). The council will lend to institutions that meet the 
criteria outlined in table 6 below: 

 
78. The counterparty limits apply at the time investments are arranged. Where the 

council has deposits on instant access, this limit may temporarily be exceeded by 
the accrual and application of interest or dividends into accounts such as call 
accounts, money market funds, or notice accounts.  Where the application of 
interest causes the balance with a counterparty to exceed the agreed limits, the 
balance will be reduced when appropriate, dependent upon the terms and 
conditions of the account and the cashflow position. 

 
79. The counterparty limits apply to the net cash value of units purchased and sold at 

the time of investment, or disinvestment, in pooled and managed funds.  The limits 
will not apply to the value of accumulated or reinvested investment returns. 
 

Page 87



20 

 
  
80. The criteria for choosing counterparties provides a sound approach to investment. 

Whilst councillors are asked to approve the criteria in table 6, under exceptional 
market conditions the Head of Finance may temporarily restrict further investment 
activity to those counterparties considered of higher credit quality than the minimum 
criteria set out for approval. 

Table 6: Counterparty Limits

Individual

Counterparty

Limit

Specified Instruments

Term Deposits - UK Government

UK Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility

UK Government Treasury Bills

UK Government Gilts

Term Deposits - Other UK Local Authorities N/A N/A £20m

Term Deposits - Banks and Building Societies F1 A- £13m

Covered Bonds N/A A- £5m

Money Market Funds (CNAV) £30m Liquid

Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds £20m Liquid

Non-Specified Instruments

Term Deposits 1yr + - UK Government N/A N/A N/A 5 years 100%

Term Deposits 1yr + - Other UK Local Authorities N/A N/A £20m 5 years 100%

Banks - part nationalised UK N/A N/A £15m 3 years 100%

Institutions with a minimum rating:    F1+ AA- £10m 5 years 80%

Institutions with a minimum rating:  F1 A- £10m 2 years 80%

Institutions with a minimum rating: F2 BBB £5m 1 year 70%

Building Societies F2 BBB+ £7m 1 year 70%

Building societies assets >£1bn N/A N/A £6m 1 year 50%

Banks - house bank N/A N/A £5m 3 months 20%

Managed Funds

Money Market funds (LVNAV & VNAV) £20m Liquid 70%

Bond Funds £15m Variable 70%

Pooled property funds £10m Variable 15%

Non-UCITS Retail Scheme (NURS) £3m Variable 50%

Diversified Income Funds £3m Variable 10%

Multi - Asset Funds £3m Variable 10%

Equity Funds £3m Variable 10%

Tradable Instruments

UK Government Gilts with maturities over 1yr UK sovereign No limit 25 years 20%

Supranationals AAA £10m 10 years 50%

Corporate Bonds AA- £5m 5 years 40%

Covered Bonds maturities over 1yr AA- £5m 5 years 40%

Bonds issued by Multilateral Development banks AA- £5m 5 years 40%

Sovereign Bond Issues AA- £5m 5 years 40%

Maximum % 

of total 

investments

Minimum Fitch 

Long term Rating ( 

or equivalent)

Use of these instruments can be 

deemed capital expenditure.  The 

council will seek guidance on the 

status of any fund it may consider 

using.  Appropriate due diligence will 

also be undertaken before investment 

of this type is undertaken.

Minimum Fitch 

Short term Rating 

( or equivalent)

Maximum 

maturity 

period

1
0
0
%

N/A

Fund Rating AAA

1
 y

e
a
r

Fund Rating AAA

Page 88



21 

 
81. On 31 March 2020 the Head of Finance waived financial procedure rule 53 and 

allowed the councils to over-ride their counter party limits for money market funds.  
This was to allow the councils to deal with the receipt of unprecedented levels of 
government grant funding to fund the business grant schemes administered by the 
councils on behalf of the government. 

 
82. Delegation 2.7 of the council constitutions allows the Head of Finance, in 

consultation with the cabinet member for finance, to raise counterparty limits by 
£3,000,000 within a financial year.   

 
83. Due to the increase in cash flow peak levels the increased limits have been 

required throughout 2020/21 and 2021/22 and as it is anticipated that they will 
continue to be required during 2022/23, the increases have been incorporated in to 
the counterparty table and are regarded as permanent. 

 
Fund managers 
 
84. The council does not currently employ any discretionary external fund managers. 

However, in the event of such an appointment, appointees will comply with this and 
subsequent treasury strategies. This strategy empowers the Section 151 officer to 
appoint such an external manager to manage a proportion of the council’s 
investment portfolio if this is advantageous. 

 
Risk and Performance Benchmarks 
 
85. A requirement of the Code is that security and liquidity benchmarks are considered 

and approved. This is in addition to yield benchmarks which are used to assess 
performance. The benchmarks are guidelines (not limits) so may be breached 
depending on the movement in interest rates and counterparty criteria. Their 
purpose is to allow officers to monitor the current trend position and amend the 
operational strategy depending on any changes. Any breach of the benchmarks will 
be reported, with an explanation in the mid-year or annual report to audit and 
governance committee. Detailed information for the assessment of risk is shown in 
appendix C. 

 

86. Performance indicators are set to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over 
the year. These are distinct historic performance indicators, as opposed to the 
predominantly forward-looking prudential indicators. The indicators used to assess 
the performance of the treasury function are: 
 

 Cash investments – 3-month compounded SONIA rate. 

 Property related investments – IPD Balance Property Unit Trust Index. 
 
87. The results of these indicators will be reported in both the annual mid-year and 

year-end treasury reports. 
 

Policy on the use of treasury management advisors 
 
88. The council has a joint contract with South Oxfordshire District Council for treasury 

management advice, which is currently supplied by Link Asset Services.  A range of 
services are provided and include: 

 

Page 89



22 

 technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues, statutory reports; 

 economic forecasts and interest rate analysis; 

 credit ratings / market information service involving the three-main credit rating 
agencies; 

 strategic advice including a review of the investment and borrowing strategies 
 and policy documents; 

 treasury management training. 
 
89. The council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 

always remains with the organisation and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon external service providers. It also recognises that there is value in 
employing external providers of treasury management services in order to acquire 
access to specialist skills, resources and up to date market information. 

 
Treasury management scheme of delegation and the role of the Section 151 
officer 
 
90. Council 

 

 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices 
and activities; 

 approval of annual strategy. 
 
91. Joint Audit and Governance Committee/ Cabinet  

 approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices; 

 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations; 

 Ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management function 

 
92. Section 151 Officer/Interim Head of Finance  

 

 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, 
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

 submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 

 submitting budgets and budget variations; 

 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 

 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function; 

 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 

 Approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 
appointment.  

 

93. The above list of specific responsibilities of the S151 officer in the 2017 Treasury 
Management Code has not changed.  However, implicit in the changes in both 
codes, is a major extension of the functions of this role, especially in respect of non-
financial investments, (which CIPFA has defined as being part of treasury 
management), (See Appendix G). 

Page 90



23 

 
Summary 

 

94. Prior to the beginning of each financial year the council must approve the treasury 
management strategy. The strategy sets the parameters within which officers can 
manage the council’s cash flows and invest any surplus fund. 

 

95. This strategy provides a commentary on the current financial climate and sets out 
the council’s lending strategy in response to this. 

  

Page 91



24 

Appendix B  

ECONOMIC BACKGROUND – Provided by Link Treasury Services 

COVID-19 vaccines.  

These were the game changer during 2021 which raised high hopes that life in the UK 
would be able to largely return to normal in the second half of the year. However, the 
bursting onto the scene of the Omicron mutation at the end of November, rendered the 
initial two doses of all vaccines largely ineffective in preventing infection. This has 
dashed such hopes and raises the spectre again that a fourth wave of the virus could 
overwhelm hospitals in early 2022. What we now know is that this mutation is very fast 
spreading with the potential for total case numbers to double every two to three days, 
although it possibly may not cause so much severe illness as previous mutations.  

Rather than go for full lockdowns which heavily damage the economy, the government 
strategy this time is focusing on getting as many people as possible to have a third 
(booster) vaccination after three months from the previous last injection, as a booster 
has been shown to restore a high percentage of immunity to Omicron to those who 
have had two vaccinations. There is now a race on between how quickly boosters can 
be given to limit the spread of Omicron, and how quickly will hospitals fill up and 
potentially be unable to cope. In the meantime, workers have been requested to work 
from home and restrictions have been placed on large indoor gatherings and hospitality 
venues. 

With the household saving rate having been exceptionally high since the first lockdown 
in March 2020, there is plenty of pent-up demand and purchasing power stored up for 
services in sectors like restaurants, travel, tourism and hotels which had been hit hard 
during 2021, but could now be hit hard again by either, or both, of government 
restrictions and/or consumer reluctance to leave home. 

Growth will also be lower due to people being ill and not working, similar to the 
pingdemic in July. The economy, therefore, faces significant headwinds although some 
sectors have learned how to cope well with Covid. However, the biggest impact on 
growth would come from another lockdown if that happened. 

The big question still remains as to whether any further mutations of this virus could 
develop which render all current vaccines ineffective, as opposed to how quickly 
vaccines can be modified to deal with them and enhanced testing programmes be 
implemented to contain their spread until tweaked vaccines become widely available. 

 
A SUMMARY OVERVIEW OF THE FUTURE PATH OF BANK RATE 

 In December, the Bank of England became the first major western central bank to 
put interest rates up in this upswing in the current business cycle in western 
economies as recovery progresses from the Covid recession of 2020. 

 The next increase in Bank Rate could be in February or May, dependent on how 
severe an impact there is from Omicron. 

 If there are lockdowns in January, this could pose a barrier for the MPC to putting 
Bank Rate up again as early as 3rd February. 

 With inflation expected to peak at around 6% in April, the MPC may want to be 
seen to be active in taking action to counter inflation on 5th May, the release date for 
its Quarterly Monetary Policy Report. 

 The December 2021 MPC meeting was more concerned with combating inflation 
over the medium term than supporting economic growth in the short term. 

Page 92



25 

 Bank Rate increases beyond May are difficult to forecast as inflation is likely to drop 
sharply in the second half of 2022. 

 However, the MPC will want to normalise Bank Rate over the next three years so 
that it has its main monetary policy tool ready to use in time for the next down-turn; 
all rates under 2% are providing stimulus to economic growth. 

 We have put year end 0.25% increases into Q1 of each financial year from 2023 to 
recognise this upward bias in Bank Rate - but the actual timing in each year is 
difficult to predict. 

 Covid remains a major potential downside threat in all three years as we ARE likely 
to get further mutations. 

 How quickly can science come up with a mutation proof vaccine, or other treatment, 
– and for them to be widely administered around the world? 

 Purchases of gilts under QE ended in December.  Note that when Bank Rate 
reaches 0.50%, the MPC has said it will start running down its stock of QE.   

 
MPC MEETING 16H DECEMBER 2021 
 The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted 8-1 to raise Bank Rate by 0.15% from 

0.10% to 0.25% and unanimously decided to make no changes to its programme of 
quantitative easing purchases due to finish in December 2021 at a total of £895bn. 

 
 The MPC disappointed financial markets by not raising Bank Rate at its November 

meeting. Until Omicron burst on the scene, most forecasters, therefore, viewed a 
Bank Rate increase as being near certain at this December meeting due to the way 
that inflationary pressures have been comprehensively building in both producer 
and consumer prices, and in wage rates. However, at the November meeting, the 
MPC decided it wanted to have assurance that the labour market would get over 
the end of the furlough scheme on 30th September without unemployment 
increasing sharply; their decision was, therefore, to wait until statistics were 
available to show how the economy had fared at this time.   

 
 On 10th December we learnt of the disappointing 0.1% m/m rise in GDP in 

October which suggested that economic growth had already slowed to a crawl even 
before the Omicron variant was discovered in late November. Early evidence 
suggests growth in November might have been marginally better. Nonetheless, at 
such low rates of growth, the government’s “Plan B” COVID-19 restrictions could 
cause the economy to contract in December. 

 
 On 14th December, the labour market statistics for the three months to October 

and the single month of October were released.  The fallout after the furlough 
scheme was smaller and shorter than the Bank of England had feared. The single-
month data were more informative and showed that LFS employment fell by 
240,000, unemployment increased by 75,000 and the unemployment rate rose from 
3.9% in September to 4.2%. However, the weekly data suggested this didn’t last 
long as unemployment was falling again by the end of October. What’s more, the 
49,700 fall in the claimant count and the 257,000 rise in the PAYE measure of 
company payrolls suggests that the labour market strengthened again in 
November.  The other side of the coin was a further rise in the number of vacancies 
from 1.182m to a record 1.219m in the three months to November which suggests 
that the supply of labour is struggling to keep up with demand, although the single-
month figure for November fell for the first time since February, from 1.307m to 
1.227m. 

 

Page 93



26 

 These figures by themselves, would probably have been enough to give the MPC 
the assurance that it could press ahead to raise Bank Rate at this December 
meeting.  However, the advent of Omicron potentially threw a spanner into the 
works as it poses a major headwind to the economy which, of itself, will help to cool 
the economy.  The financial markets, therefore, swung round to expecting no 
change in Bank Rate.  

 
 On 15th December we had the CPI inflation figure for November which spiked up 

further from 4.2% to 5.1%, confirming again how inflationary pressures have been 
building sharply. However, Omicron also caused a sharp fall in world oil and other 
commodity prices; (gas and electricity inflation has generally accounted on average 
for about 60% of the increase in inflation in advanced western economies).  

 
 Other elements of inflation are also transitory e.g., prices of goods being forced 

up by supply shortages, and shortages of shipping containers due to ports being 
clogged have caused huge increases in shipping costs.  But these issues are likely 
to clear during 2022, and then prices will subside back to more normal levels.  Gas 
prices and electricity prices will also fall back once winter is passed and demand for 
these falls away.  

 
 Although it is possible that the Government could step in with some fiscal support 

for the economy, the huge cost of such support to date is likely to pose a barrier to 
incurring further major economy wide expenditure unless it is very limited and 
targeted on narrow sectors like hospitality, (as announced just before Christmas). 
The Government may well, therefore, effectively leave it to the MPC, and to 
monetary policy, to support economic growth – but at a time when the threat posed 
by rising inflation is near to peaking! 

 
 This is the adverse set of factors against which the MPC had to decide on Bank 

Rate. For the second month in a row, the MPC blind-sided financial markets, this 
time with a surprise increase in Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25%.  What’s more, 
the hawkish tone of comments indicated that the MPC is now concerned that 
inflationary pressures are indeed building and need concerted action by the MPC to 
counter. This indicates that there will be more increases to come with financial 
markets predicting 1% by the end of 2022. The 8-1 vote to raise the rate shows that 
there is firm agreement that inflation now poses a threat, especially after the CPI 
figure hit a 10-year high this week. The MPC commented that “there has been 
significant upside news” and that “there were some signs of greater persistence in 
domestic costs and price pressures”.  

 
 On the other hand, it did also comment that “the Omicron variant is likely to 

weigh on near-term activity”. But it stressed that at the November meeting it had 
said it would raise rates if the economy evolved as it expected and that now “these 
conditions had been met”.  It also appeared more worried about the possible boost 
to inflation form Omicron itself. It said that “the current position of the global and UK 
economies was materially different compared with prior to the onset of the 
pandemic, including elevated levels of consumer price inflation”. It also noted the 
possibility that renewed social distancing would boost demand for goods again, (as 
demand for services would fall), meaning “global price pressures might persist for 
longer”. (Recent news is that the largest port in the world in China has come down 
with an Omicron outbreak which is not only affecting the port but also factories in 
the region.) 

 

Page 94



27 

 On top of that, there were no references this month to inflation being expected to be 
below the 2% target in two years’ time, which at November’s meeting the MPC 
referenced to suggest the markets had gone too far in expecting interest rates to 
rise to over 1.00% by the end of the year.  

 
 These comments indicate that there has been a material reappraisal by the MPC of 

the inflationary pressures since their last meeting and the Bank also increased its 
forecast for inflation to peak at 6% next April, rather than at 5% as of a month ago. 
However, as the Bank retained its guidance that only a “modest tightening” in 
policy will be required, it cannot be thinking that it will need to increase interest 
rates that much more. A typical policy tightening cycle has usually involved rates 
rising by 0.25% four times in a year. “Modest” seems slower than that. As such, the 
Bank could be thinking about raising interest rates two or three times next year to 
0.75% or 1.00%. 

 
 In as much as a considerable part of the inflationary pressures at the current time 

are indeed transitory, and will naturally subside, and since economic growth is 
likely to be weak over the next few months, this would appear to indicate that this 
tightening cycle is likely to be comparatively short.  

 
 As for the timing of the next increase in Bank Rate, the MPC dropped the comment 

from November’s statement that Bank Rate would be raised “in the coming 
months”. That may imply another rise is unlikely at the next meeting in February 
and that May is more likely.  However, much could depend on how adversely, or 
not, the economy is affected by Omicron in the run up to the next meeting on 3rd 
February.  Once 0.50% is reached, the Bank would act to start shrinking its stock of 
QE, (gilts purchased by the Bank would not be replaced when they mature). 

 
 The MPC’s forward guidance on its intended monetary policy on raising Bank 

Rate versus selling (quantitative easing) holdings of bonds is as follows: - 
o Raising Bank Rate as “the active instrument in most circumstances”. 
o Raising Bank Rate to 0.50% before starting on reducing its holdings. 
o Once Bank Rate is at 0.50% it would stop reinvesting maturing gilts. 
o Once Bank Rate had risen to at least 1%, it would start selling its holdings. 

 
 US.  Shortages of goods and intermediate goods like semi-conductors, have been 

fuelling increases in prices and reducing economic growth potential. In November, 
CPI inflation hit a near 40-year record level of 6.8% but with energy prices then 
falling sharply, this is probably the peak. The biggest problem for the Fed is the 
mounting evidence of a strong pick-up in cyclical price pressures e.g., in rent which 
has hit a decades high. 

  
 Shortages of labour have also been driving up wage rates sharply; this also poses 

a considerable threat to feeding back into producer prices and then into consumer 
prices inflation. It now also appears that there has been a sustained drop in the 
labour force which suggests the pandemic has had a longer-term scarring effect in 
reducing potential GDP. Economic growth may therefore be reduced to between 2 
and 3% in 2022 and 2023 while core inflation is likely to remain elevated at around 
3% in both years instead of declining back to the Fed’s 2% central target. 

 
 Inflation hitting 6.8% and the feed through into second round effects, meant that it 

was near certain that the Fed’s meeting of 15th December would take aggressive 
action against inflation. Accordingly, the rate of tapering of monthly $120bn QE 

Page 95



28 

purchases announced at its November 3rd meeting. was doubled so that all 
purchases would now finish in February 2022.  In addition, Fed officials had started 
discussions on running down the stock of QE held by the Fed. Fed officials also 
expected three rate rises in 2022 of 0.25% from near zero currently, followed by 
three in 2023 and two in 2024, taking rates back above 2% to a neutral level for 
monetary policy.  

 
 The first increase could come as soon as March 2022 as the chairman of the Fed 

stated his view that the economy had made rapid progress to achieving the other 
goal of the Fed – “maximum employment”. The Fed forecast that inflation would fall 
from an average of 5.3% in 2021 to 2.6% in 2023, still above its target of 2% and 
both figures significantly up from previous forecasts. What was also significant was 
that this month the Fed dropped its description of the current level of inflation as 
being “transitory” and instead referred to “elevated levels” of inflation: the statement 
also dropped most of the language around the flexible average inflation target, with 
inflation now described as having exceeded 2 percent “for some time”. It did not see 
Omicron as being a major impediment to the need to take action now to curtail the 
level of inflationary pressures that have built up, although Fed officials did note that 
it has the potential to exacerbate supply chain problems and add to price pressures. 

 
See also comments in paragraph 3.3 under PWLB rates and gilt yields. 

 
 EU. The slow role out of vaccines initially delayed economic recovery in early 2021 

but the vaccination rate then picked up sharply.  After a contraction of -0.3% in Q1, 
Q2 came in with strong growth of 2%. With Q3 at 2.2%, the EU recovery was then 
within 0.5% of its pre Covid size. However, the arrival of Omicron is now a major 
headwind to growth in quarter 4 and the expected downturn into weak growth could 
well turn negative, with the outlook for the first two months of 2022 expected to 
continue to be very weak.  

   
 November’s inflation figures breakdown shows that the increase in price 

pressures is not just due to high energy costs and global demand-supply 
imbalances for durable goods as services inflation also rose. Headline inflation 
reached 4.9% in November, with over half of that due to energy. However, oil and 
gas prices are expected to fall after the winter and so energy inflation is expected to 
plummet in 2022.  

 
 Core goods inflation rose to 2.4% in November, its second highest ever level, and is 

likely to remain high for some time as it will take a long time for the inflationary 
impact of global imbalances in the demand and supply of durable goods to 
disappear. Price pressures also increased in the services sector, but wage growth 
remains subdued and there are no signs of a trend of faster wage growth which 
might lead to persistently higher services inflation - which would get the ECB 
concerned. The upshot is that the euro-zone is set for a prolonged period of 
inflation being above the ECB’s target of 2% and it is likely to average 3% in 2022, 
in line with the ECB’s latest projection. 

 
 ECB tapering. The ECB has joined with the Fed by also announcing at its meeting 

on 16th December that it will be reducing its QE purchases - by half from October 
2022, i.e., it will still be providing significant stimulus via QE purchases for over half 
of next year.  However, as inflation will fall back sharply during 2022, it is likely that 
it will leave its central rate below zero, (currently -0.50%), over the next two years. 
The main struggle that the ECB has had in recent years is that inflation has been 

Page 96



29 

doggedly anaemic in sticking below the ECB’s target rate despite all its major 
programmes of monetary easing by cutting rates into negative territory and 
providing QE support.  

 
 The ECB will now also need to consider the impact of Omicron on the economy, 

and it stated at its December meeting that it is prepared to provide further QE 
support if the pandemic causes bond yield spreads of peripheral countries, 
(compared to the yields of northern EU countries), to rise. However, that is the only 
reason it will support peripheral yields, so this support is limited in its scope. 

 

 The EU has entered into a period of political uncertainty where a new German 
government formed of a coalition of three parties with Olaf Scholz replacing Angela 
Merkel as Chancellor in December 2021, will need to find its feet both within the EU 
and in the three parties successfully working together.  

 

 In France there is a presidential election coming up in April 2022 followed by the 
legislative election in June. In addition, Italy needs to elect a new president in 
January with Prime Minister Draghi being a favourite due to having suitable gravitas 
for this post.  However, if he switched office, there is a significant risk that the 
current government coalition could collapse. That could then cause differentials 
between Italian and German bonds to widen when 2022 will also see a gradual 
running down of ECB support for the bonds of weaker countries within the EU. 
These political uncertainties could have repercussions on economies and on Brexit 
issues. 

 

 CHINA.  After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 2020, 
economic recovery was strong in the rest of 2020; this enabled China to recover all 
the initial contraction. During 2020, policy makers both quashed the virus and 
implemented a programme of monetary and fiscal support that was particularly 
effective at stimulating short-term growth. At the same time, China’s economy 
benefited from the shift towards online spending by consumers in developed 
markets. These factors helped to explain its comparative outperformance compared 
to western economies during 2020 and earlier in 2021. 

 

 However, the pace of economic growth has now fallen back in 2021 after this initial 
surge of recovery from the pandemic and looks likely to be particularly weak in 
2022. China has been struggling to contain the spread of the Delta variant through 
using sharp local lockdowns - which depress economic growth. Chinese consumers 
are also being very wary about leaving home and so spending money on services. 
However, with Omicron having now spread to China, and being much more easily 
transmissible, this strategy of sharp local lockdowns to stop the virus may not prove 
so successful in future. In addition, the current pace of providing boosters at 100 
billion per month will leave much of the 1.4 billion population exposed to Omicron, 
and any further mutations, for a considerable time.  

 

 The People’s Bank of China made a start in December 2021 on cutting its key 
interest rate marginally so as to stimulate economic growth. However, after credit 
has already expanded by around 25% in just the last two years, it will probably 
leave the heavy lifting in supporting growth to fiscal stimulus by central and local 
government. 

 

Page 97



30 

 Supply shortages, especially of coal for power generation, were causing 
widespread power cuts to industry during the second half of 2021 and so a sharp 
disruptive impact on some sectors of the economy. In addition, recent regulatory 
actions motivated by a political agenda to channel activities into officially approved 
directions, are also likely to reduce the dynamism and long-term growth of the 
Chinese economy.  

 

 JAPAN. 2021 has been a patchy year in combating Covid.  However, recent 
business surveys indicate that the economy has been rebounding rapidly in 2021 
once the bulk of the population had been double vaccinated and new virus cases 
had plunged. However, Omicron could reverse this initial success in combating 
Covid.  

 

 The Bank of Japan is continuing its very loose monetary policy but with little 
prospect of getting inflation back above 1% towards its target of 2%, any time soon: 
indeed, inflation was actually negative in July. New Prime Minister Kishida, having 
won the November general election, brought in a supplementary budget to boost 
growth, but it is unlikely to have a major effect.  

 

 WORLD GROWTH.  World growth was in recession in 2020 but recovered during 
2021 until starting to lose momentum in the second half of the year, though overall 
growth for the year is expected to be about 6% and to be around 4-5% in 2022. 
Inflation has been rising due to increases in gas and electricity prices, shipping 
costs and supply shortages, although these should subside during 2022.  

 

 While headline inflation will fall sharply, core inflation will probably not fall as quickly 
as central bankers would hope. It is likely that we are heading into a period where 
there will be a reversal of world globalisation and a decoupling of western 
countries from dependence on China to supply products, and vice versa. This is 
likely to reduce world growth rates from those in prior decades.  

 

 SUPPLY SHORTAGES. The pandemic and extreme weather events, followed by a 
major surge in demand after lockdowns ended, have been highly disruptive of 
extended worldwide supply chains.  Major queues of ships unable to unload their 
goods at ports in New York, California and China built up rapidly during quarters 2 
and 3 of 2021 but then halved during quarter 4. Such issues have led to a 
misdistribution of shipping containers around the world and have contributed to a 
huge increase in the cost of shipping. Combined with a shortage of semi-
conductors, these issues have had a disruptive impact on production in many 
countries.  

 

 The latest additional disruption has been a shortage of coal in China leading to 
power cuts focused primarily on producers (rather than consumers), i.e., this will 
further aggravate shortages in meeting demand for goods. Many western countries 
are also hitting up against a difficulty in filling job vacancies. It is expected that 
these issues will be gradually sorted out, but they are currently contributing to a 
spike upwards in inflation and shortages of materials and goods available to 
purchase.  

 
  

Page 98



31 

Appendix C 
 
Benchmarking and Monitoring Security, Liquidity and Yield in the Investment 
Service. 
 
1. These benchmarks are targets and so may be exceeded from time to time. Any 
variation will be reported, along with supporting reasons, in the Annual Treasury 
Report. 
 
2. Yield.  
 
This council will use an investment benchmark to assess the performance of cash 
investments of three-month SONIA.  Property related investments are benchmarked 
against the IPD Balanced Property Unit Trust Index. 
 
3. Liquidity.  
 
Liquidity is defined as the council “having adequate, though not excessive, cash 
resources, borrowing arrangements, overdrafts or standby facilities to enable it at all 
times to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the achievement 
of its business/service objectives” (CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice). 
 
4. In respect of this area, the council shall seek to: 
 

 maintain a minimal balance held in the council’s main bank account at the close 
of each working day. Transfers to the councils call accounts, MMF and 
investments will be arranged in order to achieve this, while maintaining access to 
adequate working capital at short notice. 

 

 use the authorised bank overdraft facility or short-term borrowing where there is 
clear business case for doing so, to cover working capital requirements at short 
notice 

 
5. Security of the investments.  
 
In the context of benchmarking, assessing security is very much more a subjective area 
to assess. Security is currently evidenced by the application of minimum credit quality 
criteria to investment counterparties, primarily through the use of credit ratings supplied 
by the three main credit rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s). 
Whilst this approach embodies security considerations, benchmarking levels of risk is 
more problematic.  
 
One method to benchmark security risk is to assess the historic level of default against 
the minimum criteria used in the Council’s investment strategy. The table beneath 
shows average defaults for differing periods of investment grade products for each Fitch 
long term rating category over the last 20-30 years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



32 

Average defaults for differing periods of investment 
 

Long 
term rating  

1 year  2 years  3 years  4 years  5 years 

AA  0.02%  0.04% 0.09% 0.16% 0.23% 

A  0.05%  0.14%  0.26%  0.38%  0.54% 

BBB  0.14%  0.38%  0.66%  1.01%  1.36% 

 

6. The council’s minimum long term (i.e. plus 365 day duration) rating criteria is 
currently “A-”. For comparison, the average expectation of default for a two year 
investment in a counterparty with an “A” long term rating would be 0.14 per cent of the 
total investment (e.g. for a £1m investment the average loss would be £1,400). This is 
an average - any specific counterparty loss is likely to be higher. These figures act as a 
proxy benchmark for risk across the portfolio. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 100



33 

Appendix D 
 

Explanation of Prudential and Treasury Indicators 
Prudential borrowing permits local government organisations to borrow to fund capital 
spending plans provided they could demonstrate their affordability. Prudential indicators 
are the means to demonstrate affordability. 
 
Authorised limit for external debt – this is the maximum limit for external borrowing. 
This is the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. This limit is set to allow sufficient headroom for day-to-day operational 
management of cash flows. 
 
Operational boundary for external debt – this is set as the more likely amount that 
may be required for day-to-day cash flow. 
 
Upper limit for fixed and variable interest rate exposure – these limits allow the 
council flexibility in its investment and borrowing options. 
 
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 365 days – the amount it is 
considered can be prudently invested for periods in excess of a year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 101



34 

Appendix E 

 
Treasury Management Practice (TMP) 1 – credit and counterparty risk 
management 
 
The CLG issued Investment Guidance in 2010, and this forms the structure of the 
council’s policy below. 

The key aim of the guidance is to maintain the current requirement for councils to invest 
prudently, and that priority is given to security and liquidity before yield. In order to 
facilitate this objective, the guidance requires this council to have regard to the CIPFA 
publication Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-
Sectoral Guidance Notes. In accordance with the code, the Interim Head of Finance 
has produced its treasury management practices (TMPs). This part, TMP1(1), covering 
investment counterparty policy requires approval each year 

 

The key requirements of both the Code and the investment guidance are to set an 
annual investment strategy, as part of its annual treasury strategy for the following year, 
covering the identification and approval of following: 
 

 the strategy guidelines for decision making on investments, particularly non-
specified investments.  

 the principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for which funds can 
be committed. 

 specified investments that the Council will use. These are high security (i.e. high 
credit rating, although this is defined by the Council, and no guidelines are 
given), and high liquidity investments in sterling and with a maturity of no more 
than a year. 

 non-specified investments, clarifying the greater risk implications, identifying the 
general types of investment that may be used and a limit to the overall amount of 
various categories that can be held at any time. 

 
The investment policy proposed for the Council is: 
 
Strategy guidelines – The main strategy guidelines are contained in the body of the 
treasury strategy statement. 
 
Specified investments – These investments are sterling investments of not more than 
one-year maturity, or those which could be for a longer period but where the Council 
has the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes.  These are considered low risk 
assets where the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small.  These 
would include sterling investments which would not be defined as capital expenditure 
with: 
 

 UK government Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMADF) 

 UK government – treasury stock (Gilts) with less than one year to maturity 

 Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration 

 Deposits with UK local authorities 

 Pooled investment vehicles such as Money Market Funds (MMF) (AAA rated) 

 Deposits with banks and building societies (minimum F1/A-) 

Page 102



35 

 Certificates of deposits issued by banks and building societies (minimum rating 
as above) covers pooled investment vehicles, such as money market funds, 
rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s and / or Fitch rating agencies. 
 

Within these bodies, and in accordance with the Code, the council has set additional 
criteria to set the time and amount of monies which will be invested in these bodies. 
These criteria are as stated in table 6 to this report. 
 
Non-specified investments 
These are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined or specified above). The 
identification and rationale supporting the selection of these other investments and the 
maximum limits to be applied are as set out in Table 6. 
 
Implementation in 2018/19 
In December 2017, CIPFA issued a revised Treasury Management Code of Practice 
and a revised Prudential Code. These revisions have particularly focused on non-
treasury investments and especially on the purchase of property with a view to 
generating income.  Such purchases could involve undertaking external borrowing to 
raise the cash to finance these purchases, or the use of existing cash balances.  
 
The 2017 CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management abolished the treasury 
indicators on limits for fixed and variable rate exposure. However, this was on the basis 
that authorities would explain in words how they control interest rate risk.  
 
IFRS  9 
Risk management will need to take account of the 2018/19 Accounting Code of Practice 
proposals for the valuation of investments. Key considerations are: 
 

 Expected credit loss model. Whilst this should not be material for ordinary 
treasury investments such as bank deposits, this is likely to be challenging for 
some funds e.g. property funds, (and also for non-treasury management 
investments dealt with in the capital strategy e.g. longer dated service 
investments, loans to third parties or loans to subsidiaries). 

 The valuation of investments previously valued under the available for sale 
category e.g. equity related to the “commercialism” agenda, property funds, 
equity funds and similar, will be changed to Fair Value through the Profit and 
Loss (FVPL).  

 
Following the consultation undertaken by the then Ministry of Housing, Communities 
and Local Government, [MHCLG], on IFRS9 the Government has introduced a 
mandatory statutory override for local authorities to reverse out all unrealised fair value 
movements resulting from pooled investment funds. This will be effective from 1 April 
2018.  The statutory override applies for five years from this date. Local authorities are 
required to disclose the net impact of the unrealised fair value movements in a separate 
unusable reserve throughout the duration of the override in order for the Government to 
keep the override under review and to maintain a form of transparency. 
 

  

Page 103



36 

Appendix F 
 
Extension to the specific responsibilities of the S151 officer as per the Treasury 
Management code 
 

The below list of specific responsibilities of the S151 officer in the 2017 Treasury 
Management Code has not changed.  However, implicit in the changes in both codes, is 
a major extension of the functions of this role, especially in respect of non-financial 
investments, (which CIPFA has defined as being part of treasury management); 

 

 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, 
non-financial investments and treasury management, with a long-term 
timeframe. 

 ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent 
in the long term and provides value for money 

 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority 

 ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure 
on non-financial assets and their financing 

 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not 
undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level 
of risk compared to its financial resources 

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, 
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and 
long-term liabilities 

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including 
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial 
guarantees  

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk 
exposures taken on by an authority 

 ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally 
provided, to carry out the above 

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non 
treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following 

o Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and risk 
management criteria for any material non-treasury investment portfolios; 

  
o Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and schedules), 

including methodology and criteria for assessing the performance and 
success of non-treasury investments;          

  
o Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and schedules), 

including a statement of the governance requirements for decision making 
in relation to non-treasury investments; and arrangements to ensure that 
appropriate professional due diligence is carried out to support decision 
making; 

  

Page 104



37 

o Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), including 
where and how often monitoring reports are taken; 

  
o Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how the 

relevant knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury investments will 
be arranged. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 105



38 

Appendix G 
 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

Authorised Limit  
The maximum amount of external debt at any one time in the 
financial year. 

Basis Point (BP)  1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01% 

Base Rate  Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the UK. 

Benchmark  
A measure against which the investment policy or performance of a 
fund manager can be compared. 

Bill of Exchange  A financial instrument financing trade. 

Callable Deposit  

A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for a 
set amount of time. However, the borrower has the right to repay 
the funds on pre-agreed dates before maturity. This decision is 
based on how market rates have moved since the deal was agreed. 
If rates have fallen the likelihood of the deposit being repaid rises, 
as cheaper money can be found by the borrower. 

Cash Fund 
Management 

Fund management is the management of an investment portfolio of 
cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, the receipts and 
distribution of dividends and interest, and all other administrative 
work in connection with the portfolio. 

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD) 

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date. They are negotiable instruments and 
have a secondary market; therefore, the holder of a CD is able to 
sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD. 

Commercial 
Paper 

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days 
issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers. Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although some 
may be interest bearing. 

Corporate Bond  

Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by companies. 
However, the term is used to cover all bonds other than those 
issued by governments in their own currencies and includes issues 
by companies, supranational organisations and government 
agencies. 

Counterparty  
Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.) 

CDS  

Credit Default Swap – a swap designed to transfer the credit 
exposure of fixed income products between parties. The buyer of a 
credit swap receives credit protection, whereas the seller of the 
swap guarantees the credit worthiness of the product. By doing 
this, the risk of default is transferred from the holder of the fixed 
income security to the seller of the swap. 

CFR  Capital Financing Requirement. 

CIPFA  Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 

Derivative  

A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 
underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an option 
is a derivative because its value changes in relation to the 
performance of an underlying stock. 

DMADF  
Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government. 

ECB  
European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the EMU 
area. The ECB determines the targets itself for its interest rate 

Page 106



39 

setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a band of 0 to 2 per 
cent. It does not accept that monetary policy is to be used to 
manage fluctuations in unemployment and growth caused by the 
business cycle. 

Enhanced Cash 
Funds 

A pooled investment fund. Longer dated investment than a MMF 
and, unlike a MMF, enhanced cash funds have variable asset 
value. Assets are marked to market on a daily basis and the unit 
prices vary accordingly. Investments can be withdrawn on a notice 
basis (the length of which depends on the fund) although such 
funds would typically be used for investments of 3 to 6 month 
duration. 

Equity  
A share in a company with limited liability. It generally enables the 
holder to share in the profitability of the company through dividend 
payments and capital gain. 

Forward Deal  
The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for an 
agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate. 

Forward Deposits  Same as forward dealing (above). 

Fiscal Policy  The government policy on taxation and welfare payments. 

GDP  Gross Domestic Product. 

Gilt  
Registered British government securities giving the investor an 
absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt that 
those securities represent. 

Mark to Market 
Accounting 

Accounting on the basis of the “fair value” of an asset or liability, 
based on the current market price. As a result, values will change 
with market conditions. 

Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision 

This is a prudent sum set aside each year to offset the principal 
repayment of any loan to smooth the impact on the local taxpayer. 

Money Market 
Fund 

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments. It is very similar 
to a unit trust, however a MMF relies on loans to companies rather 
than share holdings. 

Monetary Policy 
Committee (MPC) 

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to as 
being base rate). Their primary target is to keep inflation within 
plus or minus 1 per cent of a central target of 2.5 per cent in two 
years’ time from the date of the monthly meeting of the committee. 
Their secondary target is to support the government in maintaining 
high and stable levels of growth and employment. 

Non-UCITS Retail 
Scheme (NURS) – 

Undertakings for collective investments are funds authorised to be 
sold in the UK that are required to meet standards set by the UK 
services regulator. An example is property funds. 

Operational 
Boundary 

The most likely, prudent but not worst-case scenario of external 
debt at any one time. 

Other Bonds Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds. 

PWLB  Public Works Loan Board. 

QE  Quantitative Easing. 

Retail Price Index  
Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of prices 
at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure pattern of 
the average person. 

Sovereign Issues 
(Ex UK Gilts) 

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states but excluding UK 
government bonds. 

Page 107



40 

Supranational 
Bonds 

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment 
Bank. The bonds – also known as Multilateral Development Bank 
bonds – are generally AAA rated and behave similarly to gilts, but 
pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their relative illiquidity when 
compared with gilts. 

Treasury Bill  
Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK or 
other governments. They provide a return to the investor by virtue 
of being issued at a discount to their final redemption value. 

 

 
 

Page 108



 

 
 

 

Report to:   

Scrutiny Committee 
 

Cabinet 

Council 

Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Simon Hewings  

Tel: 01235 422499 

E-mail: simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk     

Wards affected: All 

Cabinet Member responsible: Andrew Crawford 

Tel: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                      1 February 2022 
To: CABINET                                                               4 February 2022 
To: COUNCIL                                                             16 February 2022 

 

 

 

Revenue Budget 2022/23 and Capital 

Programme to 2026/27 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That Cabinet recommends to Council that it: 

 sets the revenue budget for 2022/23 as set out in appendix A.1 to this report, 

 approves the capital programme for 2022/23 to 2026/27 as set out in appendix 
D.1 to this report, together with the capital programme changes as set out in 
appendix D.2 and appendix D.3 to this report, 

 sets the council’s prudential limits as listed in appendix E to this report, 

 approves the medium-term financial plan to 2026/27 as set out in appendix F to 
this report.  

2. That Cabinet agrees that the cabinet member for finance, in conjunction with the 
head of finance, may make minor adjustments to this report and the prudential 
indicators should they prove necessary prior to its submission to Council on 16 
February 2022.  

Page 109

Agenda Item 13

mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 
 

 

Purpose of report 

1. This report: 

 brings together all relevant information to allow Cabinet to recommend to Council 
a revenue budget for 2022/23 and a capital programme for 2022/23 to 2026/27; 

 recommends the prudential indicators to be set by the council in accordance with 
‘the Prudential Code’ introduced as part of the Local Government Act 2003; 

 contains the opinion of the council’s chief financial officer on the robustness of 
estimates and adequacy of the council’s financial reserves; 

 contains the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which provides details of the 
forward budget model for the next five years. 

Corporate objectives 

2. The allocation of financial resources within the revenue and capital budgets needs to 
match the objectives agreed by the council.   

Revenue budget setting 2022/23   

Background 

3. The revenue budget for 2021/22 agreed by Council in February 2021 was balanced by 
a significant draw on revenue reserves of £2.6 million.  Whilst this draw reflected an 
anticipated increase in net costs due to the Coronavirus pandemic, a significant draw 
was anticipated to be required from reserves across all years of the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) and was predicted to be in excess of £5 million by 2025/26.   

4. As noted in the budget setting report, the ongoing draw on reserves to balance the 
budget is not sustainable over the five-year period covered by the MTFP and must be 
addressed. The council could set a balanced budget for the first three years of the 
MTFP period by drawing on reserves. It can also set a balanced budget in 2024/25 
but, in doing so, would mean the general fund balance would be less than ten per cent 
of net revenue expenditure at the end of that year. Officers have previously advised 
that such balances should be a minimum of ten per cent of net revenue expenditure. 
On current projections, the level of revenue reserves are insufficient to set a balanced 
revenue budget in 2025/26.  

5. The use of reserves highlighted in the February 2021 budget setting report, and the 
need to address them, was also highlighted by the council’s external auditor, EY when 
they addressed Joint Audit and Governance Committee (JAGC) in July 2021.  Kevin 
Suter, Associate Partner, in addressing JAGC members, advised that: 

 “What I am flagging here is I need to be assured next year that those decisions are at 
least being prepared or considered in order to reduce that budget gap over time and 
before the councils, and this will apply to both South Oxfordshire and Vale of White 
Horse, before they get to a position where a S114 notice would be required because 
those reserves have been diminished to such a level.”  

Page 110



 

 
 

 

6. Over the summer officers discussed the budget situation informally with cabinet 
members to agree an approach to the 2022/23 budget setting round that would 
continue to address the financial challenges facing the council.  Those discussions 
highlighted that, whilst a comparatively low-cost council, Vale of White Horse DC’s 
revenue situation was affected by a number of key issues: 

 The council’s Band D Council Tax of £141.69 in 2021/22 is the 15th lowest in the 
country for a shire district council and is well below the national average of 
£198.96, 

 The council had, unlike other councils, not benefitted from the business rates 
retention scheme, 

 The council had benefitted from the “New Homes Bonus” funding stream but that 
was under review by government and was expected to be less generous in the 
future. 

7. The approach to budget setting agreed with cabinet members for 2022/23 was that to 
achieve a balanced budget through identification of £1.4 million, being either recurring 
budget setting savings or a contribution above that previously forecast from the local 
government finance settlement.  To achieve this, officers would in the first instance 
undertake a thorough review of the base budget and, subject to what that process 
could achieve, alternative approaches such as service reductions and fees and 
charges increases would be considered. 

Revenue base budget setting 2022/23 

8. The starting point for building the council’s revenue budget for 2022/23 is the 2021/22 
budgets for service teams, of £18,888,478.  This has then been updated for the 
following: 

 opening budget adjustments, including the removal of one-off growth items relating 
to 2021/22 

 addition of  

- inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments 

- essential growth 

 removal of costs relating to  

- base budget savings. 

9. In the MTFP agreed as part of the budget setting in February 2021, the base budget 
for 2022/23 was estimated to be £16,509,075.  This included an estimate for 
inflationary pressures and essential growth. 

10. Base budgets for 2022/23 have been constructed by heads of service and budget 
holders supported by finance business partners from the Strategic Finance Team.  
They have been scrutinised through a “base budget challenge” exercise undertaken by 
the Interim Head of Policy and Programmes and the Head of Finance supported by 
project accountants from the Strategic Finance Team.  The challenge exercise, which 
took place during October and November, focussed on the following key areas: 

Page 111



 

 
 

 

 Identification and removal of all surplus budgets and consolidation of one 
corporate contingency budget, 

 Ensuring that all discretionary fees and charges increase by a minimum of five per 
cent to ensure all costs are recovered, 

 Centralisation of certain budgets e.g. property, legal and IT to enable better 
financial control.  

Revenue budget setting 2022/23 

11. Appendix A.1 summarises the movements in the base budget from £18,888,901 in 
2021/22 to £15,623,268 in 2022/23. These movements are detailed below.  

12. Opening budget adjustment reduction £3,235,288 (appendix A.2).  This includes 
the removal of one-off growth items from the base budget relating to previous years.   

13. Additions to the base budget: 

 Inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments £517,806 (appendix 
A.3). For all council employees an increase in salary of 1.9 per cent is budgeted for 
2022/23. Increments payable to council employees not at the top of their salary 
range total £121,246.  Other salary adjustments represent a cost of £238,225. 

 Essential growth – one-off £177,474 and ongoing £1,458,282 (appendix A.4).  
These items comprise additional expenditure, and reductions in income, which 
have been identified as unavoidable and reflect changes that have occurred in the 
current year or which are known will happen in 2022/23.  Given the value of these 
additional growth items, they have been scrutinised during base budget challenge.   

14. Deductions from the base budget:  

 Base budget reductions £1,872,852 (appendix A.5).  These base budget 
savings are reductions in costs identified by officers, which may be the result of 
more efficient working or previously agreed policy decisions, cost reductions 
outside of the council’s control, increases in income, or correction to budgets.   

One of the most significant reductions is in respect of the costs of the Local Plan.  
Local plan costs fluctuate significantly from year to year depending on at what 
stage the council is in the local plan process.  Officers intend to manage this 
going forward by creating a separate reserve, to which the council will make a 
fixed annual contribution, to pay for the non-staffing costs of the local plan to 
manage these fluctuations.  It is also proposed that the underspend on these 
costs at the end of 2021/22 will be added to this reserve. 

 Increase in managed vacancy factor £211,055. The council has previously 
operated a managed vacancy factor level of four per cent i.e. it anticipates only 
spending 96 per cent of the employee budget due to, for example, in year 
vacancies.  Officers have concluded that this can be increased to five per cent. 

 In year savings target £300,000.  In undertaking the base budget challenge 
exercise, officers consider that there is further potential to realise further savings 

Page 112



 

 
 

 

from the base budgets from future exercises.  The following areas have been 
identified as initial areas for review: 

 
- Development management, 

 
- Front of house, 

- Grounds maintenance. 

15. Realising the level of base budget savings identified above is not without risk and 
budgets that could have withstood potential in year service pressures have been 
removed.  In mitigation, officers feel it appropriate to increase the contingency 
budget from its previous base level of £200,000 to £400,000.  (Note that the 
contingency budget was increased for 2021/22 for one-year only from £200,000 to 
£1,100,000 due to the Coronavirus pandemic). 

16. As a result of these changes the council’s revised base budget for 2022/23 is 
£15,623,268, a decrease of £3,265,633 over 2021/22.  This decrease is primarily due 
to the removal of prior year growth and savings identified during the budget challenge 
process. 

Revenue growth  

17. Revenue growth of £152,700 has been included in the budget for 2022/23.  This is 
detailed in appendix B.1. and reflects the following: 

 The ongoing increase in employer National Insurance costs which commences in 
2022/23, government funding for which has now been confirmed to be in the 
settlement, 

 An ongoing extension to previously agreed one-off growth bid to support 
community climate initiatives, 

 A one-off increase in the budget to fund transformation activities, to be funded 
from the projected underspend in 2021/22.  Transformation activities are 
discussed later in this report. 

Revenue savings  

18. Savings proposals relate to an ongoing proposed change in car parking fees has been 
included in the budget for 2022/23.  This is detailed in appendix B.2 and amounts to 
£218,000. 

Gross treasury income 

19. Investment returns for 2022/23 will be used to finance expenditure in-year.  It is 
currently forecast that £388,820 will be earned in 2022/23.  Whilst investment earnings 
for 2021/22 are currently forecast to be below the budget of £558,000 set for the year, 
earnings in 2022/23 are expected to be higher than previously expected as there is an 
expectation that the Bank of England base rate will rise in the coming months.  This 
will push up the earnings that the council is able to make from its investments. 

Page 113



 

 
 

 

20. More details of treasury income can be found in the council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy report1.  

21. Including growth and gross treasury income results in a net expenditure budget for the 
council of £15,557,968. 

Reserves and other funding 

Transfers to/ from earmarked reserves    

22. This amounts to £207,124 and primarily represents the net of the transfer to reserves 
of the affordable homes element of the New Homes Bonus (NHB) payment.  

23. Based on the above use of reserves and other funding, the amount of revenue 
expenditure to be financed from government settlement and from council tax 2022/23 
is £15,434,931 (appendix A.1). 

Funding 

Local government settlement 

24. Following the Spending Review in November 2021, the provisional local government 
settlement for 2022/23 was announced in December 2021.  As with the previous 
year’s settlement, this is for one year only.   

25. Table 1 below details the government’s funding for the council in 2022/23. 

Table 1:  provisional local government finance settlement 2022/23 
 

 
 

26. The provisional settlement for 2022/23 is over six per cent lower than 2021/22.  Whilst 
the provisional settlement, at a national level, includes an average increase in “core 
revenue spending power” of 6.8 per cent, council tax income is included in that 
definition and, in calculating the increase, government assumes that council tax will 
increase by the maximum allowed before a referendum is required. As shown in the 

                                            
1 Considered by Cabinet 4 February 2022, Council 16 February 2022 

Provisional

Settlement

£

Business rates retention scheme (2,370,047)

Revenue support grant (414)

Indexation (194,733)

NDR at safety net 177,754

Settlement Funding Assessment (2,387,440)

Other funding

New Homes Bonus (3,380,530)

Rural Services Delivery Grant (9,551)

Lower tier services grant (768,949)

2022/23 services grant (163,385)

Grand total (6,709,855)

Page 114



 

 
 

 

government’s calculations, the council’s core revenue spending power does not 
increase in 2022/23.  By remaining unchanged, this reflects an increasing reliance on 
council tax income whilst government grant funding reduces.   

27. Included within the government’s definition of core revenue spending power is NHB, 
which has become critical to the sustainability of the council’s MTFP. As identified 
above funding has been provisionally announced along with the settlement this year at 
£3,380,530 for 2022/23.   

28. Outside of core revenue spending power, government has also provided additional 
one-off services grant funding.  This amounts to £163,385 and is in addition to lower 
tier services grant funding of £768,949.  

29. At the time of writing this report the final settlement figures had not been received from 
the government.  It is not anticipated that when this information is available it will be 
significantly different to the provisional figures. 

30. In announcing the settlement, the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities stated that: 

“Government is committed to ensuring that funding allocations for councils are based 
on an up-to-date assessment of their needs and resources. The data used to assess 
this has not been updated in a number of years, dating from 2013-14 to a large 
degree, and even as far back as 2000. Over the coming months, we will work closely 
with the sector and other stakeholders to update this and to look at the challenges and 
opportunities facing the sector before consulting on any potential changes. 
 
As part of this we will look at options to support local authorities through transitional 
protection. Councils should note the one-off 2022/23 Services Grant provided in the 
Local Government Finance Settlement in 2022/23 will be excluded from potential 
transitional protections.” 
 

31. For budget setting purposes it has been assumed that the council’s “core revenue 
spending power” will gradually fall during the period covered by the MTFP period.  It is 
conceivable that this may be too optimistic an approach, or indeed too pessimistic as, 
if future government funding for the council does fall as a result of changes to the 
distribution of government grant, the transitional protection referred to above could see 
core revenue spending power maintained for a period of time.  However, with no 
certainty over future funding, in particular NHB from which the council has benefitted 
heavily in recent years, officers consider it prudent to project an ongoing reduction in 
core revenue spending power.   

32. The actual funding generated in future years will depend on what happens to the 
retained business rates scheme which could include changes to: 
 

 The percentage of business rates growth retained by the different tiers of local 
government,  
 

 the baseline in accordance with the review of needs and resources, 
 

together with the outcome of the review of NHB. 
 

Page 115



 

 
 

 

33. Business rates retained by the council as planning authority relating to facilities 
generating renewable energy within the district is estimated at £226,304 (MTFP row 
55). 

 
Collection fund 

34. The surplus on the collection fund is estimated in 2022/23 to be £377,602 (MTFP row 
57).  

 
Use of reserves  

35. The difference between expenditure requirement and the funding available is smoothed 
over the medium-term financial plan by earmarked reserves and the general fund 
balance.  The net impact of these budget proposals is a contribution to reserves of 
£58,659 in 2022/23.    

Revenue budget proposal 

36. Based on the amendments detailed above, and as shown in appendix A.1 of this 
report, the budget proposal, including growth, is for a budget requirement of 
£15,169,948.  This revenue budget as proposed would result in an increase of £5.00 
to current band “D” council tax to £146.69.  The proposed increase of £5.00 in 2022/23 
is the maximum increase allowed under the draft council tax referendum principles 
announced in the provisional local government settlement.   

37. Appendix C shows the breakdown of the revenue budget.   

Capital programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 

Current capital programme 

38. The latest capital programme (before growth) is shown in Appendix D.1 and 
summarised in table 2 below.  It is the capital programme as set by Council in February 
2021 plus: 

 slippage (caused by delays to projects) carried forward from 2020/21, 

 new schemes approved by Council during 2021/22, 

 re-profiling of expenditure on schemes from the 2021/22 financial year to future 
years where delays to schemes have occurred, 

 the deletion of previously agreed schemes that have completed or are not being 
pursued at this time in their original form.  

39. A number of existing schemes have been identified as being available to be funded 
from the council’s share of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) rather than from 
council resources.  The balance of CIL receipts is currently £1.981 million.  These 
schemes total £1.614 million and are: 

 Faringdon Pitch  

 Car Park Lighting Improvements 

Page 116



 

 
 

 

 Changes to Rye Farm Car Park 

 Fitness Extension Development White Horse Leisure Centre 

 Car Park resurfacing 

 Replacement CCTV Cameras and equipment 

40. The capital programme also includes CIL receipts that are payable to Oxfordshire 
County Council and Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group. 

Cabinet capital programme proposals 

41. Appendix D.2 contains a list of new capital schemes that are being recommended as 
part of this budget proposal to be funded from council resources.  Appendix D.3 
contains a further list of proposals that will be funded from CIL receipts.  Officers will 
amend the capital programme to include the proposals if approved by Cabinet and 
Council.  

Financing the capital programme 

42. Where permitted, capital expenditure is funded in the first instance from specific 
government grants, earmarked reserves and other external contributions.  The balance 
of the programme is funded from the council’s capital receipts reserve. 

43. Table 2 contains a schedule showing the current and proposed capital programme and 
how it will be financed, including the growth proposals, if they are approved. 

44. Growth proposals in appendix D.3 are to be funded by CIL funds.  The current balance 
of funds available to fund these projects is £0.367 million. The £1.048 million shortfall 
over five years is to be funded by anticipated future CIL receipts.  The latest forecast 
for the council’s allocation of CIL receipts expected to be collected during 2022/23 is 
approximately £1.8 million.  

45. The programme proposed can be fully funded from existing and anticipated capital 
resources.  The total planned capital expenditure is £35.303 million over the 
programme period.  

  

Page 117



 

 
 

 

Table 2: current and proposed capital programme with financing 

 

46. The council’s usable capital receipts, based on current estimates, are expected to be 
£2.866 million by the end of 2026/27.  In addition, future asset sales and realisation of 
capital receipts are anticipated to be generated via implementation of the Strategic 
Property Review. 

The prudential code and prudential indicators 

47. In setting its revenue and capital budgets for 2022/23, the council must agree 
prudential indicators in accordance with the prudential code (see below).  When 
recommending its budgets to Council, Cabinet must also recommend the prudential 
indicators.   

48. From 1 April 2004, government control of local authorities’ borrowing was abolished 
and replaced by a prudential system of self-regulation.  Authorities are able to borrow 
based on need and affordability, which they demonstrate through compliance with the 
prudential code developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and given statutory force by government regulation. 

49. The key objectives of the prudential code are to ensure that the capital investment 
plans of the authority are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  To demonstrate that 
authorities have had regard to these objectives, the prudential code sets out a number 
of indicators that must be considered covering five distinct areas – capital expenditure, 
affordability, prudence, external debt and treasury management.  The council must 
approve the indicators through the budget process before 1 April each year, but they 
can be revised during the year if required.  

50. The key indicators that will drive the capital budget decision making process will be 
those concerning affordability, as these measure the impact of capital investment 
decisions on the overall revenue budget and in particular the precept against the 
collection fund. 

51. In setting or revising the prudential indicators the council is required to have regard to: 

 affordability e.g. implications for the precept  

 prudence and sustainability e.g. implications for external borrowing 

2021 /22 2022 /23 2023 24 2024 /25 2025/26 2026/27 GRAND

latest

estimate

estimate estimate estimate estimate estimate TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital programme approved 17,892 5,089 2,130 3,191 2,264 2,089 32,655

Capital growth proposals (Appendix D.2) 0 825 102 102 102 102 1,233

Capital growth funded by CIL receipts (Appendix D.3) 835 145 145 145 145 1,415

Total expenditure 17,892 6,749 2,377 3,438 2,511 2,336 35,303

Financing

External contributions 5,305 4,753 1,538 1,522 1,522 1,522 16,162

Affordable Homes Delivery Plan 10,259 0 0 0 0 0 10,259

Usable capital receipts/revenue reserves 2,328 1,996 839 1,916 989 814 8,882

Total financing 17,892 6,749 2,377 3,438 2,511 2,336 35,303

Flexible use of capital receipts - transformation activites 2,000

Estimated balances as at 31 March 2027

Usable capital receipts 2,866

Page 118



 

 
 

 

 value for money e.g. option appraisal 

 stewardship of assets e.g. asset management planning 

 service objectives e.g. strategic planning for the council 

 practicality e.g. achievability of the forward plan.  

52. Under the code, the head of finance as chief finance officer is responsible for ensuring 
that the council considers all relevant matters when setting or revising indicators 
through a report.  The head of finance is also required to establish procedures to 
monitor performance against all forward-looking indicators; and report upon any 
significant deviations from forward forecasts with proposed actions. 

53. Appendix E contains the recommended prudential indicators, which have been 
calculated based on the budget proposals.  The head of finance is satisfied that these 
indicators show that the council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and 
sustainable.   

The Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 

54. The MTFP provides a forward budget model for the next five years. Appendix F 
contains the MTFP for 2022/23 to 2026/27.  This is a projection of the revenue budget 
up to 31 March 2027.  As identified above it assumes a gradual ongoing reduction in 
core revenue spending power over the MTFP period.  It also incorporates assumptions 
on interest income and other predictable pressures on the council, such as inflation and 
salary increments. 

55. Included within the MTFP is an estimate of costs associated with the exit and service 
transformation required when the Five Councils Partnership contract ends in 
September 2025.  It is proposed that the council will, as allowed under the rules for the 
flexible use of capital receipts, fund these costs, anticipated at this time to be around 
£1.5 million, from those receipts.    

56. As a result of the work undertaken through the budget challenge process, the future 
projections represent a significantly improved position as compared to that estimated in 
February 2021.  For 2022/23 the council is able to set a balanced budget.  In each of 
the subsequent financial years, revenue expenditure exceeds revenue income and 
there is an increasing draw on reserves to balance the budget.  However, based on 
these latest estimates, revenue reserves are sufficient to set a balanced budget across 
the MTFP period but not beyond 2026/27.  Government have confirmed that details 
regarding the spending review will be brought forward within the current parliamentary 
term.  

57. The estimated draw on reserves is shown in table 3 below. 

  

Page 119



 

 
 

 

Table 3: use of reserves during MTFP period to balance the revenue budget 

 
 

The robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves  

58. The Local Government Act 2003 places a duty on the chief finance officer (i.e. the 
head of finance) to report on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of 
reserves.  The council must have regard to this report when making decisions about 
the setting of the budget. 

59. The construction of the budget has been managed by qualified accountants and as 
identified above, has this year been subject to significant challenge both by strategic 
management team and cabinet members.   

60. An informal cabinet update on December 20 2021 noted an interim report on progress 
with on budget setting.  A detailed informal briefing on this budget proposal was given 
to the council’s scrutiny committee members on 1 February 2022.  This session was 
open to all councillors. 

61. In view of the process undertaken and his own knowledge of the budget, the head of 
finance is satisfied that the budget for 2022/23 is both prudent and robust.   However, 
as demonstrated above, whilst in 2022/23 the council is able to set a balance budget, 
based on current assumptions in future years of the MTFP period, revenue 
expenditure exceeds revenue income, and the council’s revenue reserves are 
insufficient to set a balanced budget beyond 2026/27, the end of the MTFP period.  
The level of future government funding, which as identified above is subject to ongoing 
uncertainty, may push back or bring forward the year when revenue reserves become 
insufficient.  If the latter is the case then the council will not be able to set a balanced 
budget over the period covered by the MTFP.   

62. The transformation activity, which was first agreed in the 2020/21 budget and forms 
part of the corporate plan delivery activity, is central to the council’s efforts to tackle 
the increasing budget gap.  This work, whilst progressing, has been impacted by the 
pandemic.  However, officers are now working on defining more closely the scope and 
remit of this work, which is anticipated progress at pace in 2022/23 and will benefit 
from the additional £250,000 being proposed in this budget and funded from the 
projected 2021/22 underspend. 

63. It is anticipated that a dedicated team of officers, supported by external consultants as 
appropriate, will drive and programme manage the delivery of the transformation work, 
which will be focussed initially on the following areas that have been identified in 
discussions between officers and cabinet members: 

 Implementation of the IT strategy, 

Financial Use of reserves

year £000

2022/23 (59)

2023/24 496

2024/25 1,348

2025/26 2,728

2026/27 3,733

Total 8,246

Page 120



 

 
 

 

 Customer services including front of house, 

 Strategic property review and implementation of the corporate landlord model, 

 Development management, 

 Grounds maintenance. 

64. Further details on this work will be presented to cabinet as they progress in 
accordance with the council’s democratic process.   

65. The head of finance’s full report will be available at full Council. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

66. Agreement of the revenue budget for 2022/23 and capital programme to 2026/27 
agrees the allocation of funding to support the council’s corporate objectives, including 
the objective of Tackling the Climate Emergency which includes the specific item of 
revenue growth for community climate initiatives. 

Legal Implications 

67. The Cabinet needs to make recommendations to the council on its spending proposals.  
Under the Local Government Act 2000 it is the council that must agree the revenue and 
capital spending plans, and then set the council tax.  Council will meet on 16 February 
2022 in order to set the budget, and the council tax including amounts set by the town 
and parish councils, Oxfordshire County Council and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Thames Valley. 

68. The requirement placed on the council by the Local Government Act 2003 to set 
prudential indicators and for the head of finance as chief finance officer to make a 
report to the authority on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves 
are addressed within the body of this report. 

Other Implications 

69. Agreement of the revenue and capital budgets authorises expenditure in accordance 
with the council’s delegated powers and financial procedure rules.  The officer, 
councillor or councillor body taking those decisions will take into account the human 
resources, sustainability and equality and diversity implications of individual spending 
decisions.   

Conclusion 

70. This report provides details of the revenue base budget for 2022/23, the capital 
programme 2022/23 to 2026/27, government grants (the settlement), uncommitted 
reserves and balances, the cabinet member for finance’s budget proposals and the 
resulting prudential indicators.  

71. In light of the information provided Cabinet must make a number of recommendations 
to Council regarding the revenue budget, the capital programme and the prudential 
indicators. 

Page 121



 

 
 

 

  

Appendices 

Appendix A.1 Revenue budget 2022/23   
Appendix A.2 Opening budget adjustments 
Appendix A.3 Inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments 
Appendix A.4 Essential growth      
Appendix A.5 Base budget savings  
Appendix B Revenue growth and savings  
Appendix C Service budget analysis 
Appendix D.1 Capital programme before growth 
Appendix D.2 Capital growth bids 
Appendix D.3  Capital growth bids – externally funded  
Appendix E Prudential indicators      
Appendix F Medium term financial plan 

 

Background Papers 

Provisional settlement figures (December 2021) 
Council tax base 2022/23 – Cabinet 3 December 2021, Council 8 December 2021 
Treasury Management Strategy – Cabinet 4 February 2022, Council 16 February 2022 
 

Page 122



Appendix A.1

Vale of White Horse DC - revenue budget summary 2022/23

2021/22 2022/23
Budget Budget Appendix Ref:

Opening base budget 2022/23 18,888,901

Revisions to base budget
Opening budget adjustments (3,235,288) Appendix A.2
Inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments 517,806 Appendix A.3
Essential growth - one-off 177,474
Essential growth - ongoing 1,458,282
Base budget savings (1,872,852) Appendix A.5
In year savings target (300,000)
Increase in revenue contingency 200,000
Movement in managed vacancy factor (211,055)

Total base budget after revisions 18,888,901 15,623,268
Revenue - one-off 0
Revenue - ongoing 152,700

Savings proposals (218,000) Appendix B.2
Gross treasury income (557,560) (388,820)
Net expenditure 18,331,341 15,169,148

Funding
(Funding from reserves)/contribution to reserves (2,485,532) 265,783
Funding from government grants and council tax (15,845,909) (15,434,931)

Total Funding (18,331,441) (15,169,148)

Council tax yield required (7,639,797) (8,121,169)

Appendix A.4

Appendix B.1

1

Page 123



Appendix A.2

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Opening budget adjustments relating to previous year's budget decisions

Year of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £
STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT TEAM
2020/21 Additional funding for transformation activities (317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000)

(317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000)

CORPORATE SERVICES
2013/14 Bi-annual residents survey (24,000) 0 (24,000) 0 (24,000)
2020/21 Reduction in expenditure at Beacon Arts Centre (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)
2020/21 Increase in pension costs following valuation 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000
2021/22 Pension contribution uplift (68,000) (68,000) (68,000) (68,000) (68,000)
2021/22 Contract extension two communications officers (44,009) (44,009) (44,009) (44,009) (44,009)

(133,009) (109,009) (133,009) (109,009) (133,009)

DEVELOPMENT & REGENERATION
2019/20 Vale contribution to office rent (177,500) (355,000) (355,000) (355,000) (355,000)
2020/21 Great Western Park -District Centre (44) (208) (502) (502) (502)
2020/21 Essential repairs & maintenance (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000)
2020/21 Rent for 135 Milton Park (14,212) (28,425) (28,425) (28,425) (28,425)
2021/22 Increase maintenance budget/NNDR for 135 Milton Park 0 (112,184) (112,184) (112,184) (112,184)
2021/22 Property condition survey (106,000) (106,000) (106,000) (106,000) (106,000)
2021/22 Tankering costs re Folly View cricket club (7,000) (7,000) (7,000) (7,000) (7,000)
2021/22 Additional resources for property team (38,993) (38,993) (38,993) (38,993) (38,993)
2021/22 Reduction in leisure centre income 0 (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000)
2021/22 Developers contribution to Great Western Park 124,267 124,267 124,267 124,267 124,267

(229,482) (573,543) (573,837) (573,837) (573,837)

Spending profile:

1

P
age 124



Appendix A.2

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Opening budget adjustments relating to previous year's budget decisions

Year of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

Spending profile:

FINANCE
2014/15 Actuarial fees 0 15,000 0 0 15,000
2020/21 Decrease in HB subsidy 31,495 31,495 31,495 31,495 31,495

31,495 46,495 31,495 31,495 46,495

HOUSING & ENVIRONMENT
2020/21 NNDR on public conveniences (7,472) (7,472) (7,472) (7,472) (7,472)
2020/21 Additional resource for waste contract re-tender 2,000 2,000 (33,843) (33,843) (33,843)
2021/22 Additional waste technical officer 0 0 0 (20,070) (20,070)
2021/22 Domestic abuse service budget shortfall (10,626) (10,626) (10,626) (10,626) (10,626)
2021/22 Temporary increase in Env/Housing officers (72,678) (160,961) (160,961) (160,961) (160,961)

(88,776) (177,059) (212,902) (232,972) (232,972)

LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC
2018/19 District elections 50,000 115,000 0 0 50,000
2020/21 Storage costs for election equipment 0 (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) (5,000)
2020/21 District/parish elections 2023 0 50,000 0 0 0

50,000 160,000 (5,000) (5,000) 45,000
PARTNERSHIPS
2017/18 Five Councils Partnership reprofile contract savings (50,554) (50,554) (50,554) (50,554) (50,554)
2018/19 Five Councils Partnership reprofile contract savings (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000)
2020/21 Five Councils Partnership reprofile contract savings (135,515) (542,061) (542,061) (542,061) (542,061)
2021/22 Growth Board contribution Local Plan 0 (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000)
2021/22 Growth Board payments (15,000) (15,000) (15,000) (15,000) (15,000)

(251,069) (717,615) (717,615) (717,615) (717,615)

2

P
age 125



Appendix A.2

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Opening budget adjustments relating to previous year's budget decisions

Year of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

Spending profile:

PLANNING
2019/20 Local plan (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)
2020/21 Reduction in planning fees (125,000) (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (250,000)
2020/21 Cost of new local plan 188,000 188,000 188,000 188,000 188,000
2020/21 Salary savings due to downturn in sales 78,652 157,305 157,305 157,305 157,305
2020/21 Development fees for condition discharge 2,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
2021/22 Reduction in planning fees (317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000)
2021/22 Temporary staff to deal with backlog (33,200) (33,200) (33,200) (33,200) (33,200)

(231,548) (274,895) (274,895) (274,895) (274,895)

POLICY & PROGRAMMES
2021/22 Extend Climate Change Lead post (15,899) (15,899) (15,899) (15,899) (15,899)

(15,899) (15,899) (15,899) (15,899) (15,899)

ALL SERVICES
2021/22 Income losses due to Covid-19 (1,150,000) (1,150,000) (1,150,000) (1,150,000) (1,150,000)
2021/22 Additional contingency budget for Covid-19 (900,000) (900,000) (900,000) (900,000) (900,000)

(2,050,000) (2,050,000) (2,050,000) (2,050,000) (2,050,000)

(3,235,288) (4,028,525) (4,268,662) (4,264,732) (4,223,732)GRAND TOTAL

3

P
age 126



Appendix A.3

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments

Detail

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £

ALL SERVICES
Salary inflation 153,237 309,538 468,966 631,582 797,450
Salary increments 121,246 244,918 371,063 499,730 630,971
Other salary adjustments 238,225 242,989 247,849 252,806 257,862
Other inflation 5,098 15,293 25,896 31,198 36,606
Grand total 517,806 812,738 1,113,774 1,415,316 1,722,889

Spending profile:

1

P
age 127



Appendix A.4

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Essential growth

No Title of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £
STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT TEAM

1 Additional staffing costs Additional ongoing costs resulting from the confirmation of 
the senior management structure

Ongoing 12,435 12,435 12,435 12,435 12,435

12,435 12,435 12,435 12,435 12,435

CORPORATE SERVICES

2 Staff cost re-apportionment Re-apportionment of staffing costs in service to reflect 
workloads

Ongoing 40,371 40,371 40,371 40,371 40,371

40,371 40,371 40,371 40,371 40,371

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

3 Leisure facilities Additional costs associated with the council's leisure facilities Ongoing 147,347 147,347 147,347 147,347 147,347

4 Womens Cycle Tour Additional one-off costs associated with hosting the Womens 
Cycle Tour event

One-off 30,000 0 0 0 0

5 Property costs Increased expenditure and reduced rental income from 
council properties

Ongoing 399,240 628,444 691,682 754,920 754,920

6 Office Accomodation Office accomodation costs following departure from 135 
Milton Park

Ongoing 34,674 131,722 176,885 222,046 222,046

7 Corporate landlord Additional costs associated with the strategic property review 
and the implementation of the corporate landlord model, 
including stock condition surveys

Ongoing 98,872 62,434 62,434 62,434 62,434

710,133 969,947 1,078,348 1,186,747 1,186,747

 

Spending profile:One-off/ 
Ongoing

P
age 128



Appendix A.4

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Essential growth

No Title of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

Spending profile:One-off/ 
Ongoing

HOUSING & ENVIRONMENT

8 Increased contract costs to 
Biffa for waste collection 
services

Increased contract costs to Biffa for waste collection 
services, including growth in properties and increased 
subscribers to the garden waste service.

Ongoing 70,986 70,986 70,986 70,986 70,986

9 Grounds Team Additional ongoing costs of provision of service Ongoing 57,268 57,268 57,268 57,268 57,268

10 Homelessness prevention and 
supported accommodation

VWHDC received Homelessness Support Grant in 2021/22.  
The grant "may be used only to prevent and deal with 
homelessness". It will be used to: a) fund supported housing 
for VWHDC residents who are homeless or at risk of 
becoming homeless in 2021/22; b) to help households 
secure sustainable accommodation. FULLY FUNDED

Ongoing 29,746 29,746 29,746 29,746 29,746

11 Hackney Licences Reduction in income budget to reflect demand Ongoing 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000

12 Air Quality Fees for air quality study One-off 35,000 0 0 0 0

13 Senior Waste Technical Officer Additional resources to support waste team One-off 23,821 23,821 23,821 0 0

232,821 197,821 197,821 174,000 174,000

LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC

14 Councillors Allowances Increase in allowances Ongoing 43,864 43,864 43,864 43,864 43,864

43,864 43,864 43,864 43,864 43,864

PARTNERSHIP & INSIGHT

15 Future Oxfordshire partnership Additional contribution to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership One-off 88,653 88,653 0 0 0

16 Five Councils Partnership Additional contract fees Ongoing 143,933 143,933 143,933 143,933 143,933

17 Five Councils Partnership Costs associated with exit and service transformation One-off 0 0 150,000 1,350,000 0

232,586 232,586 293,933 1,493,933 143,933

P
age 129



Appendix A.4

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Essential growth

No Title of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

Spending profile:One-off/ 
Ongoing

POLICY AND PROGRAMMES

18 Corporate Programme Correction to existing budget Ongoing 24,364 24,364 24,364 24,364 24,364

24,364 24,364 24,364 24,364 24,364

PLANNING

19 Planning income Anticipated reduction in planning fee income Ongoing 339,182 339,182 339,182 339,182 339,182

339,182 339,182 339,182 339,182 339,182

1,635,756 1,860,570 2,030,318 3,314,896 1,964,896TOTAL

P
age 130



Appendix A.5

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Base budget savings

Item Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £
STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT TEAM

1 Recovery of costs for staff time working on multi-council 
partnerships

On-going (45,943) (45,943) (45,943) (45,943) (45,943)

(45,943) (45,943) (45,943) (45,943) (45,943)

CORPORATE SERVICES

2 Reduction of insurance budget On-going (31,565) (31,565) (31,565) (31,565) (31,565)

3 Reduction in training costs On-going (27,030) (27,030) (27,030) (27,030) (27,030)

4 Saving identified for communications & telephones On-going (47,189) (47,189) (47,189) (47,189) (47,189)

5 Reduction in costs at The Beacon On-going (82,376) (82,376) (82,376) (82,376) (82,376)

6 Reduction in costs of community enablement On-going (32,856) (32,856) (32,856) (32,856) (32,856)

7 Other minor savings On-going (40,201) (40,201) (40,201) (40,201) (40,201)

(261,217) (261,217) (261,217) (261,217) (261,217)

 

DEVELOPMENT & REGENERATION

8 Reduction in leisure facilities management fees On-going (52,854) (52,854) (52,854) (52,854) (52,854)

9 Reduction in costs for council properties On-going (72,993) (72,993) (72,993) (72,993) (72,993)

10 Increased income and other small savings at District Centre On-going (49,406) (49,406) (49,406) (49,406) (49,406)

11 Other minor savings On-going (68,555) (68,555) (68,555) (68,555) (68,555)

(243,808) (243,808) (243,808) (243,808) (243,808)

FINANCE

12 Additional anticipated income from court fees and government 
grants

On-going (70,023) (70,023) (70,023) (70,023) (70,023)

13 Net reduction in housing benefit costs On-going (76,381) (76,381) (76,381) (76,381) (76,381)

14 Other minor savings On-going (29,513) (29,513) (29,513) (29,513) (29,513)

(175,917) (175,917) (175,917) (175,917) (175,917)

 

One-off or 
On-going?

Spending profile:

P
age 131



Appendix A.5

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Base budget savings

Item Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

One-off or 
On-going?

Spending profile:

HOUSING & ENVIRONMENT

15 Reduction in staffing costs as temporary contracts end On-going (101,072) (101,072) (101,072) (101,072) (101,072)

16 Additional income and contributions On-going (67,341) (67,341) (67,341) (67,341) (67,341)

17 Reduction in base waste contract costs On-going (138,313) (138,313) (138,313) (138,313) (138,313)

18 Anticipated increase in recycling credit income On-going (68,950) (68,950) (68,950) (68,950) (68,950)

19 Grounds maintenance On-going (115,142) (115,142) (115,142) (115,142) (115,142)

20 Other minor savings On-going (29,040) (29,040) (29,040) (29,040) (29,040)

(519,858) (519,858) (519,858) (519,858) (519,858)

LEGAL SERVICES

21 Minor savings On-going (10,017) (10,017) (10,017) (10,017) (10,017)

(10,017) (10,017) (10,017) (10,017) (10,017)

PARTNERSHIPS

22 Minor savings On-going (4,130) (4,130) (4,130) (4,130) (4,130)

(4,130) (4,130) (4,130) (4,130) (4,130)

 

PLANNING

23 Review of salary budgets and recharges with South Oxfordshire 
DC

On-going (192,271) (192,271) (192,271) (192,271) (192,271)

24 Local plan On-going (362,873) (362,873) (362,873) (362,873) (362,873)

25 Other minor savings On-going (56,818) (56,818) (56,818) (56,818) (56,818)

(611,962) (611,962) (611,962) (611,962) (611,962)

 

(1,872,852) (1,872,852) (1,872,852) (1,872,852) (1,872,852)

P
age 132



Appendix B.1

Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 revenue growth

No Title of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £

ALL SERVICES

1 National Insurance Uplift in National Insurance contributions Ongoing Vale  102,700 102,700 102,700 102,700 102,700
2 Transformation budget Increase in budget for transformation activities One-off Vale  250,000 0 0 0 0

Funding from projected 2021/22 revenue 
underspend

One-off Vale  (250,000) 0 0 0 0

102,700 102,700 102,700 102,700 102,700

POLICY AND INSIGHT

1 Community climate 
initiatives

Extension of the previously agreed one-off growth 
bid to support community initiatives in response to 
climate change

Ongoing Vale 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

GRAND TOTAL 152,700 152,700 152,700 152,700 152,700

One-off or 
ongoing?

Vale only 
or joint 

bid?

Spending profile:

P
age 133



Appendix B.2
Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 revenue savings

No Title of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £
DEVELOPMENT AND CORPORATE LANDLORD

1 Car parking Increase in car parking income Ongoing Vale (218,000) (218,000) (218,000) (218,000) (218,000)

(218,000) (218,000) (218,000) (218,000) (218,000)

GRAND TOTAL (218,000) (218,000) (218,000) (218,000) (218,000)

One-off or 
ongoing?

Vale only 
or joint 

bid?

Spending profile:

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\Vale\Cabinet & Council\Appendix B.2 Revenue Savings - Vale Budget FOR COUNCIL 22-231

P
age 134



Appendix C

Vale of White Horse DC Service budget analysis 2022/23

£ £

Strategic Management Team 766,663
Corporate Services 3,554,759
Development & Regeneration 332,054
Finance 268,683
Housing & Environment 5,939,353
Legal Services 1,178,849
Partnerships 2,493,985
Planning 1,084,630
Policy & Insight 464,002

Managed vacancy factor (727,709) 
Contingency 400,000
In year savings target -300,000 
All services 102,700

Net cost of delivering services 15,557,968

Gross treasury income (388,820) 
Net expenditure 15,169,148

Transfer to reserves

New Homes Bonus - affordable housing 236,870

Transfer from reserves
Earmarked revenue reserves (29,746) 

207,124

Budget funding requirement 15,376,272

Page 135



Appendix D.1

No. Costc
2021/22 

Latest Budget 
£000

2022/23
 £000

2023/24
 £000

2024/25
 £000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

APPROVED PROGRAMME
Corporate Services 185 50 50 1,000 50 50
Development & Corporate Landlord 15,284 3,440 497 635 682 507
Finance 53 0 0 0 0 0
Housing & Environment 1,690 1,599 1,583 1,556 1,532 1,532
Contingency 680 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME 17,892 5,089 2,130 3,191 2,264 2,089

Cummulative Approved Budget 32,655

CAPITAL FINANCING
Public arts projects funded by developer contributions YC15 94
Wantage Leisure Centre Courts YC71 3
WHLC wetside refurbishment s106 YC74 70
WHLC Disabled access & changing places s106 TBC 66
Faringdon LC Air Source Heat Pumps S106/grant YC80 472
Oxfordshire Community Land Trust Affordable housing S106/grant TBC 944
Shrivenham Sports Pavillion s106 TBC 379
Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants, government funding YH05 1,353 1,353 1,353 1,327 1,327 1,327
Affordable Homes Delivery Plan YA48 10,259
CIL - OCC CIL 0 1,963
CIL - CCG CIL 688 414

Balance from capital receipts 3,564 1,359 777 1,864 937 762

GRAND TOTAL 17,892 5,089 2,130 3,191 2,264 2,089
Capital receipts b/f from previous year B7402 13,748 9,684 8,325 7,548 5,534 3,247
Capital receipts earmarked transformation funding 500 150 1,350
Capital receipt balance to c/f 9,684 8,325 7,548 5,534 3,247 2,485

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\Vale\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital budgets to 2027 VALE budgetCapital prog

P
age 136



Appendix D.1

No. Costc
2021/22 

Latest Budget 
£000

2022/23
 £000

2023/24
 £000

2024/25
 £000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Corporate Services

Arts Development
Public Arts projects s106 YC15 94

Civic Hall
Wantage Civic Hall Capital Works 201516 (7) YC31 30 30 30 30 30 30

Community Grants
Community Grants 2017/18 YC69 6

Communications
New Website 201617 (3) YD13 3

IT Applications
IT hardware 2020/21 (4) YD09 20 20 20 20 20 20
Electronic Delivery of Planning Service YP05 22
Capture Planning Constraints YP17 10

Programmes & Assurance
New Office Accomodation fit-out 2021/22 TBC 950

185 50 50 1,000 50 50

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\Vale\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital budgets to 2027 VALE budgetCapital prog

P
age 137



Appendix D.1

No. Costc
2021/22 

Latest Budget 
£000

2022/23
 £000

2023/24
 £000

2024/25
 £000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Development & Regeneration

Leisure  
    Leisure Centre - essential works 201516 (9) YC39 382 300 300 300 300 300

Wantage Leisure Centre capital investment YC41 79 64
Abbey Meadows and Gardens Improvements 201516 (11) YC51 24
Fitness Extension Development WHLC YC56 110
WHLC additional fitness equipment YC57 175
WHLC gym equipment upgrade YC59 190
Faringdon LC gym equipment replacement YC60 8 64
Faringdon Pitch YC67 882
Abbey Meadow Outdoor Pool 2017/18 (4) YC68 1
Wantage Leisure Centrre s106 YC71 3
Wantage Leisure Centre Water Filters vire cont YC72 14
WHLC wetside refurbishment s106 YC74 70
Capital works feasibility 2020/21 (2) YC77 30 30 30 30 30 30
WHLC Disabled access & changing places s106 YC79 66
Faringdon Leisure Centre ASHP PSDS/s106 YC80 602
Shrivenham Sports Pavillion s106 TBC 379

Development
CIL - OCC TBC 1963
CIL - CCG TBC 688 414

Property
Operational Property Assets - essential works YA29 112 112 112 112 112 112
Purchase of Vans YB02 42
Affordable Homes Delivery Plan 201920 (1) YA48 10,259
Oxfordshire Community Land Trust Affordable housing s106/grant TBC 944

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\Vale\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital budgets to 2027 VALE budgetCapital prog

P
age 138



Appendix D.1

No. Costc
2021/22 

Latest Budget 
£000

2022/23
 £000

2023/24
 £000

2024/25
 £000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Car Parking
Car park lighting improvements YA33 10 63
Changes to Rye Farm car park 201415 (6) YA34 0 45
Renovation Charter Car Park 201617 (6) YA45 0 100
Rye Farm Commercial CP Resurfacing 201415 (6) YA47 0 40
Car park resurfacing 2020/21 (7) YA49 40 40 40 50 50 50
WC refurbishment 2020/21 (8) YA50 0 150

Flooding/Drainage/STWs
Sewage Works YA02 0 17
Upgrade of Sewage Treatment Works - Challow & Sparsholt YA14 0 42
Sparsholt Sewage Works 201617 (7) YA46 197

Parks & Open Spaces
New and Upgraded Parks Facilities YC03 15 15 15 15 15 15
Public Realm 2020/21 (9) YA51 137 109

15,284 3,440 497 635 682 507

Finance

General Ledger 202021 YF07 53
53 0 0 0 0 0

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\Vale\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital budgets to 2027 VALE budgetCapital prog

P
age 139



Appendix D.1

No. Costc
2021/22 

Latest Budget 
£000

2022/23
 £000

2023/24
 £000

2024/25
 £000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Housing & Environment

Housing Register & Homelessness
Elmside Hostel, Faringdon YH27 12

Public Sector Housing
Disabled Facilities Grants 201617 (1) YH05 1,353 1,353 1,353 1,327 1,327 1,327
Home Repairs Target YH06 10 109 109 108 84 84

Waste Services
Additional Wheeled Bins for New Properties YC23 111 111 111 111 111 111

Environmental Health
Particulate monitor 2020/21 (9) 0 16

Energy  
Energy Grants YC54 10 10 10 10 10 10

Community Safety
Replacement CCTV cameras 2020/21 (6) YH12 185
CCTV Equipment 2019/20 YH29 9

1,690 1,599 1,583 1,556 1,532 1,532

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\Vale\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital budgets to 2027 VALE budgetCapital prog

P
age 140



Appendix D.1

No. Costc
2021/22 

Latest Budget 
£000

2022/23
 £000

2023/24
 £000

2024/25
 £000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Partnership & Insight

Abingdon Flood Relief 201516 (13) YA37 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

Contingency

Capital Contingency YZ01 680

680 0 0 0 0 0

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\Vale\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital budgets to 2027 VALE budgetCapital prog

P
age 141



Appendix D.2
Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 capital growth bids

No Title of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Funded from internal resources
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

1 Capitalisation of staff costs 
for property

Costs of staff employed on property related matters that 
can be capitalised

Ongoing Joint 133,414 102,161 102,161 102,161 102,161

2 Essential capital works Essential capital works in maintaining the council's 
property estate

One-off Vale only 500,000

633,414 102,161 102,161 102,161 102,161 0 0 0 0 0

CORPORATE SERVICES

1 IT operations Delivery of the Technology Strategy One-off Joint 191,500 10,000 0 0 0 0 0

191,500 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL 824,914 112,161 102,161 102,161 102,161 0 0 0 0 0

REVENUE CONSEQUENCES
Spending profile:One-off 

or 
rolling

CAPITAL SPEND
Vale only 
or joint 

bid?

Spending profile:

1

P
age 142



Appendix D.3
Vale of White Horse DC - 2022/23 capital growth bids

No Title of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Funded from CIL and other resources 

DEVELOPMENT  AND REGENERATION
Vale 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

S106 (50,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2 Faringdon Leisure Centre 

Replacement Pool Filters
Replacement of end of life pool filters and install UV 
filtration

One-off Vale 105,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Wantage Leisure Centre - 
Changing Village Enhancement

Full refurbishment of wetside changing village.  One-off Vale 160,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4 Wantage Leisure Centre Spin 
Studio

Convert current creche area into designated spin studio One-off Vale 75,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5 Abingdon Outdoor Pool Air Source Heat Pump (or GSHP) and Solar Panels One-off Vale 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6 Botley Pavilliion Contribution to Botley Pavillion development One-off Vale 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 Play Areas Enhance Play equipment in Vale owned play areas with 
accesible equipment for children with special needs

Rolling Vale 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 0 0 0 0 0

8 Tree Planting Tree planting on Vale and other publicly owned land 
including Tiny Forests

Rolling Vale 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 0 0

9 Vale parks and Open Spaces Capital projects for improvements to infrastructure and 
facilities in Vale parks and open spaces. Including non 
DDA  compliant bridge in Abbey Meadows.

Rolling Vale 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 0 0

10 Letcombe Brook Grant for enhanced maintenance works and flood risk 
management

Rolling Vale 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL 835,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 0 0 0 0 0

Wantage Leisure Centre Air 
Handling Unit - Dryside (Dance 
and Gym)

The AHU Handling unit has reached end of life and 
needs to be replaced for sports to continue.  New 
equipment has environmental benefits

1 One-off

REVENUE CONSEQUENCES
Spending profile:One-off or 

rolling

CAPITAL SPEND
Vale only 
or joint 

bid?

Spending profile:

1

P
age 143



Latest Medium Term Financial Plan to 2026/27 Appendix F

1

2

3

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

30

32

35

38

39

43

45

47

48

49

52

55

57

58

60

61

62

63

64

65

67

68

69

A B C D E F

Vale of White Horse District Council Budget Indicative Indicative Indicative Indicative
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

Base budget bfwd 18,888,901 18,888,901 18,888,901 18,888,901 18,888,901
Revisions to base budget
Opening budget adjustments (3,235,288) (4,028,525) (4,268,662) (4,264,732) (4,223,732)
Inflation, salary increments and adjustments 517,806 812,738 1,113,774 1,415,316 1,722,889
Essential growth - one-off 177,474 112,474 173,821 1,350,000 0
Essential growth - ongoing 1,458,282 1,748,096 1,856,497 1,964,896 1,964,896
Assumed future essential growth 0 250,000 500,000 750,000 1,000,000
Base budget savings (1,872,852) (1,872,852) (1,872,852) (1,872,852) (1,872,852)
In year savings target (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000)
Movement in revenue contingency 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Movement in managed vacancy factor (211,055) (211,055) (211,055) (211,055) (211,055)
Total revised base budget 15,623,268 15,599,777 16,080,424 17,920,474 17,169,047
Growth, savings and other budget adjustments
Growth proposals

   Revenue - ongoing 152,700 152,700 152,700 152,700 152,700
Savings proposals (218,000) (218,000) (218,000) (218,000) (218,000)
Net cost of services 15,557,968 15,534,477 16,015,124 17,855,174 17,103,747
Gross treasury income (388,820) (539,820) (702,600) (636,600) (636,600)
Net expenditure 15,169,148 14,994,657 15,312,524 17,218,574 16,467,147
Transfers to/from reserves 207,124 0 (150,000) (1,350,000)
Amount to be financed 15,376,272 14,994,657 15,162,524 15,868,574 16,467,147
Financing
Core Government Funding (6,709,855) (5,448,869) (4,351,346) (3,253,902) (2,413,044)
Core Funding (6,709,855) (5,448,869) (4,351,346) (3,253,902) (2,413,044)
Add - NDR from renewable energy (226,304) (226,304) (226,304) (226,304) (226,304)
Collection fund (surplus)/deficit (377,602) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000)
Council tax requirement before use of reserves 8,062,510 9,019,484 10,284,874 12,088,368 13,527,800
(Use of reserves)/contribution to reserves 58,659 (495,531) (1,347,881) (2,727,862) (3,733,086)
Council tax requirement after use of reserves 8,121,169 8,523,953 8,936,993 9,360,506 9,794,714
Tax base 55,362.8 56,193.2 57,036.1 57,891.7 58,760.1

Band D Council tax (£) 146.69 151.69 156.69 161.69 166.69
Council tax increase from previous year 3.5% 3.4% 3.3% 3.2% 3.1%
Reserves at year end

General fund balance at 31 March (7,215,659) (7,215,659) (7,215,659) (7,215,659) (6,419,747)
Earmarked revenue reserves  - unallocated (7,508,449) (7,012,918) (5,665,037) (2,937,174) (0)
Earmarked revenue reserves  - allocated (1,687,880) (1,687,880) (1,687,880) (1,687,880) (1,687,880)

1
Page 144



Report to: 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

Cabinet 

Council 

 

 

Report of Head of Finance 

 

Author: Simon Hewings 

Telephone: 01235 422499 

E-mail: simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: all 

Cabinet member responsible:  Councillor Andrew Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee    25 January 2022 
To: Cabinet                                                       4 February 2022 
To: Council                                                       16 February 2022 

 

 

Future provision of external audit 

services 

Recommendations 

1) That Joint Audit and Governance Committee notes the reports and makes any 
recommendations on the proposals contained herein to Cabinet. 
 

2) That Cabinet recommends to Council to: 
 

a) Accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government 
and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023; and 

 
b) Authorise the Head of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor 

appointments for the provision of external audit services starting with the audit 
of the 2023/24 accounts. 

 

 

Purpose of report 

1. This report sets out proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council for 
the accounts for the five-year period from 2023/24 and seeks authority for the Head 
of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments on behalf of the 
Council in accordance with the recommendation from Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

Page 145

Agenda Item 14

mailto:simon
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic objectives  

2. Effective financial management, including the effective external audit of the 
council’s accounts, helps underpin the council’s ability to deliver services and meet 
the council’s strategic objectives. 

Background 

3. The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including 
the audit of the 2022/23 accounts.  The Council opted into the ‘appointing person’ 
national auditor appointment arrangements established by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

 
4. PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering 

audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. All local government bodies need to decide their 
external audit arrangements from 2023/24. They have the options to arrange their 
own procurement, or they can join the national collective scheme administered by 
PSAA. 

5. If the council wishes to take advantage of the national arrangements, then full 
Council is required under the local audit regulations to make this decision so that 
the council can opt-in by 11 March 2022. 

Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

6. Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the 
Council is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year.  
The Council has three options: 

 To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in 

the Act.  

 To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the 

procedures in the Act.  

 To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body 

designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’.  The body 

currently designated for this role is PSAA. 

The Appointed Auditor 

7. The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the 
statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the council in each 
financial year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and guidance.  The 
appointed auditor is also responsible for investigating questions raised by electors 
and has powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports and 
statutory recommendations. 

8. The auditor must act independently of the Council and the main purpose of the 
procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently 
qualified and independent. 

9. The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting 
Council (FRC) employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As the 
report below sets out there is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key 
Audit Partners. 

10. Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with wider 
powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the course 
of the next audit contract. 

Page 146



11. Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit services 
they are procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or overseen by 
third parties. 

Appointment by the Council itself or jointly 

12. The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which 
would require the council to: 

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. 
The auditor panel would need to be set up by the council itself, and the 
members of the panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members 
as defined by the Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent 
appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and 
their close families and friends. This means that elected members will not have 
a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a 
contract for the council’s external audit.  

 

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel. 
 
13. Alternatively, the Act enables the council to join with other authorities to establish a 

joint auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of 
independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact 
constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each council under 
the Act and the council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the 
appetite for such an arrangement. 

The national auditor appointment scheme 

14. PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government under 
the provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. 
PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the first appointing period, 
covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23. It is now undertaking the 
work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the next appointing period, from 
the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to complete a procurement for audit services. 
PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation whose costs are around 4 per cent of the 
scheme with any surplus distributed back to scheme members. 

15. In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of 
the five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in 
formal collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible with 
other constraints; 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria 
are satisfied. PSAA has sought views from the sector to help inform its 
detailed procurement strategy; 

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and 
managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to 
scheme members; 

 consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Council the 
opportunity to influence which auditor is appointed; 

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these reflect 
scale, complexity, and audit risk; and 

Page 147



 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these 
have been let. 

Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing 
opinions 

16. Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded 
in 2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few 
changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing over a long 
period. 98 per cent of those bodies eligible opted into the national scheme and 
attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The resulting audit contracts took 
effect from 1 April 2018. 

17. During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector year led to 
questioning about the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Four 
independent reviews were commissioned by Government: Sir John Kingman’s 
review of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the audit regulator; the 
Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market; Sir Donald Brydon’s 
review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony Redmond’s review of 
local authority financial reporting and external audit. The recommendations are now 
under consideration by Government, with the clear implication that significant 
reforms will follow. A new audit regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and 
arrangements for system leadership in local audit are to be introduced. Further 
change will follow as other recommendations are implemented. 

18. The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, 
measurable improvements in audit quality. This has created a major pressure for 
audit firms to ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements and expectations 
in every audit they undertake. By the time firms were conducting 2018/19 local 
audits during 2019, the measures they were putting in place to respond to a more 
focused regulator were clearly visible. To deliver the necessary improvements in 
audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work to 
gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more time, 
posing a threat to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by the target date for 
publication of audited accounts. Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of 
the FRC’s drive to improve audit quality. Additional audit work must also be paid for. 
As a result, many more fee variation claims have been needed than in prior years.  

19. This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention 
challenges, the complexity of local government financial statements and increasing 
levels of technical challenges as bodies explore innovative ways of developing new 
or enhanced income streams to help fund services for local people. These 
challenges have increased in subsequent audit years, with Covid-19 creating further 
significant pressure for finance and audit teams.  

20. None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges 
have played out in other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing 
responses to tender invitations have been experienced during the past two years. 

The National Scheme Invitation and Procurement Process 

21. PSAA is now inviting the council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 
2023/24 to 2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the level of 
opt-ins it will enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and appoint 
a suitable firm to be the council’s auditor. 

22. The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key 
determinant of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA has pledged 
to: 

Page 148



 seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of 
scale associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of bodies; 
 

 continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in 
accordance with the published fee scale as amended following consultations 
with scheme members and other interested parties (pooling means that 
everyone within the scheme will benefit from the prices secured via a 
competitive procurement process – a key tenet of the national collective 
scheme); 

 

 continue to minimise its own costs, around 4 per cent of scheme costs, and as 
a not-for-profit company will return any surplus funds to scheme members. In 
2019 it returned a total £3.5 million to relevant bodies and in 2021 a further 
£5.6 million was returned; 

 

 seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms will be able 
to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match their 
available resources and risk appetite to the contract for which they bid. They 
will be required to meet appropriate quality standards and to reflect realistic 
market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and the supporting 
information provided about each audit. Where regulatory changes are in train 
which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must undertake, firms will be 
informed as to which developments should be priced into their bids. 

 
23. The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice 

(currently published by the National Audit Office), the format of the financial 
statements (specified by CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of auditing standards 
regulated by the FRC. These factors apply to all local audits irrespective of whether 
an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s national scheme or chooses to make its 
own separate arrangements. The requirements are mandatory; they shape the work 
auditors undertake and have a bearing on the actual fees required. 

24. There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and other 
relevant bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local procurement 
exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the national procurement 
exercise, subject to the need to manage any local independence issues. Local firms 
cannot be invited to bid. Local procurements must deliver the same audit scope and 
requirements as a national procurement, reflecting the auditor’s statutory 
responsibilities. 

Not Opting in to the National Scheme 

25. If the council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent 
auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel would need to 
be set up by the council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a 
majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for 
this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current and former elected 
members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This means that elected 
members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which 
audit firm to award a contract for the council’s external audit. 

26. Alternatively, the council could join with other authorities to establish a joint auditor 
panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent 
appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of such 
a panel having regard to the obligations of each council under the Act and the 
council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the appetite for 
such an arrangement. 

Page 149



27. These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the council, 
and without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would be likely to 
result in a more costly service. It would also be more difficult to manage quality and 
independence requirements through a local appointment process. The council 
would still be unable to influence the scope of the audit and the regulatory regime 
inhibits the council’s ability to affect quality.  The council and its auditor panel would 
need to maintain ongoing oversight of the contract. 

28. The national procurement provides the appointment of an independent auditor with 
limited administrative cost to the council. By joining the scheme, the council would 
be acting with other councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the market that 
a national procurement provides. 

29. The recommended approach is therefore to opt in to the national auditor 
appointment scheme. 

The Process to Opt in to the National Scheme 

30. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires that 
a decision to opt in must be made by a meeting full Council.  

31. The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form 
specified by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022).  

32. PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022. It 
expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities on 
the appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments by the statutory 
deadline of 31 December 2022. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

33. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications 

34. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the 
knowledge of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position 
reflected in the council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full 
Council in February 2021 showed that the council is due to receive £2.6 million less 
in revenue funding than it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from 
reserves including unallocated New Homes Bonus).  

 
35. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. As there 

remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap 
could increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the 
need to eliminate this funding gap in future years. 

 
36. There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when the current 

contracts end. It is clear that the scope of audit has increased, requiring more audit 
work. There are also concerns about capacity and sustainability in the local audit 
market. 

37. Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure fees are as 
realistic as possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is maintained, by entering 
into a large scale collective procurement arrangement. 

38. If the national scheme is not used some additional resource may be needed to 
establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement 
exercise is completed it is not possible to state what, if any, additional resource may 
be required for audit fees from 2023/24. Page 150



Legal implications 

39. Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant council 
to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later than 31 
December in the preceding year.  

40. Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the council must 
consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and 
appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 provides that where a relevant council is a 
local Council operating executive arrangements, the function of appointing a local 
auditor to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of the council 
under those arrangements. 

41. Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The council 
must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the council to 
appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of the 
council.  

42. Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation to 
an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  This power has been 
exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this 
gives the Secretary of State the ability to enable a sector-led body to become the 
appointing person. In July 2016 the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the 
appointing person. 

Conclusion 

43. The report concludes that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA will 
produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the council than a 
procurement undertaken locally because: 

 collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual 
authorities compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements; 

 if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the council will need 
to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and independent 
members to oversee a local auditor procurement and ongoing management of 
an audit contract; 

 it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered 
auditor - there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a local 
procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply of auditor 
resources as PSAA’s national procurement; and 

 supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is a 
continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium and long term. 

44. If the council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 
arrangements, it is required under the local audit regulations to make the decision at 
full Council. The opt-in period starts on 22 September 2021 and closes on 11 March 
2022. To opt into the national scheme from 2023/24, the council needs to return 
completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 

 

Page 151



Document is Restricted

Page 152

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes 20 December 2021

	7 Climate action plan
	Appendix - Preliminary designs

	8 Climate action fund
	Appendix A - Climate Action Fund - Fund Guidance
	Appendix B - Climate Action Fund Criteria Matrix
	Appendix C - Climate Action Fund Timeline
	Climate Action Plan and Climate Action Fund Timelines - Vale - V2.vsdx
	Page-1
	Page-2



	10 Car park fees and charges
	11 Treasury management and investment strategy 2022/23
	13 Revenue budget 2022/23 and capital programme 2022/23 to 2026/27
	Appendix A.1 - base budget summary Feb 2022
	Appendix A.2 - opening budget adjustments Feb 2022
	Appendix A.3 - inflation and salary adjustments Feb 2022
	Appendix A.4 - essential growth Feb 2022
	Appendix A.5 - base budget savings Feb 2022
	Appendix B.1 - Vale revenue growth Feb 2022
	Appendix B.2 - Vale revenue savings Feb 2022
	Appendix C - Vale revenue summary Feb 2022
	Appendix D.1 - Vale Capital Programme Feb 2022
	Appendix D.2 - Capital growth Feb 2022
	Appendix D.3 - Capital growth externally funded Feb 2022
	Appendix F - Medium Term Financial Plan Feb 2022

	14 Future provision of external audit services
	16 Future waste services

